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Percent

Year Ended December 31 2007 Change
Consolidated revenues = nonregulated (Millions) * $6:987.0 394
Consolidated revenues - utility (Millions) 3,3054 304
Margins ~ nonregulated segment (Millions) * 310.8 (271.8)
Margins = utility segments (Millions) 1,261.2 24.2
Income from continuing operations (Millions) * 181:1 31:1)
Income available for common shareholders (Millions) 251.3 (49.7)
Earnings per.common share (basic)

Income from continuing operations $2.49 (36.1)

Discontinued operations, net of tax 1.02 94.1)

Earnings per common share {basic) 3,51 (53.0)
Earnings per common share{diluted)

Income from continuing operations $2.48 (36.3)

Discontinued operations, net of tax 1.02 94:1)

Earnings per.common share (diluted) 3.50 (53.1)
Dividends. per share $ 256 4.7
Book value per share 42.58 4:2)
Cornmon stock price at year end $51.69 (16.9)
Shares outstanding at year end (excludes treasury

stock and shares in deferred compensation trust) 75,992,234 =
Total assets (Millions) $11,2344 27.0

* Refer to Management's Discussion and Analysis for an explanation of changes from prior year.

Year Ended December 31 (Millions) 2007 2006

Net cash operating activities * $238.5 $.729

Net cash investing activities * 451.5) {1:030.1)

Net cash financing activities * (459.2) 891.7

Net cash discontinued operations * 690.2 61.0 .
Change in cash'and cash equivalents * $.18.0 $ o (4:5)

* Refer to Management's Discussion and Analysis for an explanation of changes from prior year.

Holding Company and Other
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lntegrys Energy Group, Inc. is a holdmg company .
headquartered in Chicago, lllinois. Subsidiaries || REGULATED
provide products and services in both reguiated OPERAT!’ONS

and nonregulated energy markets

‘M!NNE OTA ENERGY RESOURCES CORPORAT!ON
BUSINES . MARKET  ‘ ‘ ‘ . FAC!L!TIES ‘ ‘
- Natural gds dlsmbuf no Provides pataloas . g atura‘ o pmperty
opertions for . e sbu’mon servcces e nclides Boproximare
U years (acquned by , hore than 210 000 ‘ of trane
‘ ) Gro “ natu:’al Gas customers
in 2006) . ... znmes . ;
‘Opcrates n 'anesata B Natural gas reverives . whih P'aSﬁC m‘a‘i‘n
Leemopatley . i comprsed of , ‘vand 157 nanal v
. . 100% re‘call soles . St“bUT’O” ”9{

o chployees

Integrys Energy Group, Inc ' An Environment of Energy



: ‘MICHIGAN GAS UT!L!TIES CORPORA‘HON .
BUSINESs . FACIL!TIES

- Natural gcxs d!stnbution operatmns Shee . O a26billion ki foo’r natural gas
‘ 1859 (acquued by mteqws Enerqy (Jroup - c;’thag@ o
m 2006) ‘

8 Natal gas propeny inchides appmxcmately
n Operates, in southamn and Wef’t*"’ﬂ M'Ch’fﬁa” 2800 miles ol onemisson aid disuibution.
ee map ot nqht) . ‘ - hain approxiately 0% of which is plastie
- 16 . empjgyees, - . main, and 33 natural gas distibution
. ‘ ‘ ‘  ond Bonsmission gate stations,
MARKET s -

. Prowdes natural gas d|stnbuuon services
. appro imately 166, OOO hetural gas
| in 14/ cemmumues

e revenues i cc;mprsc;ed of
0 100% retal sales, ;

 UPPER PENINSULA POWER COMPANY
BUSINESS ‘ ‘ FACIL!TIES

mLbishedin 1884 (wcqu;red by B Electic generatng capacity based
Intearys baciay Groupin 998 ‘ Of sumimer capacity ratinge js

56 4 megawatts A beak demand

was reached on Decamber 162008,

with & systen demand of 174 megabatts.

. Reguldated eleciic winy

» Operates n primarily tural countiyside
Covering 1U of the 15 counties in the Unper
Pemnsula of Michigan (see map at nqht)

B [lectic property incliides approxinmately
- 3,300 miles of electrie distribution lines.
" 19 emp loyees. . ‘ ‘
- MARKET ‘

W Senes apomiimiatoly 52000 electic

. Listoners in 118 communities.

B flec reveres e compriaad o B 19

elail sales and 18 3% wholesale shles

Integrys Energy Group, Inc An Environment of Energy



Integrys Energy Serwvices, Inc.

NONREGULATED
OPERATIONS
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integrys Energy Group, Inc.

‘INTEGRYS BUSINESS
SUPPORT, LLC
N

. Estabhshed in 2007 became operatsonal\; ‘

on January 1 200

o Doudes centra od busmesa support
o (negrye En@rgy Group and
its wbad;anes

‘! 2% employee

}. Orgamzed in 2000
® A nonutility company that ol the
mvestment of Integiys Eneigy Group
and its subsidiaries i American
Transmission Company LLC

As of December 31 008 WPS !nvestments .

mt‘erest‘o‘f WPS “in‘vestm‘ents‘ o

AMERICAN TRANSMISSION
COMPANY, LLC
BUSINESS

8 Organized in 2000,

B A forprofi, transinission only
utility company.

# Owns, maintains, monitors, and
Opetates electric ransmission assets
in portions of Wisconsin, Michigan,
Minnesota, and lllinois.

Assets were previously owned and
opetated by multiple electric utilities
serving the upper Midwest, all of which
trapsferred their transmission assets to
American Transmission Company in
exchange for an ownership interest.

A Wisconein law encouraged Utilities in
the state to transfer ownership and
control of their transmission assets to

4 state-wide transmission company.

The Midwest Independent System
Operator IMISO) directs American
Transmission Companys operation of
the transmission system.

WPS Investments, LLC, & subsidiary

of Integrys Energy Group, owned
approximately 34% of American Transmission
Company at December 31, 2008

An Environment of Energy



.
o

left:
Charlie Schrock, President and Chief Executive Officer,
Integrys Energy Group, Inc

right:

Larry Weyers, Executive Chairméh, Integrys Energy Group;-Inc.
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Throughout the past year, our employees have kept their focus
and used their energy to produce results that we expect will
build value for our stakeholders for years to come. We have
made progress on several initiatives.

AN ENVIRONMENT OF
"GETTING IT DONE RIGHT"

We completed major construction projects, including the
500-megawatt Weston 4 generating facility. Weston 4 was
placed into service on July 1, 2008, and garnered two national
recognition awards—POWER magazine's 2008 Plant of the Year
award, and Power Engineering magazine’s 2008 Best Coal-Fired
Project award. The project was completed on schedule and
under budget, at a cost well below comparable projects.

We completed construction of the natural gas laterals for the
Guardian Il pipeline project on schedule and slightly under
budget, at $79 million versus a revised estimate of $85 million.
The Guardian Il trunkline was completed on February 26, 2009.
As a result, our customers now enjoy the benefits of competitive
natural gas pipeline service to northeastern Wisconsin.

American Transmission Company, of which Integrys is a 34 percent
owner, completed major components of its $2.8 billion building
plans. Our investment in American Transmission Company is
adding significant value for shareholders today and will continue
doing so for many years.

Completing these projects provides benefits for customers,
reduces our future capital expenditures, and reduces our cash
requirements. This represents a significant improvement in our
overall risk profile.

We have made good progress integrating the Michigan and
Minnesota natural gas distribution operations we acquired in
2006 and the lllinois natural gas distribution companies we
acquired in 2007 with the Peoples Energy merger. We captured
$83 million of annual synergy savings in 2008, surpassing our
target by $10 million. We expect the savings to increase to
$114 million annually by 2011. In addition, we reduced the
costs to achieve the integration by $39 million, to $147 million
in total costs to achieve.

We have successfully established Integrys Business Support as a
separate business unit within Integrys Energy Group to provide
centralized services to all subsidiaries and the parent company.
This business unit has helped us lower costs for services provided,
increase service quality, and provide transparency to regulators.

Demonstrating leadership in protecting the environment and
using energy efficiently, we have also been involved in the
design and construction of four new buildings that are LEED
(Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) certified. The
new office buildings for Minnesota Energy Resources Corporation
in Rochester, Minnesota; Wisconsin Public Service Corporation in
Rhinelander, Wisconsin; Integrys Energy Services in De Pere,
Wisconsin; and the American Transmission Company in Pewaukee
are all being designed and/or constructed in accordance with
these new environmental and efficiency standards.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

A WORKABLE REGULATORY
ENVIRONMENT

During 2008, we were very active in several regulatory arenas.
We successfully completed rate cases in Wisconsin, lllinois,

and Michigan. We also received an interim rate increase in
Minnesota. These rate cases were critical to our continuing
success. They are the first authorized rate increases following our
significant merger activity in 2006 and 2007, and the successful
completion of the rate cases acknowledges that the business
systems and processes we are using are accepted by regulators.
The conclusion of these cases also improves our return on
investment by correcting for the regulatory lag that typically
follows a merger or acquisition. The rate orders received in
lllinois and Wisconsin have also approved the use of an energy-
efficiency and conservation tool known as “decoupling.” This will
enhance our ability to help customers conserve energy and use
energy more efficiently. The decoupling mechanism also reduces
our company’s exposure to the risk of fluctuating demand by
helping to stabilize our margins and net income. We have
approximately 2.2 million regulated utility customers, and about
80 percent are now served through decoupling mechanisms.

STRATEGY CHANGES FOR THE
NEW ENVIRONMENT

Our accomplishments during the past year have been many
and varied, but the economic environment and financial crisis
throughout the world continues. In light of this, and with a
determination to remain a strong company, our management
team has taken steps to re-evaluate our strategy and business
model for the near and far term. Success during this period of
illiquidity requires timely and swift action.

In the short-term, we have taken steps to reduce our cash
requirements, improve the liquidity in our business model, and
thereby lower our risk profile. We increased our credit facilities
for the 2008-2009 winter heating season by $400 million in
November 2008. We reduced our capital expenditures by

28 percent, or $186 million, for 2009 and another 41 percent,
or $213 million, for 2010. We are continuing to scrutinize

our capital expenditure programs and our working capital
requirements with the intent of improving cash flow. We have
reduced wage increases for 2009, and the senior management
team and the Board of Directors have accepted zero wage
increases for this year. We have also initiated a hiring freeze
and announced a general reduction in the use of contractors
throughout our organization.

These initiatives will help improve our liquidity and risk profile
in the near term, but a strategic shift in our business model is
required for the long term.

As a result, in February 2009, we announced a strategic shift
affecting our nonregulated subsidiary, Integrys Energy Services.
This subsidiary has been very successful and has enhanced
shareholder value for over a decade, but its success has
outgrown our ability to adequately support its growth. This

An Environment of Energy



situation is exacerbated by the uncertain financial markets. The
risk would be less of an issue for an owner larger than Integrys.
We are, therefore, pursuing a full divestiture of this business
segment, with alternatives including divestiture of portions of
this business or scaling back by further modifying the scope of
the products offered and/or the markets we serve. The goal is to
reduce the demands on our balance sheet and capital support
obligations that are driven by commodity prices, which, at this
time, have demonstrated unprecedented volatility. We are
seeking to deploy our capital to areas with more desirable
risk-adjusted rates of return. We expect to significantly reduce
corporate guarantees and invested capital that have been required
by our nonregulated energy services segment. if we do not
divest of this business segment entirely, our ultimate objective

is a size and scope for Integrys Energy Services that will reduce
the liquidity, capital, and credit support requirements for our
nonregulated energy services segment to an insignificant level
and will give us greater control of our own destiny.

Certain business activities within the nonregulated subsidiary
may remain. These will be identified through our strategic
planning process but could revolve around our expertise in
renewable energy and energy efficiency.

Though we are seeking to divest of or reduce the size of our
nonregulated business, we are planning to expand the regulated
side of our business. The regulated utilities within Integrys Energy
Group have significant opportunities for investment, which will
enhance shareholder value. These investments will focus on
energy efficiency, conservation, renewable energy sources,
environmental improvements, and infrastructure imﬁ)rovements.

Over the long-term, our utilities have investment opportunities
exceeding $3 billion. Much of this investment will be

required for infrastructure improvements at Peoples Gas.
Wisconsin Public Service and Upper Peninsula Power will also
require investments in additional renewable projects and
environmental improvements.

During 2009, we committed to developing a 99-megawatt wind

farm project known as Crane Creek. The project, located in lowa,
will be completed in 2009 at a projected cost of $251 million; and
it will provide renewable energy for our customers.

These projects, combined with our investrents in infrastructure
improvements and environmental equipment, will provide

Integrys Energy Group, In¢.

substantial growth opportunities and help us reach our financial
goal of creating long-term value for investors. We expect our
strategic modifications will improve our earnings quality. Capital
investments combined with timely rate relief should provide
earnings per share growth of 4 to 6 percent on an average
annualized basis, subject to some fluctuations depending on
the economic environment. From a financial perspective, our
goal is to provide solid returns to investors, manage our risk
profile to acceptable levels, and continue providing consistent
and dependable dividends to our shareholders.

Dividends Per Common Share

20022003 - 2004 2005~ 20067 :2007 2008

20002001

AN ENVIRONMENT OF LEADERSHIP

Dealing effectively with financial challenges and meeting our
obligations to shareholders will require effective leadership

for years to come. Charles (Charlie} Schrock, the new president
and chief executive officer of Integrys Energy Group, effective
January 1, 2009, is well qualified to provide that leadership.
He brings over 30 years of utility industry experience and a
strong record of accomplishment to the job.

The board of directors also elected Charlie a director effective in
February 2009.

Charlie will be supported by a very capable and talented group
of leaders throughout our company. There have been numerous
changes in our leadership team during the past year, and | will
only mention a few of those changes here. Phillip (Phil) Mikulsky,
executive vice president - corporate development and

shared services of Integrys Energy Group, is now also president
of Integrys Business Support. William (Bill) Laakso is our new
vice president = human resources. Willard (Will) Evans, Jr,

is our new president of Peoples Gas and North Shore Gas.
Charles (Chuck) Cloninger is now president of Michigan Gas
Utilities as well ‘as Minnesota Energy Resources, and Jodi Caro
joinéd us as vice president - legal services.

Membership on the board of directors also changed, and |
want to express our gratitude to departing members Jim Boris,
Diana Ferguson, and Jack Meng. We thank each of them for
the contributions they have made to our success.
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We have also made progress in creating a single culture

throughout Integrys Energy Group. Over 674 of our leaders have
graduated from our Leadership Development classes, which are
based on Integrys Energy Group's values and expectations.

We are delivering on our core values and expectations daily.
And we continue to gain recognition for our efforts, as was
recently evidenced when we were recognized by FORTUNE
magazine when it designated Integrys Energy Group as the
World's Most Admired Energy Company on its prestigious 2009
list of "Most Admiired Companies” (in its March 16, 2009, issue).
In fact, Integrys rated well against the 363 companies that
appear on FORTUNE's most-admired list, where we were the
8th most-admired company in the Use of Corporate Assets
category, the 9th most-admired company in the Innovation
category, the 10th most-admired company in the Long-Term
Investment category, and the 17th highest-rated company
overall by total score.

AN ENVIRONMENT OF ENERGY

t can assure you that the Integrys team is dedicated to
operational excellence and has the expertise and energy
needed to enhance shareholder value for our investors.

.

N

We thank you for your investment in Integrys Energy Group
(TEG), and we assure you that we will protect your investment
as our own. Thank you for the faith you have placed in us.

Sincerely,

iy 1

Larry L. Weyers
Executive Chairman

March 6,:2009
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THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

Throughout our company, we've forged a long-term, sustainable
approach: finding ways to become more environmentally
responsible while upholding responsibilities to stakeholders;
providing reliable energy while safeguarding the well-being of
the places where we work and live.

In 2008 we revisited our environmental vision, taking a fresh look
at our environmental ideals and activities as they affect and
protect the environmental landscape.

Our renewed environmental vision—"Creating Energy Solutions
for a Sustainable Tomorrow”—points to how we will live out

our environmental responsibility, and helped us fashion new,
environmentally focused strategies and principles. With these
foundations in place, leaders across all business units are charged
with incorporating an environmental focus into short- and long-
range plans and embedding it within the Integrys culture.

THE NEW FACE OF EFFICIENCY

Transforming environmental aspirations into actionable
opportunities for customers and shareholders is the charge of
Integrys’ newly chartered Energy-Efficiency Steering Committee.

In 2008, the team crystallized its plans, targeting both
immediate energy-efficiency projects to help customers save
money and manage resources, and critical long-term business
opportunities created by a changing energy marketplace.

In mid to late 2009, innovative programs will test ways for our
customers to save money and conserve resources. The programs
will promote a variety of methods—from traditional rebates to
Smart Grid pilots—so customers can enhance their energy
efficiency. We will partner with stakeholders, including local
communities, organizations, state commissions, and customers.
We will test innovative rate options that cause energy users to
think about their energy use and change their energy behavior.
These pilot programs will allow the market itself to weigh in on
the value of the tools, technologies, and information.

On a parallel track, the Energy-Efficiency Steering Committee
will also evaluate long-term business opportunities that take
advantage of emerging technologies in the growing energy-
efficiency industry—models with potential to grow the business
and create even more value.

"LEEDING” EDGE EXAMPLE
Another way we're demonstrating our commitment to corporate
responsibility is to “green” the places where we do business.

In 2008, we reduced the environmental impact of our office
operations by integrating LEED (Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design) principles into three of our buildings.
These high-performance buildings will help us improve energy
efficiency and lower operating costs.

LEED construction uses materials with a high percentage of
recycled content; natural lighting to decrease energy use and
enhance indoor aesthetics; water savings through use of

Integrys Energy Group, Inc. E

low-impact plumbing technologies; motion sensor lighting;
computer technologies that use substantially less energy;
and waste management to recycle construction materials.

Minnesota Energy Resources’ new LEED building in Rochester,
Minnesota, brings all office, warehouse, and work center
functions together in one highly efficient facility.

Integrys Energy Services' De Pere office building incorporates
LEED principles in a wing successfully built using recycled
materials from old buildings, such as bricks and insulation.

And in the new Wisconsin Public Service office in Rhinelander,
Wisconsin, two office facilities and a warehouse have been
integrated into one 76,000-square-foot environmentally friendly,
energy-efficient service center.

REWARDING RESPONSIBLE CHOICES
Partnering with the Arbor Day Foundation, we've rewarded our
customers for making economical, earth-friendly choices.

Planting the seed of paperless billing among nearly 1.5 million
customers from four of Integrys' regulated utilities, we raised
awareness about the environmental benefits of enrolling in

e-Bill electronic billing. More than 5,000 trees were purchased
to plant in our national forests, one for each customer who
signed up for e-Bill from April through June 2008. The impact
of these online transactions truly adds up: by using e-Bill,
25,000 customers of Wisconsin Public Service alone save more
than 19,000 pounds of paper and 55,000 pounds of greenhouse
gas emissions every year.

A total of 14,000 trees were also planted on behalf of
nonregulated natural gas customers in Ohio, who chose
Integrys Energy Services’ new Ecovations™ biogas. This
incredible response was generated in the first three months
of the program, showing the impact sustainable choices can
have when they are both convenient and cost-effective.

THE GENERATION ENVIRONMENT

Ensuring a sustainable energy future means bringing increased
supply and alternative sources of clean, renewable power to our
customers in an increasingly carbon-constrained world.

To that end, Wisconsin Public Service entered into an agreement
for wind generation with enXco Service Company, a wind
developer that will construct and maintain our Crane Creek
Wind Farm, a 99-megawatt wind facility in Howard County in
northeastern lowa. The wind farm will help Wisconsin Public
Service reach its state-mandated renewable portfolio standard
of generating 10% of retail electric sales with renewable power
by 2015. The wind farm is on a site with favorable wind speed,
access to transmission, and community support. It is expected
to be operational in December 2009.

The Crane Creek Wind Farm joins our other wind generation
assets, including the Glenmore Wind Energy Facility—the first
utility-grade wind terminal in the state of Wisconsin, and the
Lincoln Wind Energy Facility, a 9.24-megawatt wind farm.

An Environment of Energy



RENEWABLE GAS REVOLUTION

Ecovations™ renewable biogas is harnessing the power of waste
to offer customers an eco-friendly choice at no extra cost.
Available to Integrys Energy Services customers in Ohio for the
first time last year, the renewable gas is delivered and performs
like regular natural gas. But that’s where the similarities stop.

Ecovations biogas is methane generated from renewable
sources like manure digesters, sewage treatment plants, and
landfill gas collection systems.

For customers who select Ecovations, 8% of the carbon dioxide
that would have been emitted by the natural gas they use each
year is offset by a blend of the renewable gas and carbon offsets
(emission reduction credits for emitting fewer greenhouse gases
into the atmosphere).

The highly successful offering demonstrates that renewable
options, attractively priced, can delight customers and generate
true competitive advantage.

SHINING SUCCESS

We're also adding solar power to our renewable mix. Late last
year, Integrys Energy Services tapped the power of the sun'in
16 projects across four states, making this subsidiary one of
the nation’s top five retail providers of solar electricity.

Unlike our wind farms, which generate power for customers
across the energy grid, Integrys Energy Services is placing solar
energy systems directly on customer sites. Custoimers purchase
the power without having to make an up-front capital investment
in solar-generating facilities. Better yet, they are able to leverage
legislative incentives, including tax benefits and incentives, for
the lowest possible cost.

Recent projects include a 341.6-kilowatt solar-generating system
mounted-to the roof of Pilgrim Furniture Showroom in Milford,
Connecticut—which generates enough energy 1o reduce
greenhouse emissions by 225 tons a year—as well as multi-state
installations for the J.C. Penney Company.

Integrys Energy Services also has one of the largest university
installations in the United States at Arizona State University.
Beginning operation in December 2008, the project is
anticipated to generate more than 3 million kilowatt-hours

of electricity annually, enough to run 3,680 computers at the
school, power 260 Arizona households, or reduce carbon
emissions equivalent to taking 425 cars off the road.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

HYDRO—THE ORIGINAL RENEWABRBLE

Driven by an abundant natural resource and creating no
greenhouse gas emissions, hydroelectric power is perhaps the
first and best-known “renewable” energy source: Nowhere
does hydroelectric power play more of a role in our system
than at Upper Peninsula Power Company, operating in
Michigan's Upper Peninsula.

Upper Peninsula Power is poised to capitalize on regional
environmental momenturn: Besides providing a carbon-neutral
energy source for the company’s own portfolio, hydroelectric
energy’s value has greatly increased as renewable energy
connects to the market. The Michigan legislature’s recent
renewable energy portfolio standard requires electric utilities to
have 10% of their energy come from in-state renewable sources
by 2015 and establishes renewable credit opportunities.

To care for these assets, improvement projects are underway
for Upper Peninsula Power’s turn-of-the century facilities.

WESTON 4 WOWS POWER INDUSTRY

In June 2008, we moved to a more secure energy future as
Wisconsin Public Service placed its world-class 525-megawatt
Weston 4 generating unit into service. One of the cleanest
coal-fired generating units in the nation, Weston 4's supercritical
technology offers higher efficiency and lower carbon dioxide
emissions per megawatt-hour of electricity produced as
compared to a standard sub-critical coal-fired unit.

Construction of the $774 million project began in October 2004
and was completed on an aggressive 3.5-year schedule. It was
built in close cooperation with the local community, using local
trades and suppliers whenever possible. In August 2008,
community leaders, local neighbors, elected officials, regulators,
contractors, management, union representatives, and others
turned out to officially dedicate the new facility.

In the short time since it began operation, the clean-coal plant
is generating not only electricity, but also national and global
energy awards:

® 2008 Plant of the Year from POWER magazine, citing
"unequalled environmental protection credentials employing
without a doubt the most advanced coal-fired steam
generation technology in the U.S. today”;

®  Best Coal-Fired Project for 2008 from Power Engineering
magazine, which recognizes projects that set quality
standards-in the worldwide energy industry; and

® 2008 Big Diverter Award from WasteCap, Wisconsin, for a
high recycling rate, diverting more than 9,000 tons of waste
from being placed in a landfill over four years.

RENEWING AGING ASSETS

Many of our older generating plants are still “go-to” sources for
reliable energy at a reasonable cost. Yet often, their environmental
performance isn't as impressive as that of newer generation
resources. 50 we're investing capital and brainpower to make
these assets smarter, cleaner, and more efficient.

An Environment of Energy
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At Wisconsin Public Service's Pulliam coal-fired generating plant,
for example, we significantly reduced excess opacity (visible
emissions) incidents. While new emission-control equipment
helped remediate the problem, the main gains came from
listening and engaging the people closest to the problem.

Five crews of front-line operators focused intensely on the
challenge and identified practical, ongoing corrective actions
that delivered out-of-the park results. Solutions ranged from a
more controlled boiler firing process that lowered emissions to
improved crew training and day-to-day corrective equipment
repairs. Thanks to the employees at Pulliam, the plant achieved
a dramatic ten-fold increase in opacity performance in 2008 for
four active operating coal units (Pulliam units 5-8) compared to
average performance from 2000 to 2005.

We've also ramped up efforts to equip our older coal-fired power
plants with new combustion technology that promises to reduce
nitrogen oxide (NOx} emissions by 40% to 50% overall. in 2008,
retrofits were completed on Weston 1 (commissioned in 1954),
and work was begun on Weston 2 (1960). Retrofits will also be
made at Pulliam 6, Pulliam 7, Weston 3, and Pulliam 8 in 2009.

THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Helping customers during the economic downturn was a key
focus for our organization in 2008, as surging energy costs and
tough times created unprecedented challenges.

SAFETY NET CATCHES VULNERABLE CUSTOMERS
Across all of our utilities, our concern rose for our most vulnerable
customers—those with limited income, who are most affected

by economic hardships. Beginning in July 2008, we tumed our
energies to helping customers anticipate winter energy costs and
learn about applying for heating assistance.

The federal government made an unprecedented level of

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds
available to help customers. So our first priority was to make sure
struggling customers knew about this important safety net.

Peoples Gas and North Shore Gas exemplified our tactics with
nothing short of a community blitz. Community relations teams
reached out person by person, neighborhood by neighborhood,
agency by agency, to educate, inform, and jumpstart the
assistance program.

Customers were contacted through many touch points, from bill

inserts and Web content to phone calls and community meetings.

We worked with community agencies and city officials. And we
found more ways than ever to connect people in need with help
in walking through the application process.

And our teams didn't stop there. To encourage safety during
the heating months, our utilities offered discounts on carbon
monoxide and smoke detectors. They promoted budget billing
plans. And they continued the successtul utility-sponsored
heating funds—uwith the utilities matching customer donations
to cover heating costs for low- and fixed-income neighbors.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc

It was an outreach effort echoed throughout our companies.
And for many, it brought comfort in an increasingly harsh
economic environment.

GRASSROOTS MARKETING AT
MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES

In the landscape of Michigan's struggling economy, employees at
Michigan Gas Utilities formed a game plan to grow the utility's
base of natural gas customers when new development faltered.

Relying on service crews, meter readers, and other team members,
the utility mapped and identified existing mains that could be
cost-effectively extended to reach new natural gas customers,
who might be using oil or propane to heat their homes.

Employees identified 23 new projects; and the information
sharing began. The team used competitive cost modeling to
demonstrate the attractive cost of natural gas against propane,
making dollars and sense of switching to natural gas.

Two hundred and fifty service lines later, nearly half the
identified potential customers had come online, increasing
Michigan Gas Utilities' customer base. Today, the momentum
continues, proving our employees” ability to be innovative

in demanding times.

"GETTINGIT RIGHT! (ALWAYS)

For our utility customer relations group, the mantra "Getting It
Right” to create great service experiences for customers remained
a core goal.

We began with afirst-ever benchmark of capabilities and
customer satisfaction throughout our utilities, so we knew where
westood. We identified which areas required work: Then we
raised the bar—and met it—leveraging best practices.

ONE CALL DOESIT ALL

Resolving customer issues immediately—on the first call—was a
core focus for a more seamless customer experience. Across our
organization, we shared best practices to reduce the need for
customers to contact us more than once to address their
questions or concerns.

We spent considerable effort coaching our front-line service
teams and monitoring call quality. We fine-tuned our processes
and systems; we deepened our teams’ technical and people skills;
we took time 1o ensure we clearly understood and answered each
customer's guestion. And when we were done, we asked, "Is there
anything else we can do for you today?”

The outcome speaks for itself. Each quarter we made
improvements in call center performance, lowering the amount of
repeat calls, lowering cost, and bettering dur customers’ experience.

A SELF-SERVICE WORLD

Our companies accelerated self-service options to match our
customers’ increasing use of Internet and interactive voice
technologies, providing low-cost, easy-to-use ways to-do business.
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We worked diligently, identifying changes that would make our
automated voice recognition systems and Web sites easy to use.
We invested in studies of our automated call flow and Web site
navigation to make sure choices were clear and customer-friendly.
We automated back-end systems to-deliver immediate response.

Popular self-service functions were added to Web sites at
Wisconsin Public Service, Upper Peninsula Power, Peoples Gas,
and North'Shore Gas, including options to set up budget billing
and search for payment locations.

Moving to a “self-service” world for simple transactions is truly a
win/win/win proposition: delivering 24/7 support for customers;
the ability for employees to focus on more complex, value-added
customer contacts; and greater value for shareholders.

DELIGHTING NONREGULATED CUSTOMERS
At our nonregulated operations, delighting customers is also a
focus for delivering value.

Using customers’ feedback, we worked to improve key aspects
of delight, from easy-to-understand billing to knowledgeabie
customer care. By the end of the year, we had moved from a
score of 3.88 to 4.09 in customer satisfaction, an 18.75% gain
on our aspiration of achieving a perfect 5.0 score.

FUTURE FOCUS

Moving forward, Integrys will continue to seek great experiences
for our customers while improving our cost effectiveness. Our
work has only begun.

We're pursuing new ways to make it easy to do business with us.
Customers told us they wanted even more self-service options, so
we're expanding self-service options even further, sharing effective
tactics and technologies from sister company to sister company.

Yet we know that knowledgeable one-on-one customer care

will never be replaced—nor should it be. So we continue helping
our call centers and our account executives be more effective
listeners and more expert problem solvers than ever before.

THE COMMUNITY AROUND US

In difficult economic times, Integrys’ community support remains
vibrant. It's bedrock to our belief that business sustainability is
connected to the well-being of the places where we live and work.

Our responsibility takes many forms, from encouraging employee
volunteerism and matching contributions to their favorite charities
o sharing expertise on boards and community task forces.
Sometimes our efforts are a direct extension of our business.

For example, each fall, our employees give their time to bring
energy efficiency to customers by weatherizing homes for those
who are elderly or disabled.

And we've also come together across Integrys to support
community needs through United Way.

It's a true' measure of our corporate values, giving back a measure
of what our communities give to us.
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THE REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

Navigating the complexities of the changing regulatory environment
has become increasingly important for Integrys Energy Group.

We're at work on a number of core regulatory activities: providing
energy efficiency services and information in new state programs;
complying with all environmental rules and regulations;

and forging new rate structures that encourage; not inhibit,
energy-saving programs.

EMPOWERING ENERGY PARTNERSHIPS
In our regulated utilities, we're building on a history of encouraging
energy efficiency. ‘

Wisconsin Public Service has provided energy-efficiency programs
for customers since the 1970s. Today, these programs are
administered, with our guidance, through a statewide energy-
efficiency program called Focus on Energy. Minnesota Energy
Resources has also provided programs 1o its customers-and is
increasing its efforts to meet recently enacted Minnesota
legislation, which established aggressive energy-savings goals.

Similar legislation has been passed in'Michigan, and both
Upper Peninsula Power and Michigan Gas Utilities will participate
in state-administered energy-efficiency programs. Peoples Gas
and North Shore Gas are a'part of the newly created Chicagoland
Natural Gas Savings Program; offering energy-efficiency and
weatherization programs to customers of the two utilities.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc

All these efforts by Integrys companies contribute to a better
use of energy, protection for the environment, and lower energy
bills for customers.

INNOVATIVE RATES REWARD EFFICIENCY

Anocther initiative is to remove current disincentives for utilities
to encourage energy efficiency—known in the energy industry
as "decoupling.” Pioneering projects make Peoples Gas,
North Shore Gas, and Wisconsin Public Service the first utilities
in lllinois and Wisconsin to gain approval for decoupling.

This tool separates the amount the utilities charge to deliver
natural gas and electricity from the amount that customers use.

For our companies, revenue becomes less dependent on the
volume of natural gas and electricity we deliver—so we can
actively promote energy efficiency without hurting our bottom
line. Equally important, decoupling benefits customers. Generally,
when weather is ¢older, customers will receive a credit, and

when it is warmer than normal, customers will see a charge.

And customers will see a direct benefit from saving energy:
reducing energy use will reduce their bill.

THE FUTURE ENVIRONMENT

We are leveraging best practices across our companies and
embedding them in our culture: We have become leaner, more
disciplined, and even more customer-centric. And despite
competing business and environmental pressures, we are
confident we have a practical and proactive path forward,

POSITIONING AND INVESTING IN THE FUTURE
Integrys Energy Group is a larger, stronger, and more competitive
regional energy company than ever before. Our growth since
2006 has diversified our company’s regulatory and geographic
risk and provided a larger, more stable regulated utility base.

Regulatory and industry forces demand a strong emphasis on
asset-and risk management. We are constantly evaluating
strategies to provide the best return on our resources while
rmaintaining an acceptable risk profile. Moving forward, we will
continue to adjust our énergy portfolio, evaluate existing assets,
the acquisition of assets, and contracts for resources that
complement our business.

As we look to the future, we will make well-planned investments
to meet changing expectations of energy companies.

Part.of our obligation is to anticipate future energy demand while
making:sense for our environment. As the market calls for more
environmentally friendly sources, we will respond with continued
investment in-renewables, energy efficiency, emission reduction
and conservation, focusing on options that offer the greatest
returns in efficiency and savings,

Sustaining our vision, we are confident that wise planning of
our resources will deliver stability and continued value in an
ever-changing energy future.
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Integrys Energy Group's
Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) Emissions

Integrys Energy Group’s
Carbon Dioxide (CO3z) Emissions
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Notes:

There was an extended Kewaunee Nuclear Plant outage in 2005,
The Sunbury Generation facility was'sold in 2006

Warden and.Niagara Falls Generating facifities were sold in 2007,
The Stoneman Generating facility was sold in' 2008.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not
relate strictly to historical or current facts and often include
words such as "anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“intend,” "plan,” “project,” and other similar words. Forward-
looking statements are subject to assumptions and uncertainties;
therefore, actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
Although we believe that these forward-looking statements and
the underlying assumptions are reasonable, we cannot provide
assurance that such statements will prove correct.

"ou

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which
they are made, and, except to the extent required by the federal
securities laws, we undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise. We recommend that
you consult any further disclosures we make on related subjects
in our 10-Q, 8-K, and 10-K reports to the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

The following is a cautionary list of risks and uncertainties that
may affect the assumptions which form the basis of forward-
looking statements relevant to our business. These factors, and
other factors not listed here, could cause actual results to differ
materially from those contained in forward-looking statements.

m Resolution of pending and future rate cases and
negotiations (including the recovery of deferred costs) and
other regulatory decisions impacting Integrys Energy
Group's regulated businesses;

m The impact of recent and future federal and state
regulatory changes, including legislative and regulatory
initiatives regarding deregulation and restructuring of the
electric and natural gas utility industries and possible future
initiatives to address concerns about global climate change,
changes in environmental, tax, and other laws and regulations
to which Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries are
subject, as well as changes in the application of existing
laws and regulations;

m Current and future litigation, regulatory investigations,
proceedings, or inquiries, including but not limited to,
manufactured gas plant site cleanup, reconciliation of
revenues from the Gas Charge and related natural gas
costs, and the contested case proceeding regarding the
Weston 4 air permit;

m The impacts of changing financial market conditions, credit
ratings, and interest rates on the liquidity and financing
efforts of Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries;

® The risks associated with executing Integrys Energy Group's
plan to significantly reduce the scope and scale of, or divest
in its entirety, the nonregulated energy services business;

Integrys Energy Group, Inc. '

The risks associated with changing commodity prices
(particularly natural gas and electricity) and the available
sources of fuel and purchased power, including their
impact on margins;

Resolution of audits or other tax disputes with the Internal
Revenue Service and various state, local, and Canadian
revenue agencies;

The effects, extent, and timing of additional competition or
regulation in the markets in which Integrys Energy Group’s
subsidiaries operate;

The retention of market-based rate authority;

The risk associated with the value of goodwill or other
intangibles and their possible impairment;

Investment performance of employee benefit plan assets;
Advances in technology;

Effects of and changes in political and legal developments,
as well as economic conditions and the related impact on
customer demand;

Potential business strategies, including mergers,
acquisitions, and construction or disposition of assets or
businesses, which cannot be assured to be completed
timely or within budgets;

The direct or indirect effects of terrorist incidents, natural
disasters, or responses to such events;

The effectiveness of risk management strategies and the
use of financial and derivative instruments;

The risks associated with the inability of Integrys Energy
Group's and its subsidiaries’ counterparties, affiliates, and
customers to meet their obligations;

Weather and other natural phenomena, in particular the
effect of weather on natural gas and electricity sales;

The utilization of tax credit carryforwards;

The effect of accounting pronouncements issued
periodically by standard-setting bodies; and

Other factors discussed in the 2008 Annual Report on
Form 10-K and in other reports filed by Integrys Energy
Group from time to time with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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INTRODUCTION

Integrys Energy Group is a diversified energy holding company
with regulated electric and natural gas utility operations (serving
approximately 2.2 million customers in lllinois, Michigan, Minnesota,
and Wisconsin), nonregulated energy operations, and an equity
ownership interest in American Transmission Company, LLC (ATC)

(a federally regulated electric transmission company operating in
Wisconsin, Michigan, Minnesota, and lllinois) of approximately 34%.

Strategic Overview

Integrys Energy Group’s goal is to create long-term value for shareholders
and customers primarily through growth in its core regulated businesses.
The company has made a decision to either fully or partially divest of
its nonregulated energy services business segment, Integrys Energy
Services, or reduce its size, risk, and financial requirements in response
to increased collateral requirements at a time when global credit and
financial markets are constraining the availability and increasing the cost
of capital. In order to create value, Integrys Energy Group focuses on:

Maintaining and Growing a Strong Regulated Utility Base—A strong
regulated utility base is necessary to maintain a strong balance sheet,
predictable cash flows, a desired risk profile, attractive dividends, and
quality credit ratings, which are critical to our success. Integrys Energy
Group believes the following investments have helped, or will help,
maintain and grow its regulated utility base:

®  The February 2007 merger with Peoples Energy Corporation (PEC),
which added the natural gas distribution operations of The Peoples
Gas Light and Coke Company (PGL) and North Shore Gas Company
(NSG) to the regulated utility base of Integrys Energy Group.

®  Our ownership interest in ATC, which owned over $2.5 billion of
assets at December 31, 2008. Integrys Energy Group will continue to
fund its share of the equity portion of future ATC growth. ATC plans
to invest $2.7 billion in the next ten years to ensure that the power
grid will continue to meet the needs of its customers.

m Weston 4, a 537-megawatt coal-fired base-load power plant located
near Wausau, Wisconsin, was completed and became operational
June 30, 2008. Wisconsin Public Service Corporation (WPS) holds a
70% ownership interest in the Weston 4 power plant.

® A proposed accelerated annual investment in natural gas distribution
facilities (replacement of cast iron mains) at PGL.

®  The investment of approximately $79 million to connect WPS's
natural gas distribution system to the Guardian Il natural gas
pipeline to be completed in 2009.

B WPS’s purchase of a 99-megawatt wind generation project to be
constructed in 2009 in Howard County, lowa.

B WPS's continued investment in environmental projects to improve air
quality and meet the requirements set by environmental regulators.
Capital projects to construct and upgrade equipment to meet or
exceed required environmental standards are planned each year.

For more detailed information on Integrys Energy Group’s capital
expenditure program, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources, Capital
Requirements.”

Systematically Reduce the Size and the Capital and Liquidity
Commitments of the Nonregulated Energy Services Business
Segment—Unprecedented energy price volatility, combined with
significant growth in the forward customer business, has increased the
collateral requirements of Integrys Energy Services at a time when
global credit and financial market conditions are both constraining the
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availability and increasing the cost of capital. As a result, Integrys
Energy Group has decided to take steps to protect its financial position
and liquidity by either fully or partially divesting of its nonregulated
energy services business segment or significantly scaling it back. On an
operational level, Integrys Energy Group's short-term strategy will be to
reduce and refocus its financial, credit, and risk capital on those aspects
of Integrys Energy Services' business that yield the highest return, with
consideration given toward lower risk. Integrys Energy Services has
recently, and as necessary in the future, expects it will continue to adjust
pricing strategies to capture margins that are commensurate with its
increasing capital costs and collateral requirements.

Longer term, in the event that a full divestiture of Integrys Energy
Services does not occur and a portion of the nonregulated energy
services business segment remains, it will be a smaller segment that
requires significantly less capital, parental guarantees, and overall
financial liquidity from Integrys Energy Group. Integrys Energy Group is
seeking to deploy its capital to areas with more desirable risk-adjusted
rates of return. Although Integrys Energy Group anticipates a reduction
in future earnings capacity from this business segment going forward,
an improvement in the liquidity position and reduced business risk
profile of Integrys Energy Group is expected.

Integrating Resources to Provide Operational Excellence—

Integrys Energy Group is committed to integrating resources of all its
regulated and nonregulated businesses, while meeting all applicable
regulatory and legal requirements. This will provide the best value to
customers and shareholders by leveraging the individual capabilities and
expertise of each business and lowering costs. Integrys Energy Group
believes the following recent developments have helped, or will help,
integrate resources and provide operational excellence:

® The PEC merger provides the opportunity to align the best practices
and expertise of both companies, which will continue to result in
efficiencies by eliminating redundant and overlapping functions
and systems.

B Integrys Business Support, LLC (IBS), a wholly owned service company
of Integrys Energy Group, became operational on January 1, 2008.
IBS was formed to achieve a significant portion of the cost synergies
anticipated from the PEC merger through the consolidation
and efficient delivery of various support services and to provide
more consistent and transparent allocation of costs throughout
Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries.

m “Operational Excellence” initiatives were implemented to provide
top performance in the areas of project management, process
improvement, and contract administration and compliance in order
to reduce costs and manage projects and activities within
appropriate budgets, schedules, and regulations.

Placing Strong Emphasis on Asset and Risk Management—Our asset
management strategy calls for the continuous assessment of our
existing assets, the acquisition of assets, and contractual commitments
to obtain resources that complement our existing business and strategy.
The goal is to provide the most efficient use of our resources while
maximizing return and maintaining an acceptable risk profile. This
strategy focuses on the disposition of assets, including plants and entire
business units, which are no longer strategic to ongoing operations,

are not performing as needed, or have an unacceptable risk profile.

We maintain a portfolio approach to risk and earnings. Our decision
regarding the future of Integrys Energy Services noted above illustrates
our asset management strategy.

Our risk management strategy includes the management of market,

credit, and operational risk through the course of business. Forward
purchases and sales of electric capacity, energy, natural gas, and other
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commodities allow opportunities to secure prices in a volatile energy
market. Each business unit monitors daily oversight of the risk profile
related to these instruments consistent with the company’s risk

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(Millions, except per share amounts)

Natural gas utility operations

Electric utility operations

Nonregulated energy operations

Holding company-and other oparations
Oil and natural gas operations

Income available for common shareholders

Average basic shares of common stock
Average diluted shares of commion stock

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Earnings Summary

From 2007 to 2008, income available for common shareholders
decreased $124.9 million and diluted earnings per share decreased
$1.86. From 2006 to 2007, income available for common shareholders
increased $95.5 million and diluted earnings per share decreased $0.17.
Significant factors impacting the change in earnings and diluted earnings
per share were as follows (and are discussed in more detail thereafter).

Natural Gas Utility Operations:
Earnings improved $55.8 million in 2008, compared with 2007, primarily
due to the following:

® The inclusion of PGL and NSG for all of 2008 compared with only
a partial year of operations in 2007 since they were acquired on
February 21, 2007. A rate increase for PGL in February 2008 also
contributed to the increase in earnings in 2008. From 2007 to 2008,
after-tax earnings related to PGL and NSG operations increased
$43.3 million, after including a $6.5 million after-tax goodwill
impairment loss related to NSG in 2008,

® Anincrease in natural gas sales volumes, which drove an approximate
$11 million ($6.6 million after-tax) increase in margin for WPS,
Minnesota Energy Resources Corporation (MERC), and Michigan
Gas Utilities Corporation (MGU).

B An interim rate increase for MERC, effective October 1, 2008, which
had a positive impact on margin.

Financial results improved $31.0 million in 2007, compared with 2006,
primarily due to the following:

B Financial results for MGU and MERC increased $18.1 million, from a
combined net loss of $11.3 million in 2006, to earnings of $6.8 million
in 2007. The positive change in earnings at MGU and MERC was
driven by the fact that these natural gas utilities operated during
the first quarter heating season in 2007, but were not acquired by
Integrys Energy Group until after the first quarter 2006 heating
season. n addition, MGU and MERC incurred a combined
$11.8 million ($7.1 million after-tax) of transition costs in 2006 for the
start-up of outsourcing activities and other legal and consulting fees.
in 2007, MGU and MERC were allocated $1.7 million ($1.0 million
after-tax) of external costs to achieve merger synergies
related to the PEC merger.
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f . Year Ended December 31, ]

management policy. The Corporate Risk Management Group, which
reports through the Chief Financial Officer, provides corporate oversight.

Change in Change in
2008 Over 2007 Over

2007 2006 2007 2006
$ 28.7 $ 23 194.4 % N/A
87.4 85.5 5.9 % 22%
98.0 72.3 N/A 355%
(18.8) 0.3 N/A N/A
56.0 - (100.0)% N/A
$251.3 $155.8 {49.7)% 61.3%
716 42.3 7.1 % 69.3%
71.8 42.4 7.2% 69.3%
$3.51 $3.68 (53.00% (4.6)%
$3.50 $3.67 (53.1)% (4.6)%

B Regulated natural gas utility earnings at WPS increased $13.5 million,

from earnings of $9.6 million in 2006, to earnings of $23.1 million in
2007. Higher eamings were driven by increased volumes due to
colder weather during the heating season. The full year impact of
the natural gas rate increase that was effective January 12, 2007,
also contributed to the increase.

® PGL and NSG, which were acquired effective February 21, 2007,
recognized a combined net loss of approximately $1 million in 2007,
primarily related to the seasonal nature of natural gas utilities, which
derive earnings during the heating season {first and fourth quarters).
Because of the late February acquisition date, results for the majority
of the two coldest months of the year were not included in natural
gas utility earnings in 2007. The 2007 net income for PGL was less
than the level we would normally expect, primarily due to increased
costs of providing service.

Electric Utility Operations:
Earnings increased $5.2 million in 2008 compared with 2007, resulting
primarily from:

B A combined $17.7 million ($10.6 million after-tax) decrease in electric
maintenance expense and costs to achieve merger synergies related
to the PEC merger.

®  An approximate $10 million ($6 million after-tax) increase in margin
from WPS's 2008 retail electric rate increase effective January 16, 2008,
and the full benefit of WPS's 2007 retait electric rate increase
effective January 12, 2007.

& An approximate $10 million ($6 million after-tax) increase in margin
driven by higher contracted sales volumes to a large wholesale
customer year-over-year.

® An approximate $5 million ($3 million after-tax) increase in regulated
electric utility margin year-over-year, driven by fuel and purchased
power costs that were approximately $1 million lower than what was
recovered in rates during 2008, compared with fuel and purchased
power costs that were approximately $4 million higher than what
was recovered in rates during 2007.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The above increases were partially offset by:

A $13.8 million ($8.3 million after-tax) increase in electric transmission
expenses primarily related to higher rates charged by Midwest
independent Transmission System Operator, Inc. (MISO) and ATC
due to additional transmission costs.

An increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $4.2 million
($2.5 million after-tax) driven by depreciation related to Weston 4,
which was placed in service for accounting purposes in April 2008.

An approximate $11 million ($6.6 million after-tax) decrease in
margin due to a decline in residential and commercial and industrial
sales volumes at WPS as a result of cooler weather during the
cooling season and customer conservation efforts.

A $4.3 million ($2.6 million after-tax) increase in interest expense.

Earnings increased $1.9 million in 2007 over 2006, resulting primarily
from the following:

Retail electric rate increases at both WPS and Upper Peninsula
Power Company (UPPCO) had a positive year-over-year impact
on operating income.

Favorable weather at WPS contributed an approximate $6 million
($3.6 million after-tax) year-over-year increase in operating income;
however, this increase was partially offset by a decrease in weather
normalized residential and commercial and industrial customer usage.

Fuel and purchased power costs were higher than what was
recovered in rates during the year ended December 31, 2007,
compared with fuel and purchased power costs that were less
than what was recovered in rates during the same period in 2006,
driving a $14.4 million ($8.6 million after-tax) negative variance in
operating income.

Maintenance expense related to WPS’s power plants was higher in
2007 compared with 2006, driven by an increase in unplanned outages
in 2007 as well as longer than anticipated 2007 planned outages.

Nonregulated Energy/integrys Energy Services’
Operations:

Financial results decreased $159.5 million in 2008, compared with 2007,
primarily due to the following:

A $133.6 million after-tax decrease in Integrys Energy Services’
United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
margin year-over-year related to non-cash activity, of which
$106.1 million was related to non-cash activity associated with
electric operations, with the remaining $27.5 million related to
non-cash activity associated with natural gas operations. An
overview of this non-cash activity has been provided below.

Non-cash electric operations:

A decline in energy prices during 2008 drove an $82.4 million net
after-tax non-cash loss, compared with a $23.7 million net after-tax
non-cash gain recognized in 2007, related to an increase in energy
prices during 2007. The non-cash unrealized gains and losses
recognized resulted from the application of derivative accounting rules
to Integrys Energy Services' portfolio of derivative electric customer
supply contracts, requiring that these derivative instruments be
adjusted to fair market value. The derivative instruments are utilized to
economically hedge the price, volume, and ancillary risks associated
with related electric customer sales contracts. The associated electric
customer sales contracts are not adjusted to fair value, as they do not
meet the definition of derivative instruments under GAAP, creating an
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accounting mismatch. As such, the non-cash unrealized gains and
losses related to the electric customer supply contracts will vary each
period, with non-cash unrealized gains being recognized in periods
of increasing energy prices and non-cash unrealized losses being
recognized in periods of declining energy prices, and will ultimately
reverse when the related customer sales contracts settle.

Non-cash natural gas operations:
The spot price of natural gas decreased significantly during the second

half of 2008 (below the average cost of natural gas in inventory which
Integrys Energy Services had injected into storage earlier in 2008),
which resulted in a lower-of-cost-or-market adjustment, as required by
GAAP. This adjustment contributed a $96.2 million year-over-year
decrease in the non-cash natural gas margin, driven by non-cash
inventory write-downs in the third and fourth quarters of 2008. The
negative impact on realized margin related to these inventory
adjustments was substantially offset by $91.9 million of net after-tax
non-cash unrealized gains recognized in 2008, primarily related to
derivative instruments utilized to mitigate the price risk on natural
gas inventory underlying natural gas storage transactions. In 2007,
natural gas derivative instruments resulted in the recognition of
$23.2 million of net after-tax non-cash unrealized gains. Similar to
the electric operations discussed above, non-cash gains and losses
related to derivative natural gas sales and customer supply contracts
will vary each period, and will ultimately reverse when the physical
contracts settle, or when natural gas is withdrawn from inventory.

® The recognition of $17.1 million of after-tax earnings from Integrys
Energy Services’ investment in a synthetic fuel production facility
during the year ended December 31, 2007. Production and sale of
synthetic fuel by Integrys Energy Services ended when Section 29/45K
of the Internal Revenue Code, which provided for Section 29/45K
federal tax credits from the production and sale of synthetic fuel,
expired effective December 31, 2007.

m After-tax income from discontinued operations decreased
$10.9 million as a result of the sale of Niagara Generation in 2007,
which was partially offset by a contingent gain that was realized in
the fourth quarter of 2008 refated to the sale of the Stoneman
generating facility in the third quarter of 2008.

m  Operating and maintenance expenses at Integrys Energy Services
increased $22.3 million ($13.4 million after-tax) in 2008 compared
with 2007, driven by an increase in bad debt expense, broker
commissions, a full year of operations from businesses acquired in
the PEC merger, and employee benefit costs.

m Partially offsetting the above decreases, the realized retail electric
margin increased $28.1 million ($16.9 million after-tax), driven
primarily from operations in lllinois, due to the addition of new
customers as a result of the PEC merger, and the reduced impact
from purchase accounting in 2008.

Earnings increased $25.7 million in 2007, compared with 2006, primarily
due to the following:

m  Operating income at Integrys Energy Services increased $40.2 million
($24.1 million after-tax).

m  After-tax income from discontinued operations at Integrys Energy
Services increased $7.5 million, driven by the sale of Niagara
Generation, LLC in the first quarter of 2007.

m  Miscellaneous expense at Integrys Energy Services decreased
$11.1 million ($6.7 million after-tax), driven by a decrease in pre-tax
losses recognized for the period related to Integrys Energy Services’
investment in a synthetic fuel facility.
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B Minority interest income decreased $3.7 million ($2.2 million after-
tax) as Integrys Energy Services’ partner elected to stop receiving
production from the synthetic fuel facility and, therefore, did not
share in losses from this facility in 2007,

B Section 29/45K federal tax credits recognized from Integrys
Energy Services’ investment in a synthetic fuel facility decreased
$15.9 million, from $29.5 million in 2006, to $13.6 million in 2007,
The decrease in Section 29/45K federal tax credits recognized was
driven by the impact of high oif prices on our ability to realize the
benefit of Section 29/45K federal tax credits.

Holding Company and Other Operations:

Financial results increased $29.6 million from 2007 to 2008, largely due
to higher earnings from our investment in ATC, lower interest expense,
and lower operating expenses at the holding company, partially offset
by the negative year-over-year impact on operating income related to
the reallocation of external costs to achieve merger synergies in 2007.

In 2007, financial results decreased $19.1 million, from earnings of
$0.3 million in 2006, to a net loss of $18.8 million.

See "Overview of Holding Company and Other Segment Operations”
for more information.

Oil and Natural Gas Operations:

In connection with the PEC merger, Integrys Energy Group announced
its intent to divest of PEC's oil and natural gas production operations,
Peoples Energy Production Company (PEP). PEP was sold in the third
quarter of 2007. In 2007, PEP recognized earnings of $56.0 million,
including $58.5 million of earnings reported as discontinued operations.
The sale of PEP resulted in a $7.6 million after-tax gain in 2007. In 2008,
tax adjustrents of $0.8 million related to the 2007 PEP sale were
recorded as discontinued operations.

Regulated Natural Gas Utility Segment Operations

{Millions)

Revenues
Purchased natural gas costs

Margins

Operating and maintenance expense
Goodwill impairment loss *
Depreciation and amortization expense
Taxes other than income taxes

Operating income

Miscellaneous income
Interest expense
Other expense

Income before taxes

Throughput in therms
Residential
Commercial and industrial
Interruptible
Interdepartmental
Transport
Total sales.in therms

* See Note 9, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” for more information.
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" Year Ended December 31, | Change in Change in
- 2008 Over 2007 Over
2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

$3,025.9 $2,103.7 $676.9 43.8 % 2108%
1,453.5 493.8 47.8 % 194.4%
650.2 183.1 351 % 255.1%
427.4 121.3 261 % 252.4%

- - N/A ~%

97.7 32.7 10.8 % 198.8%
331 11.8 (3.0% 180.5%
92.0 17.3 108.9 % 431.8%

5.5 1.0 27.3% 450.0%
(53:4) (18.1) 6.0 % 195.0%
(47.9) (7.1 35% 180.1%
$-44. $02 2234 % 21,950.0%
1,251.8 3515 365 % 256.1%
439.2 190.6 254 % 130.4%
594 40.1 1.2% 48.1%
47.1 27.6 (39.3)% 70.7%
1,505.6 657.5 21.8% 129.0%
3,303.1 1,267.3 266 % 160.6%

Earnings Per Share:

Diluted earnings per share was impacted by a 5.2 million share (7.2%)
increase in the weighted average number of outstanding shares of
Integrys Energy Group common stock from 2007 to 2008, as well as an
increase of 29.4 million shares (69.3%) in the weighted average number
of outstanding shares of integrys Energy Group's common stock from
2006 to 2007. Integrys Energy Group issued 31.9 million shares of
common stock on February 21, 2007, in conjunction with the merger
with PEC, and issued an additional 2.7 million shares of common stock
in May 2006 in order to settle its forward equity agreement with an
affiliate of J.P. Morgan Securities. Additional shares were also issued
under the Stock Investment Plan and certain stock-based employee
benefit plans in 2007 and 2006,

The following discussion provides the analysis of Integrys Energy Group’s
four segments: regulated natural gas utility, regulated electric utility,
Integrys Energy Services, and its holding company and other segment.

Utility Operations

In 2008, the utility operations included the regulated natural gas utility
segment, consisting of the natural gas operations of PGL, WPS, MERC,
MGU, and NSG. The regulated natural gas operations of WPS, MERC,
and MGU, were included in results of operations for all of 2007, while the
regulated natural gas operations of PGL and NSG were included in results
of operations beginning February 22, 2007 through December 31, 2007,
The natural gas operations of WPS were included for all of 2006, while
the natural gas operations of MGU and MERC were included from

April 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006, and July 1, 2006 through
December 31, 2006, respectively.

Utility operations also included the regulated electric segment,
consisting of the regulated electric operations of WPS and UPPCO for
all of 2008, 2007, and 2006.
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Revenue

2008 Compared with 2007:

Regulated natural gas utility segment revenue increased $922.2 million,
driven by:

B A combined increase in PGL and NSG natural gas utility revenue of
$780.5 million, from $1,118.5 million during 2007, to $1,899.0 million
during 2008. The increase in revenue at both of these natural gas
utilities was driven primarily by the fact that they were not included
in regulated natural gas utility results until after the merger with PEC
on February 21, 2007. Other factors that contributed to this
combined increase include:

»  PGLls annualized rate increase effective February 14, 2008, which
increased revenue year-over-year by approximately $61 million.
See Note 23, "Regulatory Environment,” for more information
on the PGL and NSG rate cases.

¢ Higher year-overyear natural gas prices. Increases in natural gas

commodity costs are passed directly through to customers in rates.

¢ Colder weather during the 2008 heating season, partially offset
by energy conservation efforts by natural gas utility customers
and a larger number of customer disconnections, which we

believe resulted from high energy prices and a general slowdown

in the economy.

natural gas utilities (WPS, MERC, and MGU) from $985.1 million
during 2007, to $1,126.8 million during 2008, which resuited
primarily from:

® A combined $112.2 million increase in revenue driven by the
approximate 13% increase in the per-unit cost of natural gas in
2008 compared with 2007.

* A $43.4 million increase in revenue from colder weather during
the 2008 heating season compared with 2007, evidenced by an
approximate 11% year-over-year increase in heating degree days
across these three utilities.

® Anincrease in revenue from MERC's interim rate increase,
effective October 1, 2008, for retail natural gas customers. This
interim rate increase is subject to refund pending the final rate
order, which is expected in the second quarter of 2009. See
Note 23, "Regulatory Environment,” for more information on
MERC's interim rate increase,

*  The combined increase in revenue at WPS, MGU, and MERC,
was partially offset by a $17.9 million decrease in revenue driven
by a decrease in year-over-year volumes normalized for the
impact of weather, $15.6 million of which was driven by a 39.3%
decrease in natural gas throughput volumes sold by WPS to its
electric utility segment. The decrease in volumes sold to the
electric utility segment was a result of a decrease in the need for
the electric utility to run its peaking generation units during the
2008 summer cooling season because of cooler year-overyear

weather. In addition, additional electricity was available within the

electric utility segment from Weston 4, a coal-fired generating
facility that became commercially operational in June 2008. The
remaining decrease in weather normalized volumes was driven
by energy conservatien efforts of residential customers and a
larger number of customer disconnections year-overyear, which
we believe resulted from high energy prices and a general
slowdown in the economy.
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An increase in natural gas revenue of $141.7 million at the remaining

2007 Compared with 2006:

Regulated natural gas utility segment revenue increased $1,426.8 million,
driven by the following:

PGL and NSG (acquired February 21, 2007) generated $1,118.5 million
of natural gas utility revenue and contributed approximately 1.5 billion
therms of natural gas throughput volumes in 2007.

MERC {(which acquired natural gas distribution operations in
Minnesota on July 1, 2006) generated $294.0 million of natural gas
utility revenue and approximately 705 million therms of natural gas
throughput volumes in 2007, compared with $123.0 million of
natural gas utility revenue and approximately 348 million therms of
natural gas throughput volumes in 2006.

MGU (which acquired natural gas distribution operations in Michigan
on Aprit 1, 2006) generated $220.2 milfion of natural gas utility
revenue and approximately 311 million therms of natural gas
throughput volumes in 2007, compared with $110.1 million of
natural gas revenue and approximately 193 million therms of natural
gas throughput volumes during 2006.

WPS's natural gas utility revenue increased $27.2 million, from
$443.8 million in 2006, to $471.0 million in 2007, driven by the
following:

¢ On January 11, 2007, the Public Service Commission of
Wisconsin (FSCW) issued a final written order to WPS authorizing
a retail natural gas distribution rate increase of $18.9 million
(3.8%), effective January 12, 2007. See Note 23, “Regulatory
Environment,” for more information related to the retail natural
gas rate increase at WPS.

® An 8.6% increase in natural gas throughput volurnes. The
increase in natural gas throughput volumes was driven by a
10.3% increase in residential volumes and a 70.7% increase in
natural gas volumes sold to the electric utility. The increase in
sales volumes to residential customers was driven in part by
colder year-over-year weather during the 2007 heating season.
The increase in natural gas volumes sold to the electric utility was
driven by an increase in the need for the electric utility to run its’
peaking generation units.

e Natural gas prices were 10.1% lower on a per-unit basis,
compared with 2006, resulting in a decrease in natural gas utility
revenue, which partially offset the overall increase in natural gas
utility revenue at WPS.

Margin

2008 Compared with 2007:

The regulated natural gas utility segment margin increased $228.0 million,

primarily due to:

B Anincrease in the combined margin at PGL and NSG of

$208.6 million, from $387.2 million in 2007 to $595.8 million in
2008. The increase in combined margin was driven by:

& The acquisition of PGL and NSG on February 21, 2007. The
combined operations for the entire heating season were included
in the 2008 natural gas utility margin. However, only operations
from the merger date through December 31, 2007, were included
in the 2007 natural gas utility margin, Due to the seasonal nature
of natural gas utilities, higher margins are generally derived
during the heating season (first and fourth quarters).
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® The 2008 rate increase for PGL, which resulted in an approximate
$61 million increase in margin.

e Colder than normal weather experienced by both PGL and
NSG resulted in an approximate $7 million increase in 2008
margin before the decoupling mechanism went into effect on
March 1, 2008.

B An increase in natural gas margin of $19.4 million at the remaining
natural gas utilities (WPS, MERC, and MGU), primarily driven by:

* A combined 5.2% increase in natural gas throughput volumes at
WPS, MERC, and MGU, which had an approximate $11 million
positive impact on natural gas utility margins. Colder year-over-
year weather had an approximate $14 million positive impact on
margins. Partially offsetting the positive impact of colder weather,
were energy conservation efforts by residential customers and a
larger number of customer disconnections year-overyear, which
had an approximate $3 million negative impact on margins.

® The interim rate increase for MERC, effective October 1, 2008,
which had a positive impact on natural gas margin.

*  An approximate $2 million year-over-year increase in margin at
MGU related to an adjustment for recovery of prior natural gas
costs in a Michigan Public Service Commission (MPSC)
proceeding.

2007 Compared with 2006:

The regulated natural gas utility segment margin increased $467.1 million,
driven by the following:

B The combined margin provided by PGL and NSG in 2007 of
$387.2 million.

B The combined margin at MGU and MERC increased $55.1 million,
from $59.1 million in 2006, to $114.2 million in 2007. The increase in
natural gas margin at MGU and MERC was driven primarily by the
fact that MGU and MERC operated during the first quarter heating
season in 2007, but were not acquired by Integrys Energy Group
until after the first quarter heating season in 2006.

B WPS’s natural gas margin increased $24.8 million, from $124.0 million
in 2006, to $148.8 million in 2007. The increase in WPS's margin was
driven by the retail natural gas rate increase and an increase in
throughput volumes to higher margin residential customers due in
part to colder yearover-year weather during the heating season. The
increase in throughput volumes sold to the electric utility did not
have a significant impact on WPS's natural gas utility margin,

Operating Income

2008 Compared with 2007:

Operating income at the regulated natural gas utility segment increased
$100.2 million, driven by the $228.0 million increase in the natural

gas utility margin, partially offset by a $127.8 million increase in
operating expenses,

The increase in operating expenses was primarily related to an increase

in combined operating expenses at PGL and NSG of $125.8 million,
from $368.7 million for 2007 to $494.5 million for 2008.

integrys Energy Group, Inc

The increase in operating expenses related to PGL and N5G was
primarily driven by:

B The acquisition of these natural gas utilities on February 21, 2007,
As a result, operating expenses for the period January 1, 2007, to
the acquisition date were not included in the 2007 operating results.

B A non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $6.5 million recognized
in the second quarter of 2008 related to NSG.

& A combined increase in bad debt expense, driven by the impact of
high energy prices and worsening economic conditions on overall
accounts receivable balances.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Operating income increased $74.7 million, driven by the $467.1 million
increase in the regulated natural gas utility margin, partially offset by a
$306.1 million increase in operating and maintenance expense, a
$65.0 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense, and

a $21.3 million increase in taxes other than income taxes.

B The increase in operating and maintenance expense was primarily
related to the following:

¢ Combined operating and maintenance expenses of $292.9 million
incurred by PGL and NSG in 2007,

* Combined operating and maintenance expense at MGU and
MERC that increased approximately $9 million, primarily due to
the fact that operating expenses at both of these utilities incurred
prior to the acquisition were not included in earnings in 2006,
compared to incurring a full year of operating and maintenance
expenses in 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2006,
$11.8 million of combined operating and maintenance expense
related to external transition costs, primarily for the start-up of
outsourcing activities and other legal and consulting fees. For the
vear ended December 31, 2007, MGU and MERC were allocated
$1.7 million of external costs to achieve merger synergies related
to the PEC merger.

* Operating expenses related to WPS's natural gas operations
increased $3.7 million year-over-year, due primarily to the
aflocation of $2.8 million of external costs to achieve merger
synergies related to the PEC merger.

8 The increase in depreciation and amortization expense was primarily

related to the merger with PEC (a combined $59.0 million of
depreciation and amortization expense was recognized at PGL

and NSG from February 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007} and

an increase in depreciation expense at MERC and MGU {these
businesses were not included in results of operations for the full year
in 2006). Depreciation and amortization expense at WPS's natural
gas utility was relatively flat year-overyear.

B The increase in taxes other than income taxes from 2006 to 2007

was primarily related to the merger with PEC ($16.8 million of taxes
other than income taxes were recognized at PGL and NSG in 2007),
and the acquisition of the Michigan and Minnesota natural gas
distribution operations, which were not included in results of
operations for the full year in 2006. Taxes other than income taxes
are primarily related to property taxes, gross receipts taxes, and
payroll taxes paid by these companies.
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Other Expense

2008 Compared with 2007:

Other expense at the regulated natural gas utilities increased $1.7 million,
driven by a $3.2 million increase in interest expense, partially offset by a
$1.5 million increase in miscellaneous income. The increase in other
expense was a result of:

B A $6.1 million increase in combined interest expense at PGL and
NSG, from $30.3 million in 2007 to $36.4 million in 2008. The
increase in interest expense at PGL and NSG is primarily due to the
fact that these utilities were first acquired on February 21, 2007, and,
therefore, did not recognize a full year of interest expense in 2007.
The increase in interest expense was also due to additional long-
term debt borrowings and higher interest rates on new and
remarketed long-term debt.

Regulated Electric Segment Operations

Revenue
2008 Compared with 2007:

Regulated electric utility segment revenue increased $82.8 million,
driven by:

B A 3.2% increase in electric sales volumes, which resulted in an
approximate $26 million increase in revenue year-overyear, related to:

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

& The increase in other expense was offset by:

* A $2.6 million increase in Allowance for Funds Used During
Construction (AFUDC) at WPS related to the construction of
natural gas laterals for connection to the Guardian Il pipeline.

® A decrease in interest expense resulting from a decrease in short-
term borrowing levels and a decrease in interest rates for WPS's
natural gas segment.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Other expense at the regulated natural gas utilities increased $30.8 million,
driven by a $35.3 million increase in interest expense, partially offset by
a $4.5 million increase in miscellaneous income. The increase in other
expense was a result of combined interest expense of $30.3 million,
partially offset by $4.5 million of miscellaneous income, recorded both at
PGL and NSG from February 22, 2007, through December 31, 2007.

I " Year Ended December 31, ! Change in Change in
. 2008 Over 2007 Over

(Millions) : 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues  $13289  $12460 $1,099.4 6.6 % 133%
Fuel and purchased power costs 636.5 551.0 24 % 15.5 %
Margins 609.6 5484 111 % 11.2%
Operating and maintenance expense 3211 265.3 16.9 % 21.0 %
Depreciation and amortization expense 80.1 785 52% 20%
Taxes other than income taxes 43.2 41.6 25% 3.8%
Operating income 165.2 163.0 5.0 % 1.3%
Miscellaneous income 8.3 3.2 (27.7)% 159.4 %
Interest expense (32.4) (30.0 133% 80%
Other expense (24.1) (26.8) 27.4 % (10.1%
Income before taxes $ 1411 $ 136.2 1.2 % 3.6%
Sales in kilowatt-hours

Residential 3,173.6 3,144.8 (3.45% 0.9 %

Commercial and industrial 8,750.9 8,645.2 (1.3)% 1.2%

Wholesale 40249 4,093.1 18.4 % (1.7)%

Other 424 42.2 05% 05%

Total sales in kilowatt-hours 15,991.8 15,9253 3.2% 04 %

Weather - WPS:

Heating degree days 7,102 6,785 12.2% 4.7 %

Cooling degree days 634 521 (26.8)% 21.7 %
Weather - UPPCO:

Heating degree days 8,625 8,386 8.4 % 28%

Cooling degree days 352 297 (60.8)% 18.5%

¢ An 18.4% increase in wholesale volumes year-overyear, which drove
an approximate $48 million increase in revenue. There was an
approximate $36 million increase in opportunity sales year-overyear
as the electric utility had more low-cost generation with Weston 4
becoming commercially operational in 2008, combined with
available capacity from lower sales volumes to residential customers.
In addition, WP$ experienced an approximate $12 million
increase in wholesale revenue, driven by higher contracted sales
volumes to a large wholesale customer year-over-year.
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o The increase in revenue related to wholesale volumes was partially
offset by a 3.4% decrease in residential sales volumes and a 1.3%
decrease in commercial and industrial sales volumes year-over-year,
which drove an approximate $22 million decrease in revenue. Of this
decrease in revenue, approximately $13 million related to energy
conservation efforts on the part of residential customers, which we
believe was the result of high energy prices and the general
economic slowdown. Approximately $6 million related to decreased
demand by our commercial and industrial customers in the third and
fourth quarters of 2008 as the economy weakened. in addition,
cooler weather during the 2008 cooling season compared to 2007
contributed approximately $3 million to the decrease in revenue.

m  An interim fuel surcharge approved by the PSCW for WPS's retail
electric customers effective March 22, 2008, related to higher fuel and
purchased power costs. In addition, a surcharge increase was approved
by the PSCW effective July 4, 2008. Both orders had an overall impact
on revenue of approximately $25 million. Contributing factors in this
rate change were increased purchased power costs due to lower-than-
expected generation from the new Weston 4 power plant during the
start-up phases, increased coal and coal transportation costs, and
increased natural gas costs. On September 30, 2008, the PSCW
reopened the 2008 fuel surcharge to review forecasted fuel costs as
WPS's current and anticipated annual fuel costs were below those
projected in the fuel surcharge. As a result of these lower costs, WP5
accrued at December 31, 2008, a refund payable in 2009 to its electric
customers of approximately $5 million, which is already excluded from
the $25 million noted above. See Note 23, “Regulatory Environment,”
for more information on WPS's interim fuel surcharges.

B A retail electric rate increase, effective January 16, 2008, which
contributed an approximate $23 million increase in revenue. The full
benefit of the 2007 retail electric rate increase, effective January 12,
2007, also contributed to the increase in revenue year-over-year.
Per the PSCW's order approving the PEC merger, WPS was not
permitted to increase its base rates for natural gas or electric service
prior to January 1, 2009. However, WPS was allowed to adjust rates
for changes in purchased power costs as well as fuel costs related
to electric generation due to changes in New York Mercantile
Exchange (NYMEX) natural gas futures prices, delivered coal prices,
and transmission costs. The increase also included recovery of
deferred 2005 and 2006 MISO Day 2 costs over a one-year period.
See Note 23, “Regulatory Environment,” for more information on
WPS's interim rate increase.

m An approximate $5 million increase in revenue at UPPCO related to
increased energy and transmission costs in 2008 compared with
2007. Increases in fuel and purchased power costs at UPPCO are
passed directly through to customers in rates.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Regulated electric revenue increased $146.7 million, driven by the
following:

®m On January 11, 2007, the PSCW issued a final written order to WPS
authorizing a retail electric rate increase of $56.7 million (6.6%),
effective January 12, 2007, for Wisconsin electric customers.

® In June 2006, the MPSC issued a final written order to UPPCO
authorizing an annual retail electric rate increase for UPPCO of
$3.8 million (4.8%), effective June 28, 2006. See Note 23,
“Regulatory Environment,” for more information related to the retail
electric rate increases at WPS and UPPCO.

m  On a per-unit basis, fuel and purchased power costs were
approximately 17% higher in 2007 compared with 2006. In addition,
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sales volumes increased 0.4%, primarily related to an increase in
sales volumes to residential and commercial and industrial
customers, driven by warmer weather during the cooling season and
colder weather during the heating season (a portion of heating load
is electric) in 2007, compared with 2006. The increase in sales
volumes related to weather was partially offset by an approximate
2% decrease in weather normalized residential and commercial and
industrial customer usage, driven by customer conservation resulting
from higher energy costs and weaker general economic conditions.

Margin

2008 Compared with 2007:

The regulated electric utility segment margin increased $67.8 million,
driven by an increase in electric margin at WPS. The $68.4 million
increase in the electric margin at WPS was a result of:

m A $54.0 million partial refund to Wisconsin retail customers for 2007
of their portion of proceeds from the liquidation of the Kewaunee
nonqualified decommissioning trust fund. Pursuant to regulatory
accounting, the decrease in the 2007 margin related to the refund
was offset by a corresponding decrease in operating and
maintenance expense in 2007 and, therefore, did not have an
impact on earnings. WPS completed this refund in 2007.

B An approximate $10 million increase in margin from the 2008 retail
electric rate increase effective January 16, 2008, and the full benefit
of the 2007 retail electric rate increase effective January 12, 2007.

m An approximate $10 million increase in margin driven by higher
contracted sales volumes to a large wholesale customer year-over-year.

m An approximate $5 million increase in regulated electric utility
margin year-over-year driven by fuel and purchased power costs that
were approximately $1 million fower than what was recovered in
rates during 2008, compared with fuel and purchased power costs
that were approximately $4 million higher than what was recovered
in rates during 2007. As a result of approximately $23 million of
under-recovered fuel and purchased power costs in the first quarter
of 2008, the PSCW approved an interim rate surcharge effective
March 22, 2008, and subsequently approved a higher final surcharge
effective July 4, 2008. The $5 million increase in electric margin
includes lower fuel costs from the fuel window reset and the net
impact of the refund accrued at December 31, 2008, payable in
2009 to electric customers from the reopening of the 2008 fuel
surcharge on September 30, 2008, by the PSCW.

m These increases in the electric margin were offset by an approximate
$11 million decrease in margin due to a decline in residential and
commercial and industrial sales volumes. Of this decrease,
approximately $8 million related to energy conservation efforts on
the part of residential customers, which we believe were the result of
high energy prices and the general economic slowdown.
Approximately $1 million related to decreased demand by our
commercial and industrial customers in the third and fourth quarters
of 2008 as the economy worsened. In addition, cooler weather
during the 2008 cooling season compared with 2007 contributed
approximately $2 million to the decrease in gross margin.

2007 Compared with 2006:

The regulated electric margin increased $61.2 million, driven by the
following:

m A $57.0 million (11.5%) increase in the electric utility margin at WPS.
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¢ WPS’s margin was positively impacted by the retail electric rate
increases discussed above and by higher electric sales volumes
to residential and commercial and industrial customers related to
weather. Favorable weather during both the heating and cooling
seasons positively impacted margin by an estimated $6 million.

* The year-over-year change in WPS's margin was also positively
impacted by a $16.2 million decrease in the 2006 margin related
to the accrual of the refund to wholesale customers in 2006 of
their portion of the Kewaunee nonqualified decommissioning
trust fund. Pursuant to regulatory accounting, the decrease in the
2006 margin related to this refund was offset by a corresponding
decrease in operating and maintenance expenses in 2006 and,
therefore, did not have an impact on earnings. No such accrual
to wholesale customers occurred in 2007; however, the payment
of the refund was made in 2007.

* Partially offsetting the increase in WPS's margin, fuel, and purchased
power costs were 3.7% higher than what was recovered in rates
during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared with fuel
and purchased power costs that were 10.5% less than what was
recovered in rates during the same period in 2006, driving a
$14.4 million negative variance in WPS’s electric margin. In 2007,
fuel and purchased power prices were above what was projected in
the rate case primarily due to higher than anticipated commodity
costs and the market effects of unplanned plant outages. On
October 6, 2007, lightning hit Weston 3, and the unit returned to
full service on January 14, 2008. The unscheduled outage did
not have a significant impact on the electric utility margin as the
PSCW approved deferral of unanticipated fuel and purchased
power costs directly related to the outage. The outage did,
however, cause the price of purchased power from other sources to
increase. Excluding the additional purchased power which resulted
from the Weston 3 outage, fuel and purchased power costs at WPS
increased 17% in 2007, compared with the same period in 2006,
primarily related to the higher per-unit cost of fuel and purchased
power required from the market to serve WPS's customers.

®m  UPPCO's margin increased approximately $4 million, primarily due
to its retail electric rate increase, effective June 2006, and higher
retail sales volumes.

Operating Income
2008 Compared with 2007:

Operating income at the regulated electric utility segment increased
$8.3 million, driven by the $67.8 million increase in the electric utility
margin, partially offset by a $59.5 million increase in operating expenses.

The increase in operating expenses was driven by:

= A $54.0 million year-over-year increase related to the partial
amortization in 2007 of the regulatory liability previously recorded
for WPS's obligation to refund proceeds received from the
liquidation of the Kewaunee nonqualified decommissioning trust
fund to Wisconsin retail electric ratepayers.

m A $13.8 million increase in electric transmission expenses, primarily
related to higher rates charged by MISO and ATC due to additional
transmission costs.

® A $6.1 million increase in cost of capital and depreciation expense
charged by IBS for assets transferred from WPS to I1BS in the
beginning of 2008 and reported as operating and maintenance
expense in 2008. Similar costs were reported as depreciation and
amortization expense in 2007, prior to the start-up of IBS.
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m A $4.2 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense,
primarily related to $9.2 million of depreciation expense from Weston 4
being placed in service for accounting purposes in April 2008, partially
offset by a decrease in depreciation related to assets transferred to
IBS and reported in operating and maintenance expense in 2008.

These increases in operating expenses were partially offset by:

®  An $11.6 million decrease in electric maintenance expenses at WPS,
primarily due to major planned outages at the Weston 2 and Weston 3
generation stations, the De Pere Energy Center, and the Pulliam
generation station, as well as several unplanned outages at the Weston 3
generation station in 2007, compared with fewer outages in 2008.

® A decrease in external costs to achieve merger synergies of $6.6 million
related to the merger with PEC, from $12.3 million in 2007, to
$5.7 million in 2008. This decrease occurred primarily because all
external costs to achieve merger synergies incurred from July 2006
through March 2007 were reallocated in 2007 from the holding
company segment to the other reportable segments, including the
regulated electric segment. These reportable segments are the
beneficiaries of the synergy savings resulting from the costs to
achieve. In addition, the reduction in 2008 external costs to achieve
merger synergies was due to less integration work required in 2008
compared with 2007.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Operating income increased $2.2 million, driven by the $61.2 million
increase in regulated electric margin discussed above, partially offset by
a $54.3 million (23.7%) increase in operating and maintenance expenses
at WPS, and a combined $3.2 million increase in depreciation and taxes
other than income taxes at the regulated electric utilities.

B The change in operating and maintenance expense at WPS was
primarily related to the following:

Regulated electric maintenance expenses increased $15.3 million,
driven by longer than anticipated planned outages and a higher
number of unplanned outages year-over-year (which included major
overhauls planned at the Weston 2 and Weston 3 generation
stations and the De Pere Energy Center, planned major turbine and
generator work performed at the Pulliam generation station, and
several unplanned outages at the Weston 3 generation station).

Regulated electric transmission expenses increased $14.2 million,
primarily related to higher rates charged by MISO and ATC due
to additional transmission investment.

The regulated electric segment of WPS was allocated external
costs to achieve merger synergies of $11.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

Amortization in 2006 of the regulatory liability recorded for WPS's
obligation to refund proceeds received from the liquidation of the
Kewaunee nonqualified decommissioning trust fund to wholesale
electric ratepayers contributed $16.2 million to the increase in
WPS's operating and maintenance expense. Pursuant to regulatory
accounting, the 2006 increase in operating and maintenance
expense related to this refund was offset by a corresponding increase
in 2006 margin and, therefore, did not have an impact on earnings.

Lower pension, postretirement, and other employee benefit costs
partially offset the increase in regulated electric operating and
maintenance expense at WPS.
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B Anincrease in depreciation expense related to continued capital
investment at the electric utilities, while the increase in taxes other
than income taxes reflected an increase in sales year-over-year.

QOther Expense
2008 Compared with 2007:

Other expense at the regulated electric utilities increased $6.6 million,
driven by a $4.3 million increase in interest expense and a $2.3 million
decrease in miscellaneous income.

® The increase in interest expense was due to higher long-term
borrowings at WPS, primarily utilized to fund various construction
projects and to retire short-term borrowing levels related to construction,

B The decrease in miscellaneous income was driven by:
e A $1.4 million decrease in interest income recognized related to
the construction of transmission facilities WPS funded on ATC’s

behalf related to Weston 4. WPS was reimbursed for these
transmission facilities by ATC in April 2008.

Integrys Energy Services’ Operations

* A $1.8 million gain on the sale of a generation facility by UPPCO
in July 2007.

¢ The decrease in miscellaneous income was partially offset by an
increase in AFUDC related to the wind generation project.

2007 Compared with 2006:
Other expense at the regulated electric utilities decreased $2.7 million,
driven by a $5.1 million increase in miscellaneous income, partially
offset by a $2.4 million increase in interest expense.
B The increase in miscellaneous income was driven by:
e A$2.9 million increase in interest income recognized related to
the construction of transmission facilities WPS funded on ATC's

behalf pending the start-up of Weston 4.

¢ A $1.8 million gain on the sale of a generation facility by UPPCO
in July 2007.

B The increase in interest expense was due to higher borrowings at
WPS, primarily utilized to fund various construction projects.

Integrys Energy Services is a diversified nonregulated energy supply and services company serving residential, commercial, industrial, and wholesale
customers in developed competitive markets in the United States and Canada.

(Millions, except natural gas sales volurnes)

Revenues
Cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power

Margins

Margin Detail
Electric and other margins
Natural gas margins

Operating and maintenance expense
Depreciation and amortization

Taxes other than income taxes
Operating income (loss)

Miscellaneous incorne (expense)
Interest expense

Minority interest

Other expense

Income. (loss) before taxes

Gross volumes (includes volumes both physically
delivered and net settled)

Wholesale electric sales volumes in kilowatt-hours

Retail electric sales volumes in kilowatt-hours

Wholesale natural gas sales volumes inbillion cubic feet
Retail natural gas sales volumes in billion cubic feat

Physical volumes (includes only transactions
settled physically for the periods shown)

Wholesale electric sales volumes in kilowatt-hours *

Retail electric sales volumes in kilowatt-hours *

Wholesale natural gas sales volumes in billion cubic fest *
Retall natural gas sales volumes. in billion cubic feet *

* Represents gross physical volumes,

Integrys Energy Group,

I T Near Ended December 31, |

Change in Change in
2008 Qver 2007 Over
2007 2006 2007 2006

$6,979.7 $5:159.1 395 % 353%
66,6756 4.978.0 44.5 % 34.1%
$ 3041 $1811 (71.8)% 67.9°%
$164.9 $:60.5 N/A 1726 %
$139.2 $120.6 (27.2Y% 154 %
$159.4 $81.5 14.0 % 95.6 %
4.4 94 0.7 % 53.2%
7.1 7.2 9% (1.4)%
123.2 83.0 N/A 48.4 %
0.3) (11.4) N/A 974 %
{13.5) (15.4) (10.4)% {12.3)%
0.1 3.8 -~ % 27 4%
(13.7) (23.0) (75.9)% (40.4%
$109.5 $60.0 N/A 825 %
132,623.6 58,794.9 32.1% 125.6 %
14:849.7 46,5541 12.3 % 126.6 %
4831 402.2 331 % 20.1-%
3688 3145 (8.0)% 17.3%
3,599.7 968.2 28.7 % 271.8%
14,584 4 4,565.6 13.6 % 219.4 %
4456 3735 335 % 19.3%
319.4 264.0 5.2 % 21.0%
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Revenue

2008 Compared with 2007:

® Revenues increased $2.8 billion in 2008 compared with 2007, primarily
due to increased volumes, (in part due to the merger with PEC in 2007)
and higher average sales prices in 2008. Average sales prices rose in
2008 due to large market price increases from January 1, 2008 through
June 30, 2008. Market prices began to dedline beginning in the third
quarter of 2008 and continued to decline through the end of the year
to levels below that of January 1, 2008. Integrys Energy Services
recognizes revenue at the time energy is delivered. As a result, Integrys
Energy Services is currently recognizing revenue based on the higher
market prices from contracts entered into earlier in the year.

2007 Compared with 2006:

& Yearover-year, revenues increased approximately $1.8 billion. The
increase was primarily due to increased volumes as a result of the
addition of the nonregulated energy operations of PEC and an average
increase in 2007 electric prices of over 10%. in addition to revenue and
volume contributions from the merger with PEC, retail electric sales
volumes and related revenue increased as a result of Integrys Energy
Services’ new retail electric product offerings to existing markets and
expansion into new retail electric markets. Wholesale electric sales
volumes and revenue increased as a result of the additional wholesale
origination transactions. Wholesale natural gas volumes increased as a
result of an increase in the profitability of wholesale origination
structured natural gas transactions throughout 2006 and into 2007.
Some of these transactions were entered into in prior periods for future
delivery; therefore, Integrys Energy Services saw an increase in volumes
in the periods in which these transactions settle. Retail natural gas
volumes also increased, driven by favorable pricing compared with
2006, which encouraged new and existing customers to enter into or
extend supply contracts with Integrys Energy Services.

Margins
Changes in commodity prices subject a portion of our nonregulated

operations to earnings volatility. Integrys Energy Services uses financial
instruments to economically hedge risks associated with physical
transactions. The financial instruments mitigate the impacts of significant
economic loss caused by fluctuations in market conditions, changing
commodity prices, volumetric exposure, and other associated risks.
Because derivative instruments utilized in these transactions may not
qualify, or are not designated, as hedges under GAAP, reported earnings
for the nonregulated energy operations segment include the changes in
the fair values of the derivative instruments. These values may change
significantly from peried to period and are reflected as unrealized gains
or losses within margin. However, on the other side of these transactions,
fluctuations in the fair value of the physical instruments that are subject
to the economic hedges do not impact margin until settlement, as they
do not meet the GAAP definition of derivative instruments.

Integrys Energy Services’ margin decreased $218.4 million from 2007 to
2008 and increased $123.0 million from 2006 to 2007. The table that
follows provides a summary of the significant items contributing to the
change in margin. "Other significant items” in the table below are
primarily related to timing of gain and loss recognition of certain
transactions and, prior to January 1, 2008, the settlement of the
derivative instruments used to protect the value of Section 29/45K
federal tax credits.

integrys Energy Group, Inc.

Increase (Decrease) in Margin in

(Millions, except
natural gas sales volumes)

 pooB 2007
Electric and other margins .
Realized gains on structured

origination contracts 5 62 $ 118
All other realized wholesale -
electric margin - 19.4) (21.6)
Realized retail electric margin ’ 281 15.9
Other significant items:
Retail and wholesale fair ,
value adjustments * (176.8) 70.8
Oil option activity %8 220
2005 liquidation of electric o
supply contract 08 5.5
Net increase (decrease) in -
electric and other margins {180.6) 104.4
Natural gas margins
Lower of cost or market o
inventory adjustments (603 6.1
Other realized natural gas margins - 80 o 14.1
Other significant items: -
Spot to forward differential 55  : ' 0.2)
Other fair value adjustments * 1090 10.8
Net increase {decrease) in o o
natural gas margins . (37.'8)‘/ 18.6
Net increase (decrease) in o .
Integrys Energy Services” margin $(218.4) $123.0

s R —

* For 2008, these two line items included a total of $11.5 million of gains resulting from the
adoption of Staterment of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurernents,” in the first quarter of 2008. See Note 21, "Fair Value,” for more information

Electric and Other Margins

Integrys Energy Services electric and other margins decreased

$180.6 miltion from 2007 to 2008 and increased $104.4 million from
2006 to 2007. The 2008 and 2007 electric and other margin included
the negative impact of $8.8 million and $15.2 million, respectively, of
amortization related to purchase accounting adjustments required as a
result of the merger with PEC. The following items were the most
significant contributors to the change in Integrys Energy Services’
electric and other margins.

Realized gains on structured origination contracts

8 Realized gains on structured origination transactions increased
$6.2 million, from $18.1 million in 2007 to $24.3 million in 2008.
Origination transactions are physical, customer-based agreements
with municipalities, merchant generators, cooperatives, and regulated
utilities. The increase was primarily due to continued growth in
existing markets with an emphasis on structured transactions with
small environmentally friendly generators.

# Realized gains on structured origination contracts increased
$11.8 million, from $6.3 million in 2006 to $18.1 million in 2007.
The increase was primarily due to continued growth in existing
markets in the Midwest and northeastern United States, as well as
expansion into the markets in the western United States.
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

All other realized wholesale electric margin

All other realized wholesale electric margin decreased $19.4 million
from 2007 to 2008. In general, realized margins are impacted by trading
activity in prior periods. Integrys Energy Services recognizes realized
margin when the contracts actually settle, which lag as much as 12 to
24 months from the time the contract was actually entered into. The
reduced volume of proprietary trading that began in 2007 continued to
reduce realized margin in 2008.

All other realized wholesale electric margin decreased $21.6 million
from 2006 to 2007. The decrease from 2006 to 2007 is due to the
overall reduced level of proprietary trading in 2007, due primarily to a
decrease in electric price volatility during the first three quarters of
2007, increased emphasis on structured electric transactions in 2007,
and the departure of several key traders in the third quarter of 2006.

Integrys Energy Services seeks to reduce market price risk and extract
additional value from its generation and energy contract portfolios
through various financial and physical instruments (such as forward
contracts, options, financial transmission rights, and capacity contracts).
Period-by-period variability in the margin contributed by Integrys
Energy Services' optimization strategies, generation facilities, and
trading activities is expected due to changing market conditions and
the timing associated with the settlement of these transactions. A
diverse mix of products and markets, combined with disciplined
execution and exit strategies, generally allows Integrys Energy Services
to generate economic value and earnings from these activities while
staying within the value-at-risk {VaR) limits authorized by Integrys Energy
Group's Board of Directors. For more information on VaR, see Item 3,
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.”

Realized retail electric margin

The realized retail electric margin increased $28.1 million from

$34.2 million in 2007 to $62.3 million in 2008. The change was primarily
due to the following:

B Anincrease of $19.5 million from operations in lllinois due to the
addition of new customers as a result of the PEC merger and a
reduced impact from purchase accounting in 2008.

& A $12.7 million increase due to expansion in the Mid-Atlantic region
and the resolution of certain regulatory issues in northern Maine.

m Partially offsetting these increases was a $3.4 million decrease from
operations in Texas. This reduction is a result of higher ancillary costs
in Texas and the effects of Hurricane lke, which disrupted the electric
infrastructure in Texas for a period of time, causing some of Integrys
Energy Services’ customers to be without electricity or take only a
fraction of their normal load during that period.

The realized retail electric margin increased $15.9 million from
$18.3 million in 2006 to $34.2 million in 2007. The change was primarily
due to the following:

m A $13.9 miflion increase related to operations in lliinois, driven by
the merger with PEC’s nonregulated business and the addition of
new customers due to the expiration of certain regulatory provisions
in the state in 2007 that effectively opened the market to
nonregulated energy suppliers.

® A $6.0 million increase related to operations in Texas, as a result of
further penetration into this market resulting from continued
marketing efforts. Retail offerings in Texas first began in the third
quarter of 2006.

m A $3.6 million increase related to operations in New England as new
customers were added due to an increased sales focus in this region.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

m Partially offsetting the increases discussed above was a $4.4 million
decrease related to Michigan operations as many customers
continued to return to utility suppliers as a result of high wholesale
energy prices and changes in utility tariffs, which continued to make
the Michigan energy market less competitive. Also offsetting these
increases was a $3.3 million decrease related to operations in the
state of New York, due to a change in the product mix offered to
customers in response to utility rate structure changes.

Retail and wholesale fair value adjustments

From 2007 to 2008, Integrys Energy Services' margin from electric retail
and wholesale fair value adjustments decreased $176.8 million, as it
recognized $137.4 million of non-cash unrealized losses related to
derivative instruments in 2008, compared with $39.4 million of non-cash
unrealized gains during 2007. From 2006 to 2007, margin from retail
and wholesale fair value adjustments increased $70.8 million, from
$31.4 million of non-cash unrealized losses in 2006 to $39.4 million of
non-cash unrealized gains in 2007.

The non-cash unrealized gains and losses resulted from the application of
GAAP derivative accounting rules to Integrys Energy Services' portfolio of
electric customer supply contracts, requiring that these derivative
instruments be adjusted to fair market value. The derivative instruments
are utilized to mitigate the price, volume, and ancillary risks associated
with related customer sales contracts. These customer sales contracts are
not adjusted to fair value, as they do not meet the definition of derivative
instruments under GAAP, creating an accounting mismatch. As such, the
non-cash unrealized gains and losses related to the customer supply
contracts will vary each period, with non-cash unrealized gains being
recognized in periods of increasing energy prices and non-cash unrealized
losses being recognized in periods of declining energy prices, and will
ultimately reverse when the related customer sales contracts settle.
Although energy prices rose approximately 20% in the first half of 2008,
they declined approximately 45% in the second half of the year, which led
to the recognition of large non-cash unrealized losses in 2008 on these
electric customer supply contracts. These unrealized losses will turnaround
in future years as the contracts settle. Our mark-to-market activity aiso
reflects increases in portfolio reserves in recognition of the increased risk
of credit losses and reduced market liquidity. Finally, our mark-to-market
activity was also negatively impacted as our short-term cost of borrowing
increased. The discount rate is a component of the fair value of our
derivative portfolio and, therefore, the current increased interest rates
resulted in a reduction in the fair value presented on the balance sheet.
In 2007, energy prices increased, resulting in unrealized gains.

Oil option activity

m  Oil option activity drove a $19.6 million decrease in electric and other
margins from 2007 to 2008. There was no activity related to these oil
options in 2008. Prior to 2008, oil options were utilized to protect the
value of a portion of Integrys Energy Services’ Section 29/45K federal
tax credits from 2005 to 2007. However, companies can no longer
generate tax credits from the production of synthetic fuel as the
provisions of Section 29/45K of the Internal Revenue Code expired
effective December 31, 2007. As a result, Integrys Energy Services
exercised substantially all of its remaining oil options in 2007.

®  Oil option activity drove a $22.0 million increase in electric and
other margins from 2006 to 2007. Net mark-to-market and realized
losses on oil options of $2.4 million were recognized in 2006,
compared with net mark-to-market and realized gains on oil options
of $19.6 million in 2007. These derivative instruments were not
designated as hedging instruments and, as a result, changes in the
fair value were recorded in earnings. The increase in the fair value of
these instruments in 2007 over 2006 reflects increased oil prices.
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2005 liquidation of electric supply contract

In the fourth quarter of 2005, an electricity supplier exiting the wholesale
market in Maine requested that Integrys Energy Services liquidate a firm
contract to buy power in 2006 and 2007. At that time, Integrys Energy
Services recognized an $8.2 million gain related to the liquidation of the
contract and entered into a new contract with another supplier for firm
power in 2006 and 2007 to supply its customers in Maine. The cost to
purchase power under the new contract was more than the cost under
the liquidated contract. The liquidation and subsequent replacement of
this contract resulted in a $0.9 million increase in realized wholesale
electric margins from 2007 to 2008 and a $5.5 million increase in realized
wholesale electric margins from 2006 to 2007. The replacement contract
increased the cost of purchased power needed to serve customers in
Maine by $6.4 million in 2006, compared with $0.9 million in 2007.
There was no impact on electric margin in 2008.

Natural Gas Margins

Integrys Energy Services' natural gas margins decreased $37.8 million
from 2007 to 2008 and increased $18.6 million from 2006 to 2007. The
2008 and 2007 natural gas margins included the negative impact of
$5.0 million and $6.1 million, respectively, of amortization related to
purchase accounting adjustments required as a result of the merger with
PEC. The following items were the most significant contributors to the
change in Integrys Energy Services’ natural gas margins.

Lower of cost or market inventory adjustments

The spot price of natural gas decreased significantly during the second
half of 2008 (below the average cost of natural gas in inventory which
Integrys Energy Services had acquired and injected earlier in 2008), which
resufted in a lower of cost or market adjustment, as required by GAAPR.
This adjustment contributed a $160.3 million decrease in non-cash
realized natural gas margins from 2007 to 2008, and a $6.1 million
decrease in non-cash realized natural gas margins from 2006 to 2007.
The negative impact on realized margin related to these inventory
adjustments was offset by unrealized gains recognized in 2008 and 2007
on derivative instruments utilized to mitigate the price risk on natural gas
inventory underlying natural gas storage transactions (see “Other fair
value adjustments” below).

Other realized natural gas margins

Other realized natural gas margins increased $8.0 million, from
$107.6 million in 2007, to $115.6 million in 2008, primarily related
to realized gains on wholesale natural gas storage transactions.

In 2008 over 2007, Integrys Energy Services increased its storage
withdrawals, which drove the year-overyear increase in other realized
natural gas margins. In addition, Integrys Energy Services placed
greater emphasis on structured wholesale natural gas transactions in
2008 in existing markets, which also contributed to the increase.
These structured transactions involve serving customers such as
regulated utilities, pipelines, retail marketers, and other large end
users of natural gas.

Other realized natural gas margins increased $14.1 million, from

$93.6 million in 2006, to $107.6 million in 2007. The majority of this
increase, $5.7 million, was driven by margin contributed by the
nonregulated retail natural gas marketing operations added with the PEC
merger and improved supply optimization, as Integrys Energy Services
was able to secure lower supply costs for firm sales commitments to retail
natural gas customers in Ohio and Hlfinois. The remaining increase in
realized natural gas margins was driven by the nonregulated wholesale
natural gas marketing operations added with the PEC merger.

Spot to forward differential

Integrys Energy Services experiences earnings volatility associated
with the natural gas storage cycle, which runs annually from April
through March of the next year. Generally, injections of natural gas
into storage inventory take place in the summer months and
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natural gas is withdrawn from storage in the winter months, Integrys
Energy Services’ policy is to hedge the value of natural gas storage
with contracts in the over-the-counter and futures markets, effectively
locking in a margin on the natural gas in storage. However, fair market
value hedge accounting rules require the natural gas in storage to be
marked-to-market using spot prices, while the future sales contracts
are marked-to-market using forward prices. When the spot price of
natural gas changes disproportionately to the forward price of natural
gas, Integrys Energy Services experiences volatility in its earnings.
Consequently, earnings volatility may occur within the contract period
for natural gas in storage. The accounting treatment does not impact
the underlying cash flows or economics of these transactions.

® The natural gas storage cycle had a positive $5.5 million impact
on natural gas margins from 2007 to 2008. There was no material
impact on margin as a result of the natural gas storage cycle in
2007 compared with a $5.5 million positive impact in 2008. At
December 31, 2008, the market value of natural gas in storage
was not significantly different than the market value of future sales
contracts related to the 2008/2009 natural gas storage cycle.

B The natural gas storage cycle had a negative $0.2 million impact
on natural gas margins from 2006 to 2007. There was no material
impact on margin as a result of the natural gas storage cycle in
2007 compared with a $0.2 million positive impact in 2006. At
December 31, 2007, the market value of natural gas in storage
was $5.6 million less than the market value of future sales
contracts (net unrealized loss) related to the 2007/2008 natural
gas storage cycle.

Qther fair value adjustments

Other derivative accounting required fair value adjustments primarily
relate to changes in the fair market value of contracts utilized to
mitigate market price risk related to certain natural gas storage
contracts, as well as basis swaps utilized to mitigate market price risk
associated with natural gas transportation contracts and certain natural
gas sales contracts. Earnings volatility results from the application of
derivative accounting rules to the transactions used to mitigate price
risk (requiring that these derivative instruments be reflected at fair
market value), without a corresponding offset related to the physical
natural gas storage contracts, the natural gas transportation contracts,
or the natural gas sales contracts (as these contracts are not considered -
derivative instruments). Therefore, there is no gain or loss recognized
on the natural gas storage contracts (unless the inventory underlying
these storage contracts becomes subject to lower of cost or market
adjustments, as was the case in 2008, and to a lesser extent in 2007
and 2006 as well), the transportation contracts, or the customer sales
contracts until physical settlement of these contracts occurs.

in 2008, the impact of these fair value adjustments drove a

$109.0 million increase in the natural gas margins as unrealized gains
on these instruments were $147.6 million in 2008, compared with
unrealized gains of $38.6 million in 2007.

In 2007, the impact of these fair value adjustments drove a $10.8 million
increase in the natural gas margins as unrealized gains on these
instruments were $38.6 million in 2007, compared with unrealized gains
of $27.8 million in 2006.

Qperating Income {Loss)

2008 Compared with 2007:

Operating income at Integrys Energy Services decreased $241.5 million,
from $123.2 miflion in 2007 to a $118.3 million operating loss in 2008.
This decrease resulted primarily from the $218.4 million decrease in
margin discussed above. In addition, there was a $22.3 million increase
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in operating and maintenance expense. Operating and maintenance
expense increased from $159.4 million in-2007 to $181.7 million in
2008, driven largely by a $9.1 million increase in bad debt expense,
$7.3 million of which resulted from the bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers
in the third quarter of 2008, a $5.1 million increase in broker
commissions as a result of higher transaction volumes, and higher
employee benefit costs.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Operating income at Integrys Energy Services increased $40.2 million,
from $83.0 million in 2006, to $123.2 million in 2007, driven by the
$123.0 million increase in margin discussed above, partially offset by a
$77.9 million increase in operating and maintenance expense. The
increase in operating and maintenance expense was driven by higher
payroll and benefit costs related to additional employees required as a
result of continued business expansion activities at Integrys Energy
Services (the most significant of which related to the merger of PEC's
nonregulated operation into Integrys Energy Services). A $9.0 million
pre-tax gain on the 2006 sale of WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC, $7.7 million
of costs to achieve merger synergies and additional costs related to
plant outages of $2.6 million in 2007 also contributed to the increase in
operating and maintenance expense.

Cther Expense

2008 Compared with 2007:

Other expense at Integrys Energy Services decreased $10.4 million, from
$13.7 million in 2007 to $3.3 million in 2008. This decrease resulted
primarily from an increase in miscellaneous income of $9.0 million, driven
by a $13.8 million decrease in pre-tax net losses related to Integrys

Holding Company and Other Segment Operations

(Millions)

Operating loss

Other income (expense)

Income {loss) before taxes

Qperating Loss

2008 Compared with 2007:

Operating loss at the Holding Company and Other segment improved
$11.1 million during 2008 compared with 2007. The decrease in the
operating loss was driven by:

® Reductions in operating expenses related to consulting fees,
compensation and benefits, and contractor costs at the holding
company.

# Operating income of $1.9 million generated at IBS, which related to
return on capital included in its service charges beginning in 2008.

B Partially offsetting the decrease in operating loss, was a $6.5 million
increase in the year-over-year operating loss related to external costs
to achieve merger synergies associated with the PEC merger. This
increase occurred primarily because in March 2007 all external
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Energy Services' former investment in a synthetic fuel facility. This
increase in miscellaneous income was partially offset by a decrease of
$1.5 million in foreign currency gains related to Integrys Energy Services’
Canadian subsidiaries and a $3.7 million decrease in interest and
dividend income on margin deposits.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Other expense decreased $9.3 million, from $23.0 million in 2006,

to $13.7 million in 2007. The decrease resulted primarily from a

$5.7 million decrease in pre-tax net losses recognized year-over-year
related to Integrys Energy Services’ investment in a synthetic fuel
facility. Integrys Energy Services took less production from this facility in
2007 compared with 2006. A $3.8 million increase in foreign currency
gains at Integrys Energy Services’ Canadian subsidiaries in 2007, which
was offset by related losses in gross margin, also contributed to the
decrease. These transactions are substantially hedged from an
economic perspective, resulting in no significant impact on income
loss) available for common shareholders.

Minority Interest

2007 Compared with 2006:

A decrease of $3.7 million in minority interest related to Integrys Energy
Services’ synthetic fuel operations. in 2007, Integrys Energy Services’
partner elected to stop receiving production from the synthetic fuel
facility and, therefore, did not share in losses from this facility.

Change in Change in
2008 Over 2007 Over
2007 2006 2007 2006
$(11.8) $(14.1) (94.1% (16.3)%
{12.3) 14.3 N/A N/A
$(24.1) $0.2 N/A N/A

costs to achieve merger synergies incurred from July 2006 through
March 2007 were allocated from the Holding Company and Other
segment (where they were initially recorded) to the other reportable
segments, which are the beneficiaries of the synergy savings
resulting from these costs. This resulted in lower operating expenses
at the Holding Company and Other segment during 2007.

2007 Compared with 2006:

The operating loss at the Holding Company and Other segment
decreased $2.3 million during 2007 compared with 2006. The change
was driven-by a $1.7 million decrease in operating expenses, primarily
related to the reallocation of external costs to achieve merger synergies
associated with the PEC merger incurred from July 2006 through March
2007. In March 2007, all external costs to achieve were reallocated from
the Holding Company and Other segment (where they were initially
recorded) to other reportable segments, which are the beneficiaries of
the synergy savings resulting from the costs to achieve.
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Other Income (Expense)

2008 Compared with 2007:
Other income increased $25.2 million and was driven by:

® A $15.6 million increase in income from Integrys Energy Group's
approximate 34% ownership interest in ATC. Integrys Energy Group
recorded $66.1 million of pre-tax equity earnings from ATC during
2008, compared with $50.5 million of pre-tax equity earnings during
2007. ATC’s earnings continue to increase due to a significant capital
expansion program.

B A $10.5 million decrease in external interest expense due to lower
interest rates and lower average short-term borrowings used for
working capital requirements at Integrys Energy Group. A portion of
the proceeds received from the sale of PEP in September 2007 was
used to pay down the short-term debt.

2007 Compared with 2006:
Other income decreased $26.6 million and was driven by:

B A $31.8 million increase in external interest expense, driven by
additional borrowings assumed in the merger with PEC, as well as
an increase in short-term and long-term borrowings required to
fund the acquisitions of the natural gas distribution operations in
Michigan and Minnesota, and transaction and transition costs related
to the merger with PEC.

® A $6.2 million gain on the sale of Integrys Energy Group's one-third
interest in Guardian Pipeline, LLC in April 2006 also contributed to
the decrease in year-over-year earnings.

B The decrease in other income was partially offset by an $11.5 million
increase in earnings from Integrys Energy Group's approximate
34% ownership interest in ATC. Integrys Energy Group recorded
$50.5 million of pre-tax equity earnings from ATC during the year
ended December 31, 2007, compared with $39.0 million for the
same period in 2006.

Provision for Income Taxes

, ] 'é’aya’r”Ended December 31, I

2007 2006

Effective Tax Rate 32.2% 22.9%

The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily driven by the impact
of large permanent tax deductions pertaining to items that exceeded
the related book expense being applied to the lower income before
taxes in 2008, compared with 2007. In addition, in 2008 we recognized
$10.0 million of investment tax credits related to solar projects
completed in the fourth quarter of 2008. These were offset by the
reduction in Section 29/45K tax credits in 2008 due to the December 31,
2007, expiration of Section 29/45K of the Internal Revenue Code that
made tax credits available from the production and sale of synthetic fuel.
In 2007, our ownership in the synthetic fuel operation resulted in
recognizing the tax benefit of Section 29/45K federal tax credits of

$13.6 million compared with $0.8 million of Section 29/45K tax credits
recognized in 2008.

The 2007 increase in the effective tax rate was driven by a decrease in
Section 29/45K federal tax credits recognized in 2007 compared with
2006. The decrease in Section 29/45K federal tax credits recognized
was driven by the impact of high oil prices on our ability to realize the
benefit of Section 29/45K federal tax credits. Section 29/45K federal tax

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

credits recognized from the production and sale of synthetic fuel were
$13.6 million in 2007, compared with $29.5 million in 2006.

Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

2008 Compared with 2007:

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax, decreased
$68.6 million in 2008, compared with 2007.

In the third quarter of 2008, Integrys Energy Services sold its subsidiary
Mid-American Power, LLC, which owned the Stoneman generation
facility, located in Wisconsin. The historical revenue, expenses, and
effects of disposing of this facility were not significant. In the fourth
quarter of 2008, Integrys Energy Services recognized an additional
$3.8 million after-tax gain on the sale of this facility in discontinued
operations when a previously contingent payment was paid by the
buyer. This contingent payment resulted from legislation that passed in
the fourth quarter of 2008, which extended the production tax credits
available for certain biomass facilities.

During 2007, $58.5 million of after-tax income from discontinued
operations was recognized related to PEP. This included an after-tax
gain of $7.6 million on the sale. In 2008, discontinued operations reflect
the $0.8 million impact of tax adjustments related to the 2007 PEP sale.

During 2007, WPS Niagara Generation, LLC recognized after-tax
income of $14.8 million from discontinued operations, primarily related
to the $14.7 million after-tax gain on the sale of this facility.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax, increased $66.0 million,
from after-tax income of $7.3 million in 2006 to after-tax income of
$73.3 million in 2007.

® In September 2007, Integrys Energy Group completed the sale of
PEP for approximately $87%.1 million. Post-closing adjustments in
the amount of $9.9 million were settled in February 2008 related to
this sale, which reduced the sale price to $869.2 million. These post-
closing adjustments were funded through other current liabilities at
December 31, 2007. During the year ended December 31, 2007,
$58.5 million of income from discontinued operations was
recognized related to PEP, which included an after-tax gain of
$7.6 million on the sale.

& Discontinued operations, net of tax, related to WPS Niagara
Generation, LLC (Niagara), which was sold in January 2007,
increased $14.4 million, from income of $0.4 million in 2006 to
income of $14.8 million in 2007. The increase in income generated
from Niagara was mostly due to a $14.7 million after-tax gain on the
sale of the facility.

® Partially offsetting these increases were discontinued operations
related to Sunbury Generation, LLC (Sunbury). Income from
discontinued operations related to Sunbury was $6.9 million for
the period January 1, 2006, through the date of sale in July 2006,
including a $12.5 million after-tax gain on the sale of this facility.

For more information on the discontinued operations discussed
above, see Note 3, "Discontinued Operations” and Note 24,
“Segments of Business.”

BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents increased $212.9 million, from $41.2 million
at December 31, 2007, to $254.1 million at December 31, 2008. For a
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- MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

detailed explanation for the change in the cash and cash equivalents
balance, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Net accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues increased
$285.3 million (15.3%), from $1,870.0 million at December 31, 2007, to
$2,155.3 million at December 31, 2008, primarily due to the following:

m  Net accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues at Integrys
Energy Services increased $223.6 million (20.9%), driven primarily by
an increase in electric and natural gas revenues in the fourth quarter
of 2008, compared with the same period in 2007, due mainly to
higher volumes sold.

®  Net accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues at PGL
increased $102.2 million (34.2%), driven primarily by an increase in
revenues in the fourth quarter of 2008, compared with the same
period in 2007. The increase in revenues was primarily due to higher
natural gas prices.

m  These increases were partially offset by a $72.2 million (22.1%)
decrease in WPS's net accounts receivable and accrued unbilled
revenues, primarily due to an $82.3 million receivable at
December 31, 2007, from ATC related to the transmission facilities
required to support Weston 4 that WPS funded on ATC's behalf.
WPS received payment for the ATC receivable in 2008. This
decrease was partially offset by a $16.2 million year-over-year
increase in accrued unbilled revenues.

inventories increased $69.5 million (10.5%), from $663.4 million at
December 31, 2007, to $732.9 million at December 31, 2008. The
inventory balance at WPS increased $33.5 million (41.2%), driven by a
$22.2 million (43.4%) increase in natural gas in storage due to an
increase in natural gas prices year-over-year, and an increase in fossil
fuel inventory of $11.3 million (37.3%), primarily due to an increase in
coal prices and an increase in coal quantities, related to Weston 4
becoming operational in June 2008. PGLs inventory increased

$26.2 million (30.9%) due to an increase in natural gas prices and
volumes year-over-year.

At December 31, 2008, compared to December 31, 2007, total assets
from risk management activities increased $1,682.4 million and total
liabilities from risk management activities increased $1,767.5 million.
The increase in assets and liabilities from risk management activities was
driven by changes in the fair values of the underlying derivative
contracts, driven by extremely volatile energy prices in 2008. Total
liabilities from risk management activities also increased at PGL and
NSG, primarily due to changes in the fair values of the underlying
derivative contracts.

Total regulatory assets increased $444.8 million (35.8%), from

$1,244.0 million at December 31, 2007, to $1,688.8 million at
December 31, 2008. The regulatory asset related to pension and other
postretirement related items increased $412.8 million, primarily related
to an increase in the unfunded status of the pension and other
postretirement benefit plans due to decreases in the value of plan
assets during 2008. Also contributing to the increase was the regulatory
asset related to derivatives, which increased $127.6 million year-over-
year, due to an increase in PGLs and NSG's net risk management
liabilities arising from changes in natural gas prices. Partially offsetting
these increases was the regulatory asset related to environmental
remediation costs, which decreased $77.7 million year-over-year, mainly
due to PGL collecting these costs in rates. See Note 7, “Regulatory
Assets and Liabilities, " for more information.

Net property, plant, and equipment increased $309.5 million (6.9%),

from $4,463.8 million at December 31, 2007, to $4,773.3 million at
December 31, 2008, due primarily to the following:

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

m  Net property, plant, and equipment at WPS increased $151.8 million.
Capital expenditures in 2008 were $275.4 million, in part due to
$71.3 million related to the construction of the Crane Creek Wind
Farm, $55.6 million related to natural gas service laterals to the
Guardian I natural gas transmission pipeline, $48.0 million related to
the construction of Weston 4, $12.3 million related to the purchase
of new line transformers, and $12.1 million related to electric and
natural gas service for new and existing customers. The increase due
to capital expenditures was partially offset by depreciation and
amortization expense of $99.5 million in 2008.

m  Net property, plant, and equipment at PGL increased $54.5 million,
primarily due to capital expenditures of $113.3 million, partially
offset by depreciation and amortization expense of $67.4 million.
Capital expenditures in 2008 related mainly to the natural gas
distribution systems.

@ Net property, plant, and equipment at Integrys Energy Services
increased $47.4 million, primarily due to capital expenditures related
to solar energy and landfill gas projects.

Accounts payable increased $202.5 million (15.2%), from $1,331.8 million
at December 31, 2007, to $1,534.3 million at December 31, 2008.
Accounts payable at Integrys Energy Services increased $252.8 million,
primarily due to an increase in the volume of natural gas borrowed. This
increase was partially offset by a $62.8 million year-over-year decrease
in accounts payable at WPS driven by the completion of Weston 4,
which became commercially operational in June 2008. WPS paid
contractors related to work performed at Weston 4 during 2008 as
these contracts were completed and closed out, and purchased power
decreased, mainly as a result of Weston 4 becoming operational.

Detailed explanations for changes in the short-term and long-term debt
balances year-over-year are included in Note 11, “Short-Term Debt and
Lines of Credit,” and Note 12, “Long-Term Debt.”

Environmental remediation liabilities decreased $65.0 million (9.2%),
from $705.6 million at December 31, 2007, to $640.6 million at
December 31, 2008. The decrease related mainly to expenditures for
manufactured gas plant remediation at PGL. See Note 15,
“Commitments and Contingencies,” for more information.

The $388.6 million year-over-year increase in long-term pension and
other postretirement liabilities and the $101.4 million year-over-year
decrease in pension and other postretirement assets were primarily
related to a decrease in the value of plan assets during 2008 related to
losses on investments, which caused an increase in the unfunded status
of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We believe that our cash balances, liquid assets, operating cash flows,
access to equity capital markets and available borrowing capacity
provide adequate resources to fund ongoing operating requirements
and future capital expenditures related to expansion of existing
businesses and development of new projects. Qur borrowing costs can
be impacted by short-term and long-term debt ratings assigned by
independent credit rating agencies. Our operating cash flows and
access to capital markets can be impacted by macroeconomic factors
outside of our control.

Due to unprecedented volatility within the global financial markets
beginning in the second half of 2008, integrys Energy Group has been
exposed to increased interest costs and challenges, at times, accessing
short-term capital markets. Due to disruptions in the commercial paper
markets, Integrys Energy Group made draws under its syndicated
revolving credit agreements for funds that would normally have been
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borrewed in the commercial paper market, and $300 million of these
barrowings were outstanding at December 31, 2008.

Operating Cash Flows
2008 Compared with:2007:

Net cash used for opser"atinq activities was $250.0'million in 2008,
compared with net cash provided by dpeérating activities of
$238.5 million in 2007, The $488.5 million year-overyear incraase
in cash used for operating activities was. driven by:

w - A $498.2 million decrease i cash-provided by accounts receivable
collections; as colderweather conditions led to higher natural gas
throughput volumes in the fourth quarter 2008, compared with the
same guarterin 2007, cantributing to higher actounts receivable
balances. Also contributing to higher accounts receivable balandes,
integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries, primarily Integrys Energy
Sepvices, hatl cash collateral paymmt$ cutstanding at December 31,
2008, thatwere $232.9 millior higher than cash collateral payrments
outstanding at December 37, 9007, The increase in cash collateral
payments was driven by large mark-to-market fosses incurred by
Integrys Energy Services during the latter part of 2008, dueto
declining prices, as discussed in rmiore detail in “Restlts of
Operations={ntegrys Erergy Services” Operations.”

® A $139 Umillion increase in cashiused for natural gas inventory:
purchases dile to an increase i the average price of natutal gas
during the summer of 2008 (wher natural gas is generally Injected
intoinventory), compared with the same period in 2007,

B An $88.7 million decreass'in net refunds of requlatory assets and
liabilities, driven by e decrease in the refund to ratepayers in 2008,
compared with 2007, of proceeds WPS received from the liguidation
of the nenqualified decommissioning trust fund apon the sale of
Kewaunee.

2007 Compared with 2006:

During 2007, net cash provided by aperating activities was $238.5 million,
compared with §72.9 million in 2006: The $165.6 million increase in et

cash provided by operat ng activities was.driven by a $64.8 million
decrease in working capital réguiremerits year-overyear Jtis important
to note that changes in working capital balances at February 21, 2007,
as a result of the PEC mierger are not incorporated in the Cwmahdated
Statement of Cash Flows; as the merger wasa noncash transaction,
Only PEC changes in working capital from the merger date td
Decamber 31, 2007 are:included inverntory levels at Integrys Energy
Services increased from Decarmber 31, 20086, to December 31, 2007,
but this change was less than the increase from December 31, 2005, 1o
December 31,2006, diiving the majority of the decrease in working

apital feqa'rc\mmts Integrys Energy Services continued to see growth

nits natural gas business i both new-and existing markets, The year:
overyear change i natural gas i inventories at the regulated utifities was
not sighificant. The remaining increase in net cash provided by
operating activities was diiven by a vearoveryear increase in income
available for common shareholders: ;

Investing Cash Flows
2008 Comipared with 2007:

Net cash used for investing activities was $452.2 mulhon in 2008,
compared with $451.5 million in 2007. The $0.7 million. year-overyear
incresse in cash used for investing activities was primarily driven by 4
4:140 2 mnlhon increase rw ca%h used ‘Fm” capital expenditures {dmm ss@d

Integrys Enerdy Group, Inc:

below); partially offset by the reimbursement of $99.7 million from ATC,
related to the construction of the transmission facilities required to

support Weston 4, and a $15.5 million yearoveryear increase in cash
proceads received from the sale of property, plant; and equipment.

2007 Compared with 2006

Net cash used for investing activities was $451.5 million in.2007,
compared with $1,030.1 tmillion in 2006. The $578:6 million decrease
wag-driven by $659.3 million ot-cash used by lntegrys Energy Group to
acquire natural gas operations in Michigan and Minnesota in 2006. Alsc
contributing $44.0 million to the decredse in et cash used for investing
activities in 2007 was WPS's !iquédat%on of t’ﬂ@ cash that was deposited
into ‘an escrow aceount in-2006, Which was used for the payment of the
outstanding principal balance of first mo'tgaqe bonds i danuary: 2007
{cliscussed below in significant finanding activities). Partially offsetting
these decreases were $58.4 million of proceeds received from the sale
of eur investment in Guardian Pipeliie LLC and WPS E51 Gas Storage,
LLG in 2006 and a $50.6 millior: year-over-year increase i capital
expenditures (discussed below),

ital Exgen&itureﬁ
Capital expenditures by business segment for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, &md ?006 wete as follows:

Natura ges utility
ntegrygimrgy Services

T

Integivs Energy Group ;;;%3?’2,6 .
The increase in capital expenditires at the patural gas utility segmentin
2008 compared with 2007 was primarily due to any increase in capital
expenditures at PGL and NSG due tothe fact that they wera rot
acquired until February 21, 2007 .45 well a5 construction of the natural
gas lateral infrastructure that will connect WPSs natural gas distribution
system to the Guardian H matural gas pipeling. The increase in capital
e»«ip@nditui’es at Integrys Energy Senvices in 2008 compared with 2007
Was prfman ly due to solar energy projects as well as the constriiction of
a pipeline that will transport methane das produced at a fandfill for use
ata ciwmncal piam as a r@pImammat fczr natum! gas. ,

The deu«;ase in Ccamia @xp@ndiwr@s at the etm’mc utility in 2{}(‘)1’
compared with 2006 was mainly due to a decrease in capital
expendityres associated with the construction of Weston 4. The
increase in capital expenditires at the natural gas utility was primarily
driven by capital requirements of PGL and NSG, which were acquired in
the PEC merger on Febriary 21, 2007, Capital expenditures in 2007 for
PGL and NSG related mainly to the naium! gas distribution systems.

The increase in capital expenditures at Intedrys Enerdy. Services was
dueto Lapﬁa required to open new offices in Colorado, Michigan, and
Washington, 2.2, aswell as to move the Chicago office; jmp rovamenits
atvarous generation faciliies; new systems imfraféftm&ure;:/ahd the
Winnebago Energy Center landfill ges profect. The increase in capital
expenditures at the Holding (‘ompaw and Other segmem was driven
by the purchase of g corporate alrplane

?%r‘e&zmémgﬁash Flows
2008 Compared with 2007:

Net cash provided by financing activities was $911.3 million in 2008,
compared with net cash’ used for fmammg activities of $459.2 million
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in 2007. In 2007, integrys Energy Group was able to pay down short-
term debt with a portion of the proceeds received from the sale of PEP.
In 2008, proceeds were required to fund higher year-over-year working
capital requirements.

2007 Compared with 2006:

Net cash used for financing activities was $459.2 million in 2007,
compared with net cash provided by financing activities of $891.7 million
in 2006. The $1.4 billion change was driven by $458.0 million of short-
term debt borrowings during 2006, compared with the repayment of
$463.7 million of short-term debt in 2007. In 2007, Integrys Energy Group
was able to pay down short-term debt with a portion of the proceeds
received from the sale of PEP. The remaining net change in financing
activity was driven by a $321.8 million decrease in long-term debt
issuances year-over-year and a $119.0 million year-over-year decrease in
common stock issued. Short-term borrowings in 2006 and the long-term
debt and stock issuances in 2006 were used primarily for the acquisitions
of the natural gas distribution operations in Michigan and Minnesota. An
$81.0 million increase in dividends paid in 2007, compared with 2006,
was driven by an increase in shares outstanding and higher dividend
rates. These items were partially offset by net natural gas loan proceeds
at Integrys Energy Services of $34.4 million in 2007, compared with the
net repayment of $68.4 million of natural gas loans during 2006. An
increase in natural gas spreads made it more conducive to enter into
natural gas loan deals in 2007 compared with 2006.

Significant Financing Activities

Dividends paid increased in 2008 compared with 2007. In February
2008, Integrys Energy Group increased its quarterly common stock
dividend to 67 cents per share. The quarterly common stock dividend
was increased from 57.5 cents per share to 66 cents per share in 2007,

Integrys Energy Group had outstanding commercial paper borrowings
of $552.9 million and $308.2 million at December 31, 2008, and

2007, respectively. Integrys Energy Group had short-term notes
payable outstanding of $181.1 million as of December 31, 2008,

and $10.0 million as of December 31, 2007, respectively.

Integrys Energy Group had borrowings under revolving credit

facilities of $475.0 million and $150.0 million as of December 31, 2008,
and 2007, respectively. See Note 11, “Short-Term Debt and Lines

of Credit” for more information.

in December 2008, WPS issued $125.0 million of Series 6.375%, 7-year
Senior Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance of the Senior Notes
were used to fund construction costs and capital additions, retire short-
term indebtedness, and for general corporate utility purposes.

In November 2008, Integrys Energy Group entered into an approximate
$156 million short-term debt agreement extending through March 2009
to finance its working capital requirements and for general corporate
purposes. The agreement requires principal and interest payments to
be made in yen. Integrys Energy Group entered into two forward
foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate
variability of these principal and interest payments.

In November 2008, integrys Energy Group entered into a $250.0 million
revolving credit agreement to finance its working capital requirements
and for general corporate purposes, which extends to May 2009.

In November 2008, PGL issued $45.0 million of Series SS, 7.0%, 5-year
First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds and $5 million of Series 1T, 8.0%,
10-year First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds. The net proceeds from
the issuance of these bonds were used to reduce short-term debt and
for general corporate utility purposes.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

In November 2008, NSG issued $6.5 million of Series O, 7.0%, 5-year
First Mortgage Bonds. The net proceeds from the issuance of the First
Mortgage Bonds were used for general corporate utility purposes.

On Aprit 17, 2008, PGL completed the purchase of $51.0 million of
tllinois Development Finance Authority Series 20030 Bonds, due
October 1, 2037, and backed by PGL Series PP Bonds. Upon
repurchase, the Auction Rate Mode was converted from a 35-day mode
to a weekly variable rate mode. This transaction was treated as a
repurchase of the Series PP Bonds by PGL. As a result, the liability
related to the Series PP Bonds was extinguished. The Company intends
to hold the bonds while it continues to monitor the tax-exempt market
and assess potential remarketing or refinancing opportunities.

Prior to January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Group issued new shares of
common stock under its Stock Investment Plan and under certain stock-
based employee benefit and compensation plans. As a result of the
plans, equity increased $45.7 million and $25.0 million in 2007 and
2006, respectively. During 2008, Integrys Energy Group purchased
shares of its common stock on the open market to meet the
requirements of its Stock Investment Plan and certain stock-based
employee benefit and compensation plans. Integrys Energy Group did
not repurchase any existing common stock during 2007 or 2006,

In November 2007, WPS issued $125.0 million of 5.65%, 10-year
Senior Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance were used to fund
construction costs and capital additions, retire short-term indebtedness,
and for general corporate utility purposes.

On December 14, 2006, the Village of Weston, Wisconsin, issued

$22.0 million of 3.95% Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds and
loaned the proceeds from the sale of the bonds to WPS. In return, WPS
issued $22.0 million of 3.95% Senior Notes, due in 2013, to the Village
of Weston. At December 31, 2006, the $22.0 million of proceeds
received from the Village of Weston were classified as restricted cash. In
January 2007, WPS used the restricted cash to repay the outstanding
principal balance of its 6.90% First Mortgage Bonds which originally
were to mature in 2013,

In December 2006, WPS issued $125.0 million of 5.55% 30-year Senior
Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance were used to fund
construction costs and capital additions, retire short-term indebtedness,
and for general corporate utility purposes.

On December 1, 2006, Integrys Energy Group issued $300.0 million of
Junior Subordinated Notes. Interest has been fixed at 6.22% through
the use of forward-starting interest rate swaps for the first ten years,
after which, the interest rate will float for the remainder of the term.

Credit Ratings

Integrys Energy Group uses internally generated funds, commercial
paper borrowings, and other short-term borrowings to satisfy most of its
capital requirements. Integrys Energy Group also periodically issues
long-term debt and common stock to reduce short-term debt, maintain
desired capitalization ratios, and fund future growth.

WPS, PEC, and PGL have their own commercial paper borrowing
programs. WPS periodically issues long-term debt and receives equity
contributions from Integrys Energy Group to reduce short-term debt,
fund future growth, and maintain capitalization ratios as authorized by
the PSCW.

PGL and NSG periodically issue long-term debt in order to reduce
short-term debt, refinance maturing securities, maintain desired
capitalization ratios, and fund future growth. The specific forms of long-
term financing, amounts, and timing depend on business needs, market
conditions, and other factors.
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The current credit ratings for Integrys Energy Group, WPS, PEC, PGL,
and NSG are listed in the table below.

Credit Raﬁngs

Integrys Energy Group
lssuer credit r"atimg :
Senior unsecured debt’
Commercial paper
Credlit facility

- Jurjiéf subordinated notes

WPS
Issuer credit rating
First mortgage bonds
Senior secured debit
Preferred stock
Commercial paper
Credit facility

PEC . =
Issuer credit rating.
Senior unsecured debt

POL .
{ssuer credit 'v%x'r,irjg :
Senior secured debt
“Commercial paper
NSG
Issuer credit rating
~ Senior secured debt

change, and each rating should be evaluated independently of any
other rating.

Credit ratings are not recomimendations ta buy and are subject to

On November 25,2008, Standard & Poor’s revised the outlook on
inteqirys Energy Group and all-of its subsidiaries to negative from stable:
The revised outlook reflects pressure on'the current credit ratings given
Integrys Energy Group's liguidity needs for its nonregulated busiviess, as
well as cash flow measures that have not met Standard & Poor’s
expectations since the PEC merger.

On March 13,2008, Standard & Poor’s raised the senior secured debt
rating for WPS one notch fron A to A Thenew rating was a result of a
review and changes made to the collateral coverage requiretmnents
Standard and Poors uses when assigning recovery ratings to United
States Utility First Mortgage Bands:

in:Decernber 2007, Standard & Poor's and Moody's withdrew the
ratings assigned to PECs commercial paper at the request of
Integrys Energy Group.

On November 13,2007, Standard: & Poor's revised the outlook-on
integiys Energy Group and all of its subsidiaries to stable fronnegative.
Standard & Poor's outlook had been negative since February 21, 2007,
for all Integrys Energy Group comgianies; as discussed below: The
revised outlook reflected Integrys Energy: Group's progress to improve
its financial position and:business profiles since its one=notch
downgrade on February 21,2007 0n November 13, 2007, Standerd &
Paors also reaffirmied its Alrating on WPS's senior secured debt,

Integrys Energy Groug, Ihe,

On September 6, 2007, Standard & Poor's ralsed the senior secured
debt for NSG one notch from A: to A The new rating was the result of
a-review and changes made to the collateral coverage requiremants
Standard and Poor’s uses wheh assigiing recovery ratings to United
States Utility First Mortgage Bonds.

On Felbsruary 21, 2007, Standard & Poor’s lowered the corparate credit
rating on Integrys Energy Group tor A from A and removed it from
GreditWatch with negative implications; Standard & Poor'salso lowered
integrys Energy Group's unsectred ratings to BBB+ from A and all other
issue-specific ratings by ane notch: Standard & Poor’s stated that the
ratings actions were due to concemns related to plans to expand its energy
marketing business, the dividend requirements resulting from the PEC
mergeér, moderate capital expenditire requirements, lower than expected
performance at MGU andl MERC, Uncertainty regarding future raterelief,
and full integration of the newly acquired PEC utilities. At the same time,
Standard & Poor's lowerad all WPS's tssuespedific tatings by orie notch as
they stated "WPSs liguidity is being pressured by its ongoing censtruction
program.”’-Standard & Poor’s alfirmed all PEC, PGL, and N5G ratings.
Staridard: & Poor’s autlook for allintegrys Energy Group related companies
was negative pending successful integration of recent acquisitions.

On February 21, 2007, Moody’s downgraded the senior unsecured
rating of Integrys Energy Group to A3 from A1, the bank credit facility
to A3 from Al the commerclal paper fating to Prime-2 from Prime-1;
andl the Junior Subordinated Notes to Baal from A2, Moody’s also
downgraded WPS's senior secured rating to Aa3 from AaZ, its senior
unsecured bank credit facility to A1 from Aa3, and its preferred stock to
A3 drom A2 and confirmed WPSk commercial paper rating at-Prime=1;
At the same time, Moody's affirmed the ratings of PGL and NSG.
Moody's stated that the rating actions to downgrade were due to
concerns about increases in lntégrys Energy Group's consolidated debt
levels and business risk profile evidénced by the increased scale and
scope of the post merger non-regulated-energy marketing business
plus the entry-into the historically mnore challenging regulatory
jurisdiction of Hllinois: Moody's outlook for all Integrys Energy Group
related companies is stable.

On February 21, 2007, Moody's also upgraded the senior unsecured
rating of PEC o A3 from Baa2; conforming it with those of Integrys
Energy Group; and affirmed all other ratings for PEC. Moody's actions
to-upgrade the senior unsecured rating were due to the expected
business risk improvement from the merger with Integrys Energy Group,
which resulted in the sale of PEP and transferred PECS energy and
marketing business to Integrys Energy Services, leaving PEC holding
only the two regulated subsidiaries, PGL and NSG: In addition; the
upgrade reflects Integrys Energy Group's guaranty of the $325.0 million
of PEC 6.90% notes due in 2011

Discontinued Operations
2008 Comparad with 2007:

Net cash provided by distontinued operations was $3.8 million in
2008 compared with $690.2 million in 2007 The decrease in net cash
provided by discontinued operationswas driven by the spproximate
$869.2 million of proceeds received from the sale of PEP

2007 Compared with 2006:

Net cash provided by discontinued operations was $690.2 million in
2007 compared with $61.0 million in 20060 The increase i net cash
provided by discontinued operations was driven by approximately
$879.1 million of proceeds recaived fram the sale of PEP in the third
quarter of 2007. Post-closing adjustments in the amount of $9.9 million
were settled in February 2008 related to this sale, which reduced the




sale price 0 $869.2 million: These post-closing adjustments were funded included in Note Ud), “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—
through other current liabilities at December 31,:2007 and, therefore, are Cashrand Cash-Equivalents,” as a non-cash transaction.

Future Capital Requirernents and Resources

Contractual Obligations
The following table shows the' contractual obligations of )nfegrys Energy. Group, including.its subsidiaries; as of December 31, 2008:
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Lon /ex’m debt printipal and interest paywwsnési .
Operating lease obligations .
Commodity purchase obligations ©
Pw’r:«?‘saéé orders 8
Capital contributions to equity method nves:tment
Pension and other postretirernent S
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rey Services i
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Cbligations for certsin pension.and sther postrelifement-benefits plan:
The table above does not reflect any payments related to the uncertain: See Note 14, “icome Taxes, " formore information sbout

manufactured gas plantremediation liability of $639.0 million at this liability.

Decermnber31, 200‘%, asthe-amount and timing of payments are

uncertain. See Note 15, "Commitiments and Contingencies, " for more Requirements
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Integrys Energy Group expects to provide additional capital
contributions to ATC (not included in the above table) of approximately
$27 million in 2009 and approximately $12 million in 2010. No capital
contributions are expected in 2011.

All projected capital and investment expenditures are subject to
periodic review and revision and may vary significantly from the
estimates depending on a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, industry restructuring, regulatory constraints, acquisition
opportunities, market volatility, and economic trends.

Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2008, Integrys Energy Group and each of its

subsidiaries were in compliance with all respective covenants relating
to outstanding short-term and long-term debt and expect to be in
compliance with all such debt covenants for the foreseeable future.

Integrys Energy Group and certain of its subsidiaries’ revolving credit
agreements and term loans contain financial and other covenants,
including but not limited to, a requirement to maintain a debt to total
capitalization ratio not to exceed 65%, excluding non-recourse debt.
Failure to meet these covenants beyond applicable grace periods could
result in accelerated due dates and/or termination of the agreements.
Termination of the agreements could permit lenders to require
immediate repayment of the outstanding borrowings thereunder.

Integrys Energy Group and certain of its subsidiaries’ long-term debt
obligations contain covenants related to payment of principal and
interest when due and various financial reporting obligations. Failure
to comply with these covenants could result in an event of default
which, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of
outstanding debt obligations.

Integrys Energy Group plans to meet its capital requirements for the
period 2009 through 2011 primarily through internally generated funds,
net of forecasted dividend payments, and debt and equity financings.
Integrys Energy Group plans to maintain current debt to equity ratios at
appropriate levels to support current credit ratings and corporate
growth. Management believes Integrys Energy Group has adequate
financial flexibility and resources to meet its future needs. See Item 7,
“Management Discussion and Analysis, Other Future Considerations”
for additional information.

See Note 11, “Short-Term Debt and Lines of Credit,” for more
information on our credit facilities and other short-term credit
agreements.

Integrys Energy Group has the ability to publicly issue debt, equity,
certain types of hybrid securities, and other financial instruments under
an existing shelf registration statement, which expires in April 2009.
Specific terms and conditions of securities issued will be determined
prior to the actual issuance of any specific security. Integrys Energy
Group's Board of Directors has authorized the issuance of up to
$700.0 million of equity, debt, or other securities under this shelf
registration statement, $300.0 million of which was used in December
2006 when Integrys Energy Group issued Junior Subordinated Notes.
integrys Energy Group plans to file a new shelf registration statement
in the first quarter of 2009.

In May 2008, WPS filed a shelf registration statement. As a result, WPS
may issue up to $250 million of senior debt securities within the next
three years with amounts, prices, and terms to be determined at the time
of future offerings. On December 5, 2008, WPS issued $125.0 million of
6.375%, 7-year Senior Notes under this shelf registration statement.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

Other Future Considerations

Impact of Financial Market Turmoil

Volatility and uncertainty in the financial markets has impacted Integrys
Energy Group in a number of ways. Due to unprecedented volatility
within the global financial markets beginning in the second half of 2008,
integrys Energy Group has been exposed to increased interest costs
and challenges, at times, accessing short-term capital markets. Due to
disruptions in the commercial paper markets, Integrys Energy Group
made draws under its syndicated revolving credit agreements for funds
that would normally have been borrowed in the commercial paper
market, and $300.0 million of these borrowings were outstanding at
December 31, 2008. In addition, we believe that a decrease in the
number of wholesale counterparties actively trading in the energy
markets has reduced market liquidity and increased the risk of
counterparty concentrations. This factor, combined with worsening
economic conditions, has also increased the risk of credit losses. A
decline in the overall level of natural gas and electricity prices has
resulted in increased cash margin calls on the exchanges utilized by
Integrys Energy Group for economically hedging its supply obligations.

In response to the factors discussed above, Integrys Energy Group has
taken several steps to improve its available liquidity. In the fourth quarter
of 2008, several transactions were closed in support of this effort. First,
PGL issued $50.0 million of first mortgage bonds, and NSG issued

$6.5 million of first mortgage bonds in private placement transactions.
Next, Integrys Energy Group entered into an approximate $156 million
drawn credit facility extending through March 2009 and entered into a
$250 million undrawn credit facility extending to May 2009. Finally,

WPS issued $125.0 million of 7-year fading lien first mortgage bonds.

In addition to the foregoing, Integrys Energy Services has adjusted its
product pricing strategy to account for the increased operating costs,
collateral requirements, business risks, and potential cash margining
impact. This new pricing strategy has reduced the flow of new business,
therefore reducing future liquidity requirements, while improving the
profitability of transactions that are executed. Management believes that
these efforts have reduced its exposure to adverse market conditions.
While the impact of continued market volatility and the extent and
impacts of any economic downturn cannot be predicted, Integrys Energy
Group currently believes it has sufficient operating flexibility and access
to funding sources to maintain adequate liquidity. Also, as Integrys
Energy Group heads out of the winter heating season, the natural gas
storage cycle at both the regulated natural gas utilities and Integrys
Energy Services will aid in the generation of positive cash flow as
inventory that has been built up in storage will be sold to customers.
These positive cash flows will be used to reduce short-term debt.

The recent volatility in global capital markets has also led to a reduction
in the current market value of long-term investments held in Integrys
Energy Group’s pension and other postretirement benefit plan trusts.
The recent decline in asset value of the plans will likely result in higher
pension and other postretirement benefit expenses, and additional
future funding requirements.

Impact of Divesting of or Scaling Back the Nonregulated Business Segment
Integrys Energy Group has made a decision to divest of its
nonregulated energy services business segment, Integrys Energy
Services, or reduce its size, risk, and financial requirements in response
to increased collateral requirements at a time when global credit and
financial markets are constraining the availability and increasing the cost
of capital. As a result, Integrys Energy Services’ operations will either be
fully or partially divested, or scaled back to include only the most
profitable products and markets, resulting in lower operating expenses
and a reduced level of financial liquidity support, while invested capital
will be managed downward in order to obtain an acceptable level of
return. Integrys Energy Group is seeking to deploy its capital to areas
with more desirable risk-adjusted rates of return.
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Execution of this strategic decision will result in lower earnings capacity
from this business segment going forward, although, in return, Integrys
Energy Group expects an improved business risk profile and enhanced
financial security. A divestiture of the nonregulated business segment,
or a reduced segment scale, will also allow Integrys Energy Group to
either eliminate or reduce the amount of credit facilities and other forms
of financial support committed to Integrys Energy Services.

Regulatory Matters and Rate Trends

To mitigate the volatility of the price of natural gas used for electric
generation, and purchased power costs in 2009 and beyond, WPS is
employing risk management techniques pursuant to its PSCW-approved
Risk Plan and Policy, including the use of derivative instruments such as
futures and options.

On February 1, 2007, the five utilities subject to the current Wisconsin
fuel rules filed proposed changes to the fuel rules with the PSCW. The
primary proposed change was to implement a 1% “dead band" to limit
a utility’s annual exposure or opportunity to a maximum of 1% of fuel
costs. The proposed “dead band"” differs from the current trigger
mechanism in that it would allow a utility to recover or refund all fuel
costs outside of the band, rather than only those costs after the trigger
date. A proposed rule for PSCW Chapter 116, “Cost of Fuel,” was
issued by the PSCW on July 3, 2008, incorporating many of the
components of the utilities’ proposal, with a 2% bandwidth as opposed
to the 1% bandwidth recommended by the utilities. WPS filed comments
on the proposed fuel rules, continuing to support a true “dead band” of
1%. The PSCW will need to agree on a proposed rule that will then be
forwarded to the legislature for review and promulgation.

In the current political, economic, and regulatory environment, the focus
on energy efficiency can lead to the implementation of decoupling
mechanisms. Under decoupling, utilities are allowed to adjust rates to
recover or refund the difference between the actual and authorized
margin impact of variations in volumes. In the recently completed WPS
rate case, the PSCW approved a settlement filed by WPS and the
Wisconsin Citizens Utility Board to implement decoupling for natural
gas and electric residential and small commercial sales, along with
several energy efficiency initiatives. In approving the settlement, the
PSCW capped the annual amount that can be recovered under the
decoupling mechanism to $4.0 million for natural gas service, and
$12.0 million for electric service. On January 16, 2009, WPS requested
rehearing to remove or increase the decoupling caps. On February 24,
2009, in a written order, the PSCW increased the caps to $8.0 million for
natural gas service and $14.0 million for electric service. Recently
passed legislation in Michigan authorizes the MPSC to approve
decoupling mechanisms, and in its January 2009 rate order, MGU was
ordered to submit a proposal for decoupling in its next rate case filing.
In Minnesota, the legislature required the Minnesota Public Utility
Commission (MPUC) to evaluate decoupling. The MPUC is currently
engaged in that process and has sought and received comments on
decoupling mechanisms from utilities and interveners in Minnesota.
Decoupling for residential and small commercial sales was approved by
the ICC for PGL and NSG on a four-year trial basis on February 5, 2008,
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and became effective March 1, 2008. Interveners, including the illinois
Attorney General, oppose decoupling, and have appealed the ICC's
approval. PGL and NSG are actively supporting the ICC's decision to
approve decoupling.

For a discussion of regulatory filings and decisions, see Note 23,
“Regulatory Environment.”

Uncollectible Accounts

The reserves for uncollectible accounts at Integrys Energy Group reflect
management’s best estimate of probable losses on the accounts
receivable balances. The reserves are based on known troubled accounts,
historical experience, and other currently available evidence. Provisions
for bad debt expense are affected by changes in various factors,
including the impacts of the economy, energy prices, and weather.

The impact of higher prices and the declining economic environment
could cause more accounts receivable to become uncollectible. Higher
levels of uncollectible balances would negatively impact Integrys Energy
Group's results of operations and could result in higher working capital
requirements.

Goodwill Impairment Testing

Integrys Energy Group performs its required annual goodwill
impairment tests each April 1. SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” requires goodwill to be tested on an annual basis
and between required annual testing dates if certain conditions exist.
One of these conditions is a change in business climate, which may be
evidenced by, among other things, a prolonged decline in a company’s
market capitalization below book value. Any annual or interim goodwill
impairment test could result in the recognition of a goodwill impairment
loss. See Note 9, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” for more
information on goodwill balances for Integrys Energy Group’s reporting
units at December 31, 2008.

New Laws

In February 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
(ARRA) was signed into law. ARRA contains various provisions intended
to stimulate the economy. Integrys Energy Group is currently evaluating
the impacts of ARRA on its financial condition, results of operations, and
cash flows from operations.

In February 2009, Wisconsin Senate Bill (SB) 62 was signed into law.
SB 62 contains various tax provisions intended to reduce Wisconsin's
current budget gap. Integrys Energy Group is currently evaluating the
impacts of SB 62 on its financial condition, results of operations, and
cash flows from operations.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

See Note 16, “Guarantees,” for information regarding guarantees.
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MARKET PRICE RISK
MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Market price risk management activities include the electric and n
gas marketing and related risk management activities of Integrys Energy
Services. Integrys Energy Services” marketing and trading operations
manage electricity and natural gas procurement as an mr,eg,;!m.ed
portfolio with its retail and wholesale sales commitments. Derivative
instruments are utilized in these operations.

e fair value of derivative inst ’ummts
on a mark-to-market basis, The fair value is included in assets or liabilities
from risk management activities on Integrys Energy Group's Lomsobdated
Balance Sheets, with an offsetting entry to other comprehensive income
(for the effective portion of cash flow hedges), also on Integrys Energy
Group's Consolidated Balance Sheets, or to earnings. The following table
provides an assessment of the factors tmpdmmc} the change in the net
valuo of Integrys Energy Services assets and liabilities from risk
management activities for the year ended Decémber 31, 2008.

Integrys Energy Services measures

Integrys Energy Services

Less: Contiacts realized or settled during period #

Plus: Changes i fair value of contiacts in

existence at December 31, 2008

Mark-to-Market Roll Forward Ot
{Millions) Options Natural Gas Electric Total
Fairvalue of contracts 3t December31, 20074 S0 $895 b 428 $132:1

Fair value of contracts at December 31, 2008 0

There were, in many cases, derivative positions entered into-and settled
during the period resulting in gains orlosses being realized during the
current period. The realized gains orlosses from these derivative
positions are not reflected in the table above.

!ntegrys Energy Services
Risk Management Contract Aging at Fair VaE
As of December 31, 2008 (Millions)

Fair Vs}qe Hierarchy Level
Levell
LevelZ .
Level 3

Total fair value

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Integrys Energy Group has determined that the following accounting
policies are critical to the understanding of its financial statements
because their application requires significant judgment and reliance on
estimations of matters that are inherently uncertain.. Integrys Energy
Group's management has discussed these critical accounting policies
with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Risk Management At
integrys Energy Group has entered into contracts that are aceounted for
as derivatives under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Darivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended. At
Decermber 31, 2008, those derivatives not designated as hedges are
pritarily commodity confracts used to manage price risk associ ateu
with natural gas and-electricity purchase and sale activities. I the
lerivatives qualify for regulatory deferral subject to the provisions of
S No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
gulation,” there is no impact on income available for commaon
sharehalders prior to settlement of the contracts. In addition, Integrys
Energy Group may apply the normal purchases and sales excepti
provided by SFAS No, 133, as amended, to certain derivative contracts,
The normal purchases and sales exception provides that recognition of
gains and losses inthe consolidated financial statements is not required
until the settlement of the contracts:

Integrys Energy Group, linc

The table below shows Integrys Energy Services' risk management
instruments categorized by fair value hierarchy levels and by maturity,
For more information on the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1(1),
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies~Fair Value."

Cash flow hedge accounting treatment may be used when'integrys

Energy Group enters into contracts to buy or sell & commadity at a
fixed price for future delivery to protect future cash flows corresponding
with anticipated physical sales or purchases. In-addition, Integrys Energy
Group uses cash flow hadge accounting to protect against changes.in
fareign currency-exchange ratés) and interest rates: Fair value hedge
accounting may be used when Integrys Energy Group holds assets,
liabilities, or-firm commitments and epters into transactions that hedge
the risk of changes:in commodity prices of interest rates: To the extent
that the hedging instrumentis fully ¢ etting the transaction
being hedged,; there’is no impactonincome available for common
shareholders prior to settlernent of the hedge.

Derivative contracts that are der@rm‘ned to fall within the scope of
SFAS Nov 133, as amended, are recorded at fair value on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets of Integrys hnugy Group: Changes in fair value,-except
effective portions. of derivative instruments designated as hedges or
qualifying for requlatory deferal, generally: affect incomie available for
common shareholders at each financial reporting date until the
contracts are ultimately settled,

In conjunction with the implementation of SFAS No. 157, on January 1,
2008, Integrys Energy Group categorized its fair value measurements
into three levels within' a falr value hierarchy. See Note 1(t), ”Sumimary
of Significant Accountirig Policies=-Fair Value,” and Note 21, “Fair
Value, " formore-information:
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grys Energy Group has based its va '
whenever possible. However, at times, the valuation of certain derivative
instruments requires the use of internally developed valuation technigues
and/or significant unobservable inputs, These valuations require a
significant amount of managerment judgment and are classified as Level 3
measurements. Of the total risk management assets on Integrys Energy
Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, $755.4 million (25.3%) utilized
Level 3 measurements. Of the total risk management liabilities,

$573.4 million (12.4%) utilized Level 3 measurements. Integrys Energy
Group believes these valuations represent the fair values of these
instruments as of the reporting date; however, the actual amounts
realized upon settlement of these instruments could vary materially from
the reported amounts due to movements in market prices and changes
in the liquidity of certain markets.

As a component of the fair value determination, Integrys Energy Group
considers counterparty credit risk (including its own credit risk) and
fiquidity risk. The liguidity component of the fair value determination
may be especially subjective when limited liquid market informatio
available, Under SFAS No. 157, beginning January 1, 2008, 1mtegry5
Energy Services no longer includes transaction costs in these fair value
determinations, but included this in d@"wminmq fair value prior to
2008, Changes in the underlying assumptions for these components of
fair value at December 31, 2008, Would have the following oﬁ@cts

Change in Components

100% increase
80% decrease

in fair-value would be included in current
and long-term assets and liabilities from risk managerment activities-on

the Consolidated Balance Sheets and as part of nonregulated revenue

on the Consolidated Statements of Income, unless the related contracts
are designated as cash flow hedges, in which case potential changes
would be included in Other Comprehensive Income~-Cash Flow Hedges
on the Consclidated Statements of Common Sharehalders’ Equity.

These hypothetical changes

Purchase Accounting
The 2007 PEC merger, as well as the acquisitions of natural gas
distribution operations in Michigar and Minnesota in 2006, were
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance
with SFAS No. 141, "Business Cormbinations.” Under this staternent,
the purchase price paid by the acquirer, including transaction costs,
is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired as of the-acguisition
date based on their fair values. The per share fair value of the common
stock issued by Integr 1ergy Group for the acquisition of PEC was
termined by using the average market value of integrys Energy
Group's common stock aver a five-day period, beginning two days
b@.for@ the anr—o’ur\f:eme?r‘t date of the merger. As Integrys Energy

its intent to sell PEP at the time of the dlosing of the
s and liabilities were reported at estimated fair

Management makes estimates of fair value based upon historical
experience and information obtained x‘ o the manag@men* of the
acquired company. Assumptions may be incomplete, and unanticipated
and circumstances may occur which could affect the validity of
such assumptions, e-%umaie% or actual results. As discussed below
within “Asset Impairment,” a significant amount of goodwill resulted
from these acquisitions, which requires impairment testing on at least
an annual basis: Goodwill was allocated to the various segments biased
on the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of net
identifiable assets.

events
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In conjunction with the PEC merger, a significant fair value estimate
related to nonderivative commadity contracts and custamer

.eaamw hips, which were recorded as intangible assets at Integrys

: y Services. The intangible lated to the contracts is being
arnortized into earnings as the contracts settle, and the intangible asset
related to customer relationships is being amortized over the estimated
lives of those relationships. The amartization of these items had a
negative impact on earnings in 2008,

PGL, NSG, MGU, and MERC are pf'@d@mir‘\amly regulated utilities;
therefore, in accordance with SFAS No. 71, the canrying value of the
majority of their assets and liabilities ap;:m}xmaied ir value, and as such,
did not change significantly as a result of applying purchase accounting.

- mpairment

in s Energy Group reviews certain assets for impairment as re
by JTAS No. 144, " Accounting for the lmpairment and Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” and SFAS No. 142,

The carrying value of goodwill by segment for the year ended

December 31, 2008, was:

(Millions)

WPS &
PG
NSG 123
SMERC ¥
MGL©
Total Natura! Gas Segment

Integrys Energy Senvices ?
Balance at Decembar 31, 2008

codwill for each of our réporting units'is tested forimpairment
annually on April 1 ormore frequently when events or circumstances
warrant based on the guidance of SFAS No. 142, The test for impairment
inclucles estimating the fairmarket value of each reporting unit using
assumptions about future profitability, Key assumptions used in the
analysis include the use of an appropriate discount rate, long-term
growth rates, return on equity, financial forecasts, capital expenditures,
and other factors. A significant decrease in-market values and/or
projected future cash flows could result in-an impaifment loss. In 2008,
an after-tax goodwill impainment loss of $6.5 million was recognized
for NSG, related to a decrease in forecasted results and worsening
economic factors. (See Note 9, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset
or further discussion of the impairment.)

2w for impairment of tangi !“ & assets is more critical to Integrys
l~nmgy Services than to otr other segrents because of its lack of
v to rate setting based on cost of seivics that is available to our
ulated segments. At Decernber 31, 2008, the carrying value of
Energy Services' property, plant, arid eguipment totaled
8/ 5 million. Integrys Energy Group believes that the accounting

sttma e related to assat impaifment of power plants isa "critical
accounting estimate’ because: (1) the éstimate is susceptible to change
from period to period because it regjuires management to make
assumptions about future market sales pricing, praduction costs, capital
expenditures, and generation volumes and (2) the impact of recognizing
an impairment could be material to our financial position or results of
operations. Management’s aswmpuwm about future market sales prices
and gereration volumes requiire significant judgment because actual
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‘DISCUSSION AND-ANALYSIS

prices and generation volumes have fluctuated in the past as a result of
changing fuel costs and required plant maintenance and are expected
to continue to do so in the future.

The primary estimates used at Integrys Energy Services in the
impairment analyses are future revenue streams, capital expenditures,
environmental landscape, and operating costs. A combination of inputs
from both internal and external sources is used to project revenue
streams. Integrys Energy Services forecasts future operating costs with
input from external sources for fuel costs. These estimates are modeled
over the projected remaining life of the power plants using the
methodology defined in SFAS No. 144,

Integrys Energy Services evaluates property, plant, and equipment for
impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist. These indicators
include a significant underperformance of the assets relative to historical
or projected future operating results, a significant change in the use of
the assets or business strategy related to such assets, and significant
negative industry or economic trends. SFAS No. 144 requires that if the
sum of the undiscounted expected future cash flows from a company’s
asset is less than the carrying value of the asset, an asset impairment
must be recognized in the financial statements. For assets held for sale,
impairment charges are recorded if the carrying value of such assets
exceeds the estimated fair value less costs to sell. The amount of
impairment recognized is calculated by reducing the carrying value of
the asset to its fair value (or fair value less costs to sell if held for sale).

Throughout 2008, Integrys Energy Services tested various power plants
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated
that a test was required in compliance with SFAS No. 144. No material
impairment charges were recorded in 2008 as a result of the
recoverability tests. Results of past impairment tests may not necessarily
be an indicator of future results given the nature of the accounting
estimates involved, as discussed more fully above. Future results or
changes in assumptions could result in an impairment.

Receivables and Reserves

Our regulated natural gas and electric utilities and Integrys Energy
Services accrue estimated amounts of revenues for services rendered
but not yet billed. Estimated unbilled revenues are calculated using a
variety of factors based on customer class. At December 31, 2008 and
2007, Integrys Energy Group’s unbilled revenues were $525.5 million
and $464.7 million, respectively. Any difference between actual
revenues and the estimates are recorded in revenue in the next period.
Differences historically have not been significant.

With the exception of WPS, Integrys Energy Group records reserves for
potential uncollectible customer accounts as an expense on the income
statement and an uncollectible reserve on the balance sheet. At WPS,
the PSCW follows the direct write-off approach in rates rather than the
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allowance method; therefore, a regulatory asset is debited rather than
an expense account when the reserve for uncollectible accounts is set
up. Actual write-offs at WPS are charged directly to an expense account
in lieu of the reserve account. At the utilities, the reserves are based on
known troubled accounts, historical experience, and other currently
available evidence. Provisions for bad debt expense are affected by
changes in various factors, including the impacts of the economy,
commodity prices, and weather. Each quarter, the utilities evaluate the
adequacy of the reserves for uncollectible accounts based on the most
current available information and adjust the reserves for changes in
estimated probable accounts receivable losses. Integrys Energy Services
calculates the reserve for potential uncollectible customer receivable
balances by applying an estimated bad debt experience rate to each
past due aging category and reserving for 100% of specific customer
receivable balances deemed to be uncollectible. The basis for
calculating the reserve for receivables from wholesale counterparties
considers netting agreements, collateral, and guarantees. If the
assumption that historical uncollectible experience matches current
customer default is incorrect, or if a specific customer with a large
account receivable that has not previously been identified as a risk
defaults, there could be significant changes to bad debt expense and
the uncollectible reserve balance. At December 31, 2008 and 2007,
Integrys Energy Group's reserve for uncollectible accounts was

$62.5 million and $56.0 million, respectively.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The costs of providing non-contributory defined benefit pension benefits
and other postretirement benefits, described in Note 17, “Employee
Benefit Plans,” are dependent upon numerous factors resulting from
actual plan experience and assumptions regarding future experience.

Pension and other postretirement benefit costs are impacted by actual
employee demographics (including age, compensation levels, and
employment periods), the level of contributions made to the plans, and
earnings on plan assets. Pension and other postretirement benefit costs
may be significantly affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions,
including anticipated rates of return on plan assets, discount rates used
in determining the projected pension and other postretirement benefit
obligations and costs, and health care cost trends. Changes made to
the plan provisions may also impact current and future pension and
other postretirement benefit costs.

Integrys Energy Group's pension and other postretirement benefit plan
assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed income investments.
Fluctuations in actual equity and fixed income market returns, as well as
changes in general interest rates, may result in increased or decreased
benefit costs in future periods. Management believes that such changes
in costs would be recovered at our regulated segments through the
ratemaking process.
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The following chart shows how a given change in certain actuarial
assumptions would impact the projected benefit obligation and the
ported annual pension cost on the income staterent. Each factor

below reflects an evaluation of
assumption only.

Actuarial Assumption

(Millions, except percentages)

Discount rate
Discount rate
Rate of return on plan assets
Rate of return on plan assets

The following chart shows how a given change in-certaln actuarial
assumptions would impact the accumulated other postretirement
henefit cbligation and the reported annual other postretiremant benefit

ch factor below reflects an evaluation
that assumption only,

cost on the income statermnent. Ea
of the change based on a'change in

Ae:mériai Assu;ﬁptiars
(Millions, except percentages)

Discount rate

Discount rate

Health care cost trend rate
Health care cost trend rate
Rate of return on plan assets
Rate of return on plan assets

Integrys Energy Group has developed an interest rate yield curve. to
enableiit to make judgments pursuant to: Emerging issues Task Force
Topic No. D-36, “Selection of Discount Rates Used for Measuring
Defined Benefit Pension Obligations and Obligations of Post Retirement
Benefit- Plans Other Than %’ens ions.” The yield curve is.comprised of
non-callable (or callable with rrake-whole provisions), high-gquality
corpora’te bonds with maturities between 0'and 30 years: The
ncluded bonds are generally rated by Moody's gs Aaa and Aa with 4
minimum amount outstanding of $50 million. The expected annual
henefit cash flows are discounted for each of Integrys Energy Group's
pension and retiree welfare plans using this vield curve, and a single-
pomt discount rate is developed matching each plan's expected
payout structure, '

Integrys Energy Group establishes its expected return on asset
assumption based on consideration of historical and projected asset
class returns, as well as the target allocations of the benefit trust
portfolios. The assumed long-term rate of return was 8.5% in 2008,
2007, and 2006. For 2008, 2007, and 2006, the actual rates of return
on pension plan assets, net of feas, were (25.9%), 6:2%; and 11.3%,
respectively.

The determination of expected return on qualified plan assets is based
on a market-related valuation of assets, which reduces vearto-year
olatility. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of
tém pension benefit obligation or market-related value are amortized
over the average remaining future service 1o éxpected retirement ages.
Changes in fair value are recognized over the subsequent five years
for p.anx previously sponsored by WPS, .while differences between
actual investment returns and the expected return on plan assets are
recognized over a five-year period for plans previously sponsored
by PEC. Because of this mathod, the future value of assets will be
impacted as previously defeired gains or losses are included in market
related value:

Imtegrys Energy Group, Inc,

forecasts of health care costs are considered. Mere information on
health care-cost trend rates can be found in Note 17, “Employee
Berefit Plans”

For a table showing future payments that Integrys Energy Group
expects to make for pension and otww postratirement benefits; see
Note 17, “Employes Benefit Plans.

Regulatory Accounting

The electric and natural gas Utility segments of integrys Energy Group
follow SFAS No. 71, and our fmanmal staterients reflect the effects of the
different ratemaking principles followed by the various jurisdictions
regulating these segments. Certain ftams that would otherwise be
immediately recognized as revenues and expenses are deferred as
regulatary assets and regulatory liabilities for future recovery or refund to
customers, as authorized by our regulators. Futire recovery of regulatory
assets is not assured, and-is q:mr@raﬁfy subsject to review by regulators in
rate proceedings for matters such as prudence and reasonableness
Management reqularly assesses whether these regulatory assets a
liabilities are probable of future recovery or refund by considering fact
such as changes in the régulatory environment, sarpings at the utility
segments, and the statusof any pending or potential deregulation
fegislation. Once approved; the remiaua ry assets and labilities are
amortized into income over the rate recovery period. If recovery of costs
fs not approved or is no longer deemed probable, these regulatory
assats or liabilities are recognized in current period income.

I our regulated electric and natural gas utility segments or a separable
portion of those segments wotld nolenger meet the criteria for
application of SFAS No. 71; we would discontinue its application as
defined under SFAS No. 101, Requlated Enterprises—Accounting for
the Discontinuation of Application of SFAS No, 71." Assets and {iabilities
recognized solely due to the actions of rate regulation would no-longer
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- MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

be recognized on the balance sheet, but rather would be classified as an
extraordinary item in income for the period in which the discontinuation
occurred. A write-off of all of Integrys Energy Group’s regulatory assets
and regulatory liabilities at December 31, 2008, would result in an 11.9%
decrease in total assets and a 3.0% decrease in total liabilities. See

Note 7, “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities,” for more information.

Environmental Activities Relating to Former
Manufactured Gas Operations

Integrys Energy Group’s utility subsidiaries, their predecessors, and
certain former affiliates operated facilities in the past at multiple
manufactured gas plant sites for the purpose of manufacturing gas and
storing manufactured gas. The utility subsidiaries are accruing and
deferring the costs incurred in connection with environmental activities
at the manufactured gas plant sites pending recovery through rates or
from other entities. The amounts deferred include costs incurred but
not yet recovered through rates and management’s best estimates of
the costs that the utilities will incur in investigating and remediating the
manufactured gas sites. Management’s estimates are based upon a
probabilistic model and an ongoing review by management of future
investigative and remedial costs.

Management considers this policy critical due to the substantial
uncertainty in the estimation of future costs with respect to the amount
and timing of costs, and the extent of recovery from other potential
responsible parties. See Note 15, “Commitments and Contingencies,”
for further discussion of environmental matters.

Tax Provision

As part of the process of preparing our Consolidated Financial
Statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes for each of
the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating
our actual current tax liabilities together with assessing temporary
differences resulting from differing treatment of items, such as
depreciation, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result
in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheet. We must also assess the likelihood that
our deferred tax assets will be recovered through future taxable income
and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must
establish a valuation allowance, which is offset by an adjustment to
income tax expense in the Consolidated Income Statements. The
interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since tax authorities
may interpret them differently. As of January 1, 2007, we adopted

the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an Interpretation of FAS 109.” As allowed under Interpretation No. 48,
Integrys Energy Group elected to change its method of accounting to
record interest and penalties paid on income tax obligations as a
component of income tax expense.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our
provision for income taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities, and
any valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets. The
assumptions involved are supported by historical data, reasonable
projections, and technical interpretations of applicable tax law and
regulation across multiple taxing jurisdictions. Significant changes in
these assumptions could have a material impact on Integrys Energy
Group's financial condition and results of operations. See Notes 1(p)
“Income Taxes,” and 14, “Income Taxes,” for a discussion of accounting
for income taxes.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
report operating results in terms of historic cost. The statements
provide a reasonable, objective, and quantifiable statement of financial
results, but they do not evaluate the impact of inflation. For our
regulated operations, to the extent we are not recovering the effects of
inflation, we will file rate cases as necessary in the various jurisdictions.
Our nonregulated businesses include inflation in forecasted costs.
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NOTE 1-—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCC}UNTENG POLICIES

(a) Nature of Operations--Integrys Energy Group is a holding
company whase primary wholly owned subsidiaries at December 31,
2008, included Wisconsin Public Service Carporation (WPS), Upper
Peninsula Power Company (UPPCO), Michigan Gas Utilides Corporation
(MGU), Minnesota Energy Resources Corporation (MERC), The Peoples
Gag Light and Coke Company (PGL), North Shore Gas (‘ompany (NSG),
and Integrys Energy Services. Of these subsidiaries, six subsidiaries

are regulated-electric and/or natural gas utilities and-one subsidiary,
Integrys Energy Services, is & nonregulated energy supply and

services company.

The term “utility”” refers to the regulated activities of the electric and
natiral gas utility segments) while the term "nonutility” refersto the
activities of the electric and natural r;wc utility segments that are not
regulated. The term “nonregulated’ refers to activities at Integrys
Energy Services: ;

The line tem on the Consolidated Staterments of Income titled “Income
available for commaon shareholders” is et income.

(k) Consolidation Basis of Presentation-The Consolidated Financial
Staterments include the accounts of Integrys Energy Group and all
majority owned subsidiaries, after eliminating intercompany transactions
ancl balances. If a minority owner’s equity is reduced to zero, our palicy
is to record 100% of the subsidianys logses until the minofity owner
makes capital contributions or cammits to fund its share of the

operating costs, The cost meth 10d of accounting Is used for investrments
wher Integrys Eneray Group owrs Jass than 20% of the voting equity of
a company, unless other evidence indicates we have significant
influgnce over the operating end financial policies of the investee:
Investments in businesses not controlled by Integrys Energy Group; but
owr which we have significant intluence regarding the/o/p:erat' ing and

finangial policies of the investee, are accounted for using the equity
method. For additionalinformation on ourequity rethod investments
see Note 8,*"§nve§'tm<ants in Affiliates, at Equity Method.”

Eﬁﬁ‘ "e ?ebma:y ?1 2“0/ the Peoples Energy COFUOFPT'OH (FEC)
merger was consum mated and the assets and mbhmes results

of operations, and cash flows of PEC were included in Integrys
F'nmqy Group's Consolidated Financial Statements cc;mm@nmng
February 22,2007 See Note 5; "Acquisitions and Dispositions,”

for more information. ,

The assets and labilitfes, results of op@ramor&s, and cash flows mf MGU
and MERC were includedinintegrys lmerc;y Group's Consolidated
Financial Staternents effective Apdl 1, and July 1, 2{)(}6 tespectively.
See Note 5, "Acquisitions and Dispositions,” for more fnformation.

Dispositions e
A-contingent payment niade by the buyeroflntegrys ..r;c}rqy Services
Stoneman generation facility resulted in a gain that was recorded as a
compaonent of discontinued operations in the fourth quarter of 2008
See Note 3, “Discontinued Operations,” Tor more information.

Peoples Energy Production Company’s (PEP'S) results of operations and
cash'flows are reportedin discontinued operations in 2007 The sale of
PEP was completed on September 28, 2007, Refer to Note 3,
"Discontinued Operations,” for moore information.

Forall applicable periads presented Sunbury (sold in 2006) and
Niagara (sold in 2007) have been r@rlassmc;d as held for sale, and =~
results of operations and cash flows for {heé\ entities have been
reclassified as discontinued operations. Refer to Note 3, "Disconti ueei:"z'
Operations, " for more information.

Integtys Energy Group, Inc.

(¢} Use of Estimates—We prepare our consolidated financial
statements in con‘form”ty with accounting principles generally accepted
inthe United States of America. We make estimates and assumptions
that affect assets, liabilities, the: disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results may differ from these estimates,

() Cash and Cash Equivalents-—Shortterminvestments with an
original maturity of three months or less are reported as cash equivalents.

The following'is supplemental disclosure 1o the: Integrys Energy Group
Consolidated Staternents of Cash Flows:
(Millions)
Cash paid fi)r mi‘erwat
Cash paid for income taxes

2007 2006
$1445 3876
s

Significant non-cash transactions were:

(Mﬂﬁgns} .

2007 2006

Realized gain on settleme
contracts due to PEC merger
“\mcied

PER post closing adu

 through othel

Transaction cos
merger with PEC funded through
other current liabilities

{e) Revenue and Customer Receivables—Revenues are recognized on
the accrual basgis and include estimated amounts for electric and natiiral
ga% services provided but not billed. At Decembm 31, 2008, snd 2007,
Integrys Energy Group's unbilled revenues were $525 5 million and
$464.7 milllion, xespecuvely Currently there aié rio mstcmers orindustiies
that account for more than 10% of ﬂtequ% Energy (,:oups revenues,

Prudent fuel and purchased p’mwexr costs are recovered from customers
under one-for-one 1ocaverymecham ms by UPPCO and by the
wholesale electric operations and Michigan retall electric operations of
WPS, which provide for substaqwm aci\;’usimersts to rates for all changes
in‘commaodity costs. There is 8 portion of WPS's wholesale electiic
buginess that limits cost recovery to no Greater than the 2-year average
rate charged to large industrial retail customers for that same period.
The costs of natural gas prudently incurred by the natural gas utility
subsidiaries are also recovered from custoriers under oneforcne
recovery mechanisms. S

WES'S Wiscansin retail electric operations do not have a ore-forone
recovery mechanism, Instead, » “luel window” mechanisim is used 1o
recover fuel and purchased power costs. Under the fuel window, if
actual fuel and purchased power costs deviate by more than 2% from
tosts included in the rates charged to customers, a rate review can be
triggered. Once a rate review is tiggered, rates may be reset (subject
o Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) approval) Sforthe
remainder of the year to recover or refund, on an annualized basis, the.
pm;mf«ad increase or dpcmaw I 'ch . c»st taf fucel and purchased pmwer

All cxf m,@‘tgryg fnm—qy Gre
esrvxce and qram medzt t ;




obtain or refund deposits accordingly. The tilities are g@nma%ly
precluded from discontinuing service 1o 1 esxéenhal customers duting
winter: mamlonum rroths:

Ra\/enues reiated to denvative instruments classified as trading are.
reparted net of r@}m@dm st of sai@s for all perl@ds pregmn@c:i

agamsi @xpenseq 4rom natural gas hub s services, wsu!*mq i a crm to
utmty cusmmeas naturgl gas charges :

M‘tegrvs Energy Group progems revenie et of pass through taxes on
the COnSOhddtG‘d Statements of lncome. :

{ !nventarmmwmve,ma\ suconsistof na’cural/g in 3‘;0&@@, ligld
prapane and fossil fugls, including coal. Axrarags CQB’E isused to value
fossil fuels, liquid propane, and natural gas in storage for our regulated
wgments excluding PGL and NSG. PGL and NSG price natural gas
storage injections at the calendar vear average of the costs of natural
gas %Gpp'y purchased, Withdrawals from storage are priced on ths
fastin, firstout (LIFO) cost misthod Inventories stated on a LIFO basis

represent approximately | 6% of total inventories at December 31, .4008,

and 14% of tow! mvem \t:emb».:r &1 2007 The estim mec}

reptacement amounts,
gas price per dekatherm of $5. 80 ﬁt D@c ember 31
Decembe:r 31,2007

2008, dr{d $7.33 at

Inve’foﬁes at Integrys Energy Semvices are valued at the lower of tost
or market unless hedged pursuant to a fair value hedge in which tase
changes in the fair value of nventory su bsequent to the hedge
des{gﬂat@n are recorded directly to it wenmry

(5;} Rrsk Management ArtivitiesAs part of our regular operations;
!megrjys Energy Group enters into contracts, including options, swaps,
futuires, forwards, and other conteactual commitments, to manage
market risks such as chai nges in commadity prices, interest rates, and
foreign currency exchange tates, which are described more fully in
Note 2, “Risk Management Activities.” Derivative instiuments at the
utilities are ant@redmm f acw:damw with the terms of the risk
 management policie o) Aritegrys Energy Groups Eiwd of
Dnectoxs and, if applicy : l@, by the 1 sf)@c:ttve regu)atc)

&rxtegxys F_nequ Qrmup m:wm t;r derivative instruments pux ueam
to Statement of Financial Acmummg Standards (SFAS) Nu. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
amended and interpreted. Under the provisions of SEAS No, 133,
all derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value
unless they qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception.
Most energy-related physical and f financial derivatives in our regulated
operations qualify for regulatory deferral subject to the provisions of
SEAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation!
These defrwat ives are marked to fair value pursuant to SFAS e, 133
and are offset with & corresponding regulatory asset or liability
Management believes any gains or losses resulting from the eventual
settlement of these derivative instruments will I be Polk,cteuj fromior
rexrunded to customers

r\teqrys Energy Group Jassifies unrealized gains and losses on derlvative
’uga) f’ orh dge@ amountmg or regt.latcxry

integrys Energy Group; lng:

Financial Accounting Swndmrd& Boam

gomra{ly :etum@d e} rat@myms

inclided in other comprehensive income, net of taxes, Fair value hedge
ineffectiveness and cash flow hedae neffectiveness are recorded in
revenue ot operating and maintenance expense on the Consolidated
Staternents of Income, based an the nature of the ‘craﬁsacticn&

“Offsetting of Amount: \’Relmed: e
pmwd(*s the option to ,,‘easam cért
positions net on the balanc , t
against these net derivative positions. ‘xmq rys B erqy 'Z:roup elocte
not to net these items. On the Consolidated Balance Sheets, cash
collateral provided to others is reflacted in accounts receivable, and cash
collateral received from others is reflécted in ather current liabilities.

th) Emission Allowances—Integrys Energy Services accounis for
emission allowances as intangible assets, with cash inflows and outfiows
related to purchases and sales of emission allowances recorded as
investing activities in the Consolidated Statemeants of Cash Flows,
Integrys Energy Services tses the guidance in SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long Lived Assets
totest allowances for impainment. The utilities account for emission
allowances as inventory at average cost by vintage vear, Charges 1o
income result when allowances are utilized in opeiating the utilities’
generation plants, Gains on sales of ahowawm atthe utilitiesare

Dunng CQ{}‘;WUC‘LIUH (AF“UDC, s
of units of property (as distinguis de ’:E’O"ﬁ Frlpor ntems m‘ pmpetty} afe
Laprtah?ed as additions to the utility plant accounts. Exceptfor land,
ric gain or loss | is Beognt inconnection with @rdmaay, retitements
of utility property units: Maintenance, tepair replacement, and re 'weswa!
costs associated with ffems not gualif ying as units ol property ar
considered opetating experises, PGL and NSG charge the cost mf ufiits
of property retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of to the accumulated
provision for depreciation and record the cost of removal, less salvage
value, associated with the r\mirement 1o depreciation expense. The
sther dtilities charge the cost of units of property retited, sold, or
otherwise disposed of, less salvage value, to the accumu!a’rau pravis

for depreciation and racord o :egulamry liability for removal costs;

with removal costs ghargad ;acm inst the liability as mcurred

Integrys F:nergy Group: raamrda & el me»; vﬁeprecsahon expense ¢ ver
the estimated useful {ife of utility pmpc«zr“ty, using de\pieuat on ral
approved by the app mah)wemtm«m Ann mt utihity compo
depmc;atmn rates are sha;:w below,

2006
336%
357%
290%
08%
176% 7

WPS E}ectn
WPS Nafura!/ga%

cmstmctnon and @ g@m and 1osa is z)gtnmc;ﬁ {or retxrem@nm :
Currently, nonutility pmpc:‘rty qﬂt thé& r&agufawd utilities gonsMﬁ
primarily of land;
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nonregulated plant is stated at cost, which includes capitalized interest,
or estimated fair value at the time of acquisition. The costs of renewals,
betterments, and major overhauls are capitalized as additions to plant.
The gains or losses associated with ordinary retirements are recorded in
the period of retirement. Maintenance, repair, and minor replacement
costs are expensed as incurred.

Most of the nonregulated subsidiaries compute depreciation using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

15 to 40 years

5 to 40 years

3 to 10 years

5 years

3 to 8 years

Shorter of: life of the lease
or life of the asset

Structures and improvements
Office and plant equipment
Office furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements

The nonregulated Combined Locks Energy Center uses the units of
production depreciation method for selected components of equipment
having defined lives stated in terms of hours of production.

Integrys Energy Group capitalizes certain costs related to software
developed or obtained for internal use and amortizes those costs to
operating expense over the estimated useful life of the related software,
which ranges from 3 to 15 years.

See Note 4, "Property, Plant, and Equipment,” for details regarding
Integrys Energy Group's property, plant, and equipment balances.

(j) Capitalized Interest and AFUDC—Our nonregulated subsidiaries
capitalize interest for construction projects, while our utilities capitalize
the cost of funds used for construction using a calculation that includes
both internal equity and external debt components, as required by
regulatory accounting. The internal equity component of capitalized
AFUDC is accounted for as other income, and the external debt
component is accounted for as a decrease to interest expense.

Approximately 50% of WPS's retail jurisdictional construction work
in progress expenditures are subject to the AFUDC calculation.

For 2008, WPS's average AFUDC retail rate was 8.61%. WPS's
construction work in progress average AFUDC wholesale rate was
8.04%. WPS's allowance for equity funds used during construction
for 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $5.2 million, $0.9 million, and

$0.6 million, respectively. WPS's allowance for borrowed funds

used during construction for 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $1.8 million,
$0.3 million, and $0.2 million, respectively.

The AFUDC calculation for the other utilities is determined by the
respective state commissions, each with specific requirements.
Based on these requirements, the other utilities did not record
significant AFUDC for 2008, 2007, or 2006.

The interest rate capitalized on long-term construction at our
nonregulated subsidiaries is based upon the monthly short-term
borrowing rate Integrys Energy Group incurs for such funds. The
nonregulated subsidiaries had no significant interest capitalized
during 2008, 2007, and 2006.

(k) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities—The regulated electric and
natural gas utility segments of Integrys Energy Group are subject to
the provisions of SFAS No. 71. Regulatory assets represent probable
future revenue associated with certain costs or liabilities that have been
deferred and are expected to be recovered from customers through
the ratemaking process. Regulatory liabilities represent amounts that
are expected to be refunded to customers in future rates or amounts
collected in rates for future costs. If at any reporting date a previously
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recorded regulatory asset is no longer probable of recovery, the
regulatory asset is reduced to the amount considered probable of
recovery with the reduction charged to expense in the year the
determination is made. See Note 7, "Regulatory Assets and Liabilities,”
for more information.

(1) Asset Impairment—We review the recoverability of long-lived
tangible and intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144. This
statement requires review of assets when events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We base our
evaluation on the presence of impairment indicators such as the nature
of the assets, the future economic benefit of the assets, any historical or
future profitability measurements, and other external market conditions
or factors.

The carrying amount of assets held and used is considered not
recoverable if it exceeds the undiscounted sum of cash flows expected
to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. If the
carrying value is not recoverable, the impairment loss is measured as
the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value.

The carrying value of assets held for sale is not recoverable if it exceeds
the fair value less cost to sell the asset. An impairment charge is
recorded for any excess of the carrying value over the fair value less
cost to sell.

The carrying values of cost and equity method investments are assessed
for impairment by comparing the fair values of these investments to
their carrying values, if a fair value assessment was completed, or by
reviewing for the presence of impairment indicators. If an impairment
exists and it is determined to be other-than-temporary, a charge is
recognized equal to the amount the carrying value exceeds the
investment’s fair value.

(m) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—In accordance with SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but are subject
to an annual impairment test. WPS, MGU, MERC, PGL, NSG, and
integrys Energy Services, our reporting units with goodwill, perform
their annual goodwill impairment tests during the second quarter of
each year. Interim impairment tests are performed whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired.

Other intangible assets with definite lives consist primarily of emission
allowances, customer related intangible assets, and customer contract
assets and liabilities. The impairment testing for these intangible assets
is performed in accordance with SFAS No. 144 and is discussed in

Note 1(), “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Asset Impairment.”

For more information on Integrys Energy Group’s goodwill and other
intangible assets, see Note 9, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

(n) Retirement of Debt—Any call premiums or unamortized expenses
associated with refinancing utility debt obligations are amortized
consistent with regulatory treatment of those items. Any gains or losses
resulting from the retirement of nonutility debt are recorded through
earnings, while gains or losses resulting from the retirement of utility
debt that is not refinanced are either amortized over the remaining life
of the original debt or recorded through earnings.

(o) Asset Retirement Obligations—Integrys Energy Group applies
SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” and
FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations.” Under these accounting standards, Integrys
Energy Group recognizes legal obligations at fair value associated
with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from the
acquisition, construction or development, and/or normal operation of
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the assets. A liability is recorded for these obligations as long as the
fair value can be reasonably estimated, even if the timing or method of
settling the obligation is unknown. The asset retirement obligations are
accreted using a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate commensurate
with the expected settlement dates of the asset retirement obligations;
this rate is determined at the date the obligation is incurred. The
associated retirement costs are capitalized as part of the related long-
lived assets and are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. See
Note 13, "Asset Retirement Obligations,” for more information.

(p)} Income Taxes—We account for income taxes using the liability
method as prescribed by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes.” Under this method, deferred income taxes have been recorded
using currently enacted tax rates for the differences between the tax
basis of assets and liabilities and the basis reported in the financial
statements. Our regulated utilities are allowed to defer certain
adjustments made to income taxes and record regulatory assets or
liabilities related to these adjustments.

Integrys Energy Group adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation
of FAS 109,” on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation

of Interpretation No. 48, Integrys Energy Group recognized a

$0.1 million decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits,
which was accounted for as an increase in the January 1, 2007,

balance of retained earnings.

Investment tax credits that reduce our income taxes payable for the
current year are eligible for carryover and are recognized as a reduction
of income tax expense if the credits are generated in our nonregulated
operations. We do not reduce our current year income tax expense if

it is likely that we will sell the related property that generated the tax
credits after the end of the year and the tax credits would also be
transferred to the seller as permitted under tax law. For credits generated
in our regulated operations that apply SFAS No. 71, our regulators
reduce our future rates over the lives of the property to which the tax
credits relate; accordingly, we defer the investment tax credits in the
year our taxes payable are reduced and we reduce income tax expense
over the useful lives of the related property.

Integrys Energy Group files a consolidated United States income tax
return that includes domestic subsidiaries of which its ownership is
80% or more. Integrys Energy Group and its consolidated subsidiaries
are parties to a tax allocation arrangement under which each entity
determines its income tax provision on a stand-alone basis. In several
states, combined or consolidated filing is required for certain members
of Integrys Energy Group doing business in that state. The tax allocation
arrangement equitably allocates the state taxes associated with these
combined or consolidated filings.

For more information regarding Integrys Energy Group’s accounting for
income taxes, see Note 14, “Income Taxes."”

(q) Guarantees—Integrys Energy Group applies Interpretation No. 45,
"Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which requires
that the guarantor recognize, at the inception of the guarantee, a liability
for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee.
For additional information on guarantees, see Note 16, “"Guarantees.”

(r) Employee Benefits—The costs of pension and other postretirement
benefits are expensed over the periods during which employees render
service. The transition obligation related to other postretirement plans
that existed at Integrys Energy Group prior to the PEC merger is being
recognized over a 20-year period beginning in 1993. In computing the
expected return on plan assets, Integrys Energy Group uses a market
related value of plan assets. Changes in fair value are recognized over
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the subsequent five years for plans previously sponsored by WPS, while
differences between actual investment returns and the expected return
on plan assets are recognized over a five-year period for plans previously
sponsored by PEC. The benefit costs associated with employee benefit
plans are allocated among Integrys Energy Group’s subsidiaries based
on employees’ time reporting and actuarial calculations, as applicable.
Integrys Energy Group's regulators allow recovery in rates for the
regulated utilities’ net periodic benefit cost calculated under United
States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Integrys Energy Group adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),” at
December 31, 2006. SFAS No. 158 requires employers to recognize a
defined benefit postretirement plan’s funded status in the balance
sheet, and recognize changes in the plan's funded status in other
comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. Integrys
Energy Group's regulated utilities record changes in the funded status
to regulatory asset or liability accounts, pursuant to SFAS No. 71.

Integrys Energy Group uses a December 31 measurement date for all
of its pension and other postretirement benefit plans.

For additional information on Integrys Energy Group's employee
benefits, see Note 17, "Employee Benefit Plans.”

(s) Stock-Based Employee Compensation—Integrys Energy Group
has stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described
more fully in Note 20, “Stock-Based Compensation.” Effective
January 1, 2006, Integrys Energy Group adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,”
using the modified prospective transition method. Under this transition
method, prior periods’ results were not restated. Stock-based
compensation cost for 2006 included compensation cost for all
stock-based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet fully
vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123,
adjusted for estimated future forfeitures. The fair values of stock-based
compensation awards granted after January 1, 2006, were estimated
in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). The cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle recorded upon adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R) was not significant.

(t) Fair Value—Effective January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Group
adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This standard
defines fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about assets and
liabilities carried at fair value. As of December 31, 2008, these additional
disclosures are required only for financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value and for nonfinancial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, following the guidance in FASB Staff Position
FAS 157-2, "Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157.” These
disclosures can be found in Note 21, ”Fair Value.”

SFAS No. 157 requires that a fair value measurement reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability
based on the best available information. These assumptions include the
risks inherent in a particular valuation technique (such as a pricing
model) and the risks inherent in the inputs to the model. SFAS No. 157
also specifies that transaction costs should not be considered in the
determination of fair value. On January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Group
recognized an increase to nonregulated revenues of $11.0 million due
to the exclusion of transaction costs from Integrys Energy Services' fair
value estimates.

SFAS No. 157 nullified a portion of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue

No. 02-3, “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held
for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and
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Risk Management Activities.” Under Issue No. 02-3, inception gains

or losses were deferred unless the fair value of the derivative was
substantially based on quoted prices or other current market transactions.
However, SFAS No. 157 provides a framework to consider, in evaluating
a transaction, whether a transaction represents fair value at initial
recognition. Integrys Energy Services recognized a pre-tax cumulative
effect increase to retained earnings of $4.5 million on January 1, 2008,
related to the nullification of the aforementioned portion of Issue

No. 02-3.

In conjunction with the implementation of SFAS No. 157, Integrys
Energy Services determined that the unit of account for its derivative
instruments is the individual contract level; accordingly, these contracts
are now presented on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as assets or
liabilities based on the nature of the individual contract.

According to SFAS No. 157, fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date
(exit price). As permitted under SFAS No. 157, Integrys Energy Group
utilizes a mid-market pricing convention (the mid-point price between
bid and ask prices) as a practical expedient for valuing certain
derivative assets and liabilities.

SFAS No. 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined by SFAS No. 157 are as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markets are those in
which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, but
are not quoted prices included within Level 1. Level 2 includes those
financial instruments that are valued using external inputs within models
or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less
observable from objective sources. These inputs may be used with
internally developed methodologies that result in management's best
estimate of fair value. Level 3 instruments include those that may be
more structured or otherwise tailored to customers’ needs.

As required by SFAS No. 157, financial assets and liabilities are
classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

(u) New Accounting Pronouncements—In December 2007, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R)
provides greater consistency in the accounting for and financial reporting
of business combinations. Among other changes, the standard will
require the following: (1) all assets acquired and liabilities assumed

must be recognized at the transaction date, including those related to
contractual contingencies, (2) transaction costs and restructuring costs
that the acquirer expects, but is not obligated, to incur are to be
expensed, (3) changes to deferred tax benefits as a result of the business
combination must be recognized immediately in income from continuing
operations or equity, depending on the circumstances, and (4) in a
bargain purchase, a gain is to be recorded instead of writing down fixed
assets. Certain new disclosure requirements will enable the evaluation
of the nature and financial effect of the business combination. SFAS

No. 141(R) is effective for business combinations consummated after
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January 1, 2009. Also effective January 1, 2009, any adjustments to
uncertain tax positions from business combinations consummated prior
to January 1, 2009, will no longer be recorded as an adjustment to
goodwill, but will be reported in income.

SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements,” was issued in December 2007. This standard changes
the accounting and reporting related to noncontrolling interests and
requires, among other things, that the amount of consolidated net
income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest

be clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of income. This standard is effective for Integrys Energy
Group for the period ending March 31, 2009. Integrys Energy Group
expects this standard to change the presentation of the preferred stock
dividends of its subsidiary on its Consolidated Statements of Income.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an amendment of

FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures
about (1) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (2) how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for
under SFAS No. 133, as amended, and (3) how derivative instruments
and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is effective for Integrys
Energy Group for the reporting period ending March 31, 2009, and will
result in expanded disclosures for derivative instruments.

FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. EITF 03-6-1, "Determining Whether
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are
Participating Securities,” was issued in June 2008. This FSP clarifies that
unvested stock-based compensation awards with rights to dividends or
dividend equivalents that cannot be forfeited are to be included in the
basic earnings per share calculation using the two-class method defined
in SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” This FSP is effective for Integrys
Energy Group for the quarter ending March 31, 2009. The guidance
must be applied retrospectively. We do not expect this FSP to have a
significant impact on basic earnings per share.

Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 08-6, “Equity Method
Investment Accounting Considerations,” was ratified in November 2008.
Issue No. 08-6 is intended to clarify the application of the equity method
of accounting following adoption of SFAS No. 141(R). According to the
guidance, the initial carrying value of an equity method investment
should include transaction costs; an other-than-temporary impairment
test should be performed on the overall investment, rather than on

the underlying indefinite-lived intangible assets; the equity method
investee’s issuance of shares should be accounted for as the sale of a
proportionate share of the investment; and no gain or loss should be
recognized when changing the method of accounting for an investment
from the equity method to the cost method. This EITF Issue is effective
for Integrys Energy Group for the quarter ending March 31, 2009.
Integrys Energy Group does not expect EITF Issue No. 08-6 to have a
significant impact on its financial statements.

FSP No. FAS 132(R)-1, “Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assets,” was issued in December 2008. This FSP amends
SFAS No. 132(R), “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits,” and requires additional disclosures about plan
assets. These disclosures include: a description of investment policies
and strategies, disclosures of the fair value of each major category of
plan assets, information about the fair value measurements of plan
assets, and disclosures about significant concentrations of risk in plan
assets. This FSP is effective for Integrys Energy Group for the reporting
period ending December 31, 2009, and will result in expanded
disclosures related to postretirement benefit plan assets.
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NOTE 2—RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

The following fable shows Integrys Energy Group's assets and liabilities from risk management activities as of December.3

Mfihons)

utnhty Seg
Commodity ¢
Financial transmission tight
,”Zésh flow aw hedges — commodity contracts

_ Nonregulated Segments /: -

: (,.amm dny and foreign curfency con?racts; : o

air value hedges

£ Gmn*sd Ity contracts
Interest ate swaps
(’;ash ﬁ@w h@dgc}s
: Ty conracts
N{ntér,es@ztate SWaps
Forsign currency
Balance Sheet Pres
Current

Assets and liabilities from risk management activities are classified
as current or long-term based upon the maturities of the
underlying contracts:

Liility Segments

The derivatives listed inthe above table as c:mmmoa‘ﬁiy contracts’
include natural gas purchase contracts as well as financial derivative
contracts (New York Mercantile Exchangs (NY) MEX}‘fum?‘e% options, and
swaps) usec by both the electric and natural gas utility segments 1o
mitigate the risk associated with market price volatility of natural gas.
The electric utility segment also uses financial instruments to mariage
transmission congestion costs, which are f;hown in the above table a5
Hinancl Tiransmsg orights.” :

Ns&m‘m:gu lated mgmmnm

The derivatives in the nonregulated segments not desngnawd as xedqm
under GAAP are primarily commodity contracts used to manage price
risk associated with natural gas and electric energy purchase and sale
activities and foreign currency contracts used to manage foreign
currency exposure, Changes in the fair value of nowhedq& derivatives
are recognized currently in‘earnings: :

In the second quarter of 2006, Integrys Energy Services began entering
intoalimited - number of derivative energy contracts with terms that
extended as Jong as 12 years, Observable market data was not
avaitable for the longerdated partion, generally periods greater than
five years (the unobservable periods), of these contracts at the tine
and, therefore; Integrys Energy Services had valued the unchservable
perfods of these contracts at zero, I the third Quarter of 2007,

ir}iﬁegfys Energy Services determined that this approach was
inappropriate under GAAP-and began to use internally deveiaped
pricing data to estimate the fair value of such unobservable periads

The cumulative effect related to prior periods was an increase in
income from continuing operations and income available for common
shareholders of $4.6 million, net of taxes. Managem@n, @amurwd
that this amount was not material to prior periods. The d@tarmma’c(on '
of fair value for these d@rwat ive contracts is Subj(‘ctive and requires
significant managemant judgment.

@ntgérys,ﬁnergy Group, Inei |

12008, and: 2007

Al

Liabilities

Integrys Energy Services also enters mm commiodity derivative contracts

that are designated as either fairvalue or cash flow hedges. Integrys

F riergy Services uses fair value hedges ta mi txgate the risk of changes in
the price of natural gas held in storage. Fair value Redge | ineffectiveness

was not sigmﬁcam in 2008 and 2007, and was a pre-tax gain of

$3.7 million in 2006, Changes in the diffefence betweer the spot and

forwsrd prices of natural gas were exciuded from the assessment of

hedge effectiveness and reported directly in nonregulated revenue,

The amount excluded was d pre-tax gain ef $5.5 million during 2008,

and was not srgmﬁcant during 2007 and 2006.

Cammadtiy fﬁntrdcts that are desi gnat@d as cash %Qw hedgm axtend
through April 2014, and are used to mitigate the risk of cash flow
variability associated with future pumhasm and sales of natural gas.

and electricity. Cash flow ’hadge meﬁemv@mesa related to com mt:d;ty
contracts was not sugmﬁm i durmg 2008, was a pre-tax loss of ,
$4.4 million in 2007, and was ¢ pre-tax gain of $8.6 million in 2006, ’
Whien testing for effectiveness, no portion of the derivative instruments
was excluded. Amounts recorded.in other comprehensive income
related to these cash flow hadges will be recognized in earnings when
thé hedged transactions occur which is typlcaliy as the related contracts
are settled, or if it is prabable that the hedged transaction will not
oceur The amount reclassified from other comprehensive income into
earrings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting
for certain hedge transactions was a pre-tax loss of $2.7 million during
2008, was not significant dudng 2007, andiwas a pre-tax gain of

$2. 1 millior in 20061 the next 12 months, subject 1o changes in
market prices of natural gas and electricity, we expect that a pre-tax
loss of $72.8 million will be recognized in earnings as the hedged
trahsactions occur. We expect this amount to be substantially offset by
settlernent of the related nonderivative contracts that are being hedged,
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in November 2008, Integrys Energy Group designated as cash flow
hadges two forward foreign currency exchange contracts entered into
to hedge the variability in the foreign currency. exposure of a fixed rate
Japanese yen denominated termi loan that matures on March 30, 2009,
Cash flow hedge ineffectiveness recorded in nonregulated revente
related to this transaction: was not signiticant during 2008.

NOTE 3—DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

I the th; wd quarter of 2008, Integrys Energy Services sold ifs subsidiary
Mid-American Power, LLC, which owned the Stoneman generation
facility, located in Wisconsin, The historical revenue, expense, s and
effects of dx:pcssrm of this facility were not significant. In the fourth
quarter of 2008, Integrys Energy Services recognized a $6:3 million
pre-tax gain {538 million afrertax) on the sale of this facility when @
nrevious contingent pavment was eamad and paid by the buyer. This
contingent sayme"wt resulted from legislation that was passediin the
fourth quarter of 2008, which extended the production tax credits
avallable for certain biomass facilities, The $3.8 miillion after-tax gain
was reported in-discontinued operations.

In September 2007, Integrys Energy Group completed the sale of PEF,
an ol and natural gas pmduc’ncm subsidiary acquired in the PEC merger,
for $869.2 million, net of certain post-closing adjustments. These
postclosing adiustments were funded through other current Habilities

at Dewmber 31,2007 and, MGKPTQNB areincluded in Note )
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies = Cash and Cash
Eguivalents,” as a non-cash transaction for 2007. Including the impact
of the post-closing :ac:juwﬂems, the pre-tax qam recorded for 2007 was
$12.:6 million (676 million aftertax), and was m: luded as a component

of discontinued operations. In 2008, 2 50.8 million impact of tax
adjustments related 1o the 2007 PEP sale was recorded as income

from dsscontmaxad operations,

Components cn‘ discontinued operations eemrdec{ n the mehdaf@cj
Staterments of mcome refated to PEP were: :

Febmary 2, 2007

Operating and maintenanc
Gainon PEP sale

Ta;(eﬁ ofhsr than income taxes
o ”;er expense

Integrys Energy Group’s Cash Collataral Positions

(Miliions)

Cash collateral
provided to others

h collateral

. December 31, 2007

%235

49,1

During 2008, lntﬂgrys Energy Services recorded $0.1 million t}fnuome
from discontinued operations related to amortization of an environmenital
indemnification guarantee included as part of the sale agreement

Components of discontinuedroperations recorded in the Consolidated
Staterrients of Income related to Niagars for the years erxded
D@cemb@r 31 were as follows:

2007 2006
$15 8193

(Millions)

Now rcaguiaééd fevenue

Taxes othez than mc@me tares,
Gther in

Income befsre taxés

N interest expense was allocated to discontinued operations ss Niagara
had no external debt obligations during the periods shown above:

m ,iuiy 2006, Inregrys Enorg’v Sewvices completed the sale 05 Sunbury
Sunbury's pirimary asset was the Sunbury generation plant located in
Pennsylvania. This facility sold power on a whc: esale basis when market
conditions were economically favorable. The gain re g:orded in 2@06 was:
$20.2 million pre-tax ( ($12.5 million aftertax), and was included m a
component of discontinued operaumms :

Components of discontinugd Qper&tiims recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Income for the year erded December 31, 2006, related
to Sunbury were as follows:

I morre . be fore taxes

Provision for incorsie taxes
i bﬁﬁ}ﬂﬁﬂﬁ&/ : ?e}r&tiém, net of fax

ftis Intearys Energy Group’s policy to not aﬂacaté?intéfestto discontinted
operations Unless the asset gioup being sold has external debt cbligations,
PEP had no external debit obligations during the period shown above.

was included as a cc:r“pomm‘c ot di $t“ont|rmed operamons
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NOTE 4—PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Dromeﬂy plam and eguipment in service at December 31 consisted of the following utrhty, mznu*n!sty, and nonregulated assets:

fM)iIans)

Eiéﬁﬁc honreguiated
Natura? gas nonrogu(ated

Construcﬁon WO

WN?et mﬂregu.la‘ceggmpe ey, plant, and equment

Sﬁéaixw ’@nmgm%rm,anC¥equkM“@“t

Chicludesthe impscrolihe Weston 4

wer plant becoming commiercially operationalin Jure 2008,

NOTE 5—ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Merger with P
The PEC merger was completed on Febmary 21, 29(;7 The merger
was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, with
Integrys Energy Group s the acquirer. In the merger; shareholders of
PEC received 0.825 shares of Integrys Energy Group comimon stock,

$1 par value, for each shiare of PEC comriion stock; no par value, which
they held immediately priof to the merger. The total purchase price

was approximately $1.6 billion. The results of operations attributable to
PEC are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year

ended December 31, 2008, and for the period from February 22, 2007,
through December 31, 2007, :

The purchase price was allocated based on the sstimated fair market
value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The excess of the
purchase price over the estimated fair values of the tangible net assets
a(iquifed was allocated to idéntifiable intangible assets, with the
remainder allocated 1o goodwill &

I orderto achieve Integrys Energy Group% anticipated merger

synergies; a restricturing plan was implemented, which included a
process to eliminate duplicative positions within Integrys Energy Group,
Costs associated with the mergerrelated involuntary termination of
employees at PEC (the acquired company) were recognized as a lability
assumed in the merger and included in the purchase price allocation

1 accordance with Emerging lssues Task Force lssue No. 95:3,
"Reroqmtxom of Liabilities in Connectlon with a Purchase Business
‘Combination.” The fotlmwmg table summarizes the activity related to
these specific costs for the years ended December 31

Integrys Energy Group; Inc.

f’Mfifmns}/

A(:crued emp o jee severance costs
cat b{ﬂg,nnma of period

Ad]ustmefﬁs to purchcase P

Costs related to the involuntary termination of the acauirer’s employees
were expensed following the guidance of SFAS No. 146, "Accounting
for Costs Associated with Exit ot Digposal Activities.” Costs associated
with the relocation or voluntary terminations of both Integrys Eneray
bmup and PEC employees were expensed in accordance with SFAS
No: 88, "Empleyers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits.” The
following table summarizes the activity related 1o these spedific costs
for the years ended Dacember 31 /

2007

! oyea severance costs
at begrnnmg of period

: Sev@rana@ EXpense re
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On Amn' 1 2006 mtcgw@ Ewemy Cm;up through its wholly owned
subwﬁmfy MGU, completed the acquisition of natural gas distribution
operations in Michigan from Aguila. On July 1, 2006, integrys Energy
Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary MERC, completed the
acquisition of natural gas distribution operations in Minnesota from
Aquila. Integrys Energy Group paid total consideration of $341.7 million
for the Michigan natural gas distribution operations, and $315.7 million
for the Minnesota natural gas distribution operations. Both-amounts
include closing adjustments related primarily to purchased working
capital. Both transactions were accounted for under the purchase
rethod of accounting:

Supplemental Pro Forma Informetion

The foliowing table shows proforma results-of operations for Integrys
Energy Group for the year ended December 31, 2007, as if the
acquisition of PEC had been completed at January 1, 2007, as well
a5 pro forma results of aperations for Integrys Energy Group for the
year ended December 31, 2006; a5 if the acquisitions of PEC and the
Michigan and Minnesota natural gas distribution operations from
Aguila had been completed at January 1, 2006, Pro forma results are
presented for informational purposes iny, assume commercial paper
was used to finance the Michigan and Minnesota transactions, and
ate not necessarily indicative of what the actual results would have
been had the acquisitions actually occurred onJanuary 1, 2007, and
January 1, 2006,

Pro Forma for the Year Ended
Deacember 31
{Millions, except per share amounts) 2007 20('}6
Total revenues $10.997.7 596861
Income from continuing operancn‘s pa1e $1448
Income available for : o
cmmmcm shareholders $2&3 4 $1784
Basic earnings per share ~ , e
cantinuing: Qperanons s 332 7‘2 8o
Basic earnings per share $372: 0 %240
Diluted eamings per share - L
continuing opsratians $2.73 819
Diluted samings per share $372 0 8240

The following dispositions occurred in 2006 but are reported as
continuing operations.

Sale of WPS ESFGas Storags, LLOC

In April 2006, Integrys Energy Services sold WPS ESI Gas Storage, LLC,
which ownec a natural:gas storage fleld:located inthe Kimball Township;
St Clair County, Michigan for $79 Sinillion.: The transaction resufted in

the recognition of a pre-tax gain’ ot $9:0 million,

Sale of Guardian Pipeline

In April 2006, WP Investments, LLC, a consolidated subsidiary of
Integrys Energy Group, completed the sale of its one-third interest

in Guardian Pipeline, LLC for $38.5 millior. The transaction resulted in
the recognition of a pre-tax gain of $6.2 millior in the second quarter
of 2006.

NOTE 6—JOINTLY OWNED UTILITY FACILITIES

WPS helds ajoint ownership interest incertain electric generating
facilities. WPS'is entitled 1o réceive generating capability and output
of ebaci’\ tacility equal to its rcaspod’v@ ownership interest. WPS also
pays its ownership share of additional construction costs; fuel inventary

purchases, and operating expenses unless specificagreements have
been executed to limit its maximurm expesure to additional costs.
WPS’s share of significant jointly ownad slectric generating facilities as
of December 31, 2008, was as foliows:

’ (Millions, except forp itages and megawatts)

o Ownershlp
\"’W¥’3‘S share o frated
’,’Utz lity plant in servi :
Accumg?ated depré tion
In-service date ’

WPS's share of direct exbenses for these plants is recorded in-operating
axpenses-in the Consolidated Statements of Income. WPS has supplied
its own financing-for all jointly owned projects:

Integrys Energy Group, fic

e
”w%»"vsu» &
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NOTE 7MREQU&ATORY ASSETS AND LIABIL ETIES /

assets and iiabs!iteesw’ere reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Dacember 81

Thé fql owing régulator

ies expect to recover thelr requlatory assets.and

incur future costs or refund thelr requiam liabilities through rates
*hargea to customers based on specific ratemakmg detcisions or
precedent for each item over periods sp secified by the regulators of
over the normal operating period of the assets and liabilities to which
they relate. Based on prior and current rate treatment for such costs,
we believe | itis probable that our utility subsidiaries will continue to
recover from customers thie regulatory assets descr bed above.

i

The regulatory assets fisted in the table above related to WPS%
environmental remediation costs, the Weston 3 ithtmm:} strike, rate
case costs, and debt! and PGL and NSG, are not eaming a rate of
return. The r@gu latory asset for WPSs environmental remediation cmts
was $74.1 million at December 31, 2008, and includes both liabilities
and costs incurred to remediate the former manufactured gas plant
sites that have ot yet been recovered through rates. At Decermber 31,
2008, environmental remediation costs that have been incurred but not

{xjx:tég’{gé Eneray Gioun Ine.

‘See Note 1(g), “bumma 2 m“ B;gmﬁmm‘ At )urt»ng Polici @3 Rﬁk

yet recovered in rates were not significant, WPS is authorized recovery
of the regulatory asset related to the Weston 3 lightiing strike over s
sixeyear per:cd The regulitony sseets related to debt at PGL and

NSG are not included in rate base: bt are recovered over the tenn
of the debt through the rate of retim authorized by the lllinois
Commerce Commission (1CC). The regulatory assets related to rate
case costs are authorized recovery over a five-year period. WPS's

reg A[Qt()l} assets are expected 1o be recovered from customears in
future rates; however, the carrying costs of these Jﬁf}ét‘s are borme by
Intearys E,ﬁergy Group's shareholders : ?

i

Management Activiti
Note 14, “Income I“mes ‘
(@ cmhng@nc es, ! Nwt@ 1'7’

m‘mm%on o1 some o% tma mwm
litles listeel in the above table.

AnEnvironment of Enerdy



NOTE 8—INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES, AT EQUITY METHOD

WPS has sales torand purchases frot

Ihvestments in corporate joint ventures and other companies
accounted for under the equity methad at December 31, 2008, and
2007 were as follows:

{'Mf;ﬁf' ns)

i WRPC and-receives net proceeds
from sales of energy into the MISO market:from WRPC. The related
party transactions recorded and net procesds and dividends recelved in
the years ended December 31 were as follows;

| Wisconsin River Powe‘-\i Cmmpa
(WFEPC}

Omer o
lnvestments in affiliates,
at equity method

e

Investments in affiliates accounted forunder the equity method are
included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets; and

the equity’ income {loss] is recorded In mistellaneous incomeon the
Cansolidated Statements of Incorme. Integrys Energy Group is taxed

an ATC’s equity income, rather than ATC, due to the tax flov-through
nature of ATC's business structure. Accordingly, Integrys Energy Group's
provision for incorme taxes includes taxes on ATCS equity Income,
Included in other investments in the above table is Integrys Energy
Services’ ownership in ECO Coal Pelletization #12, LLC. See below

for further explanation of this investment,

ATC : ,
Integrys Energy Group had an approximate 34% ownership interest
in ATC at December 31, 2008, ATC s a forprofit, transmissionsonly
company. ATC owns, maintaing, monitors, and operates electric
transtrission assets in portions of Wiscansin, chh:garx Minngsota,
ane linois:

The requlated slectric utilitles provide construction and other services
to, and receive network transmission services from, ATC, The related
party transactions recorded by the regulated electric utilities, capital
contributions to ATC, and dividends received frcxm ATC in the years
ended Deuember 31 were as follows:

(Mt‘!ﬁé}?ﬁ}j’ : ,

Total charges 1o ATC far services
and construction :

Total costu, for netwo

transmms on :mercmmcfm
Capital contributions to ATC
Dividends received from ATC

509 365
s M7

There were no atvantces 1o ATC for transmission interconmactions
recorded at-Decernber 31, 2008, The amount related o these advances
classified within accounts receivablé and accrued unbilled revenues was
$82 2 million at December 31, 2007,

Ofintegrys Energy Group’s aguity innet ‘wwmsﬁ disclosed below,
$66.1 million, $50.5 million, and $39.0 million is the pre-taxincome
refated to its investment in ATC iy 2008; ?007, and/zOOé respectively.

WRPC

WPS owns 50% of the voting stock of WRPC, which operates two
hydroelectric plants and an oil-fired combustion turbine. Two-thirds of
the energy output of the hydroelectric plants is sold to WPS, and the
_remaining one-third is sold to Wisconsin Power and Light. The electric
power from the combustion turbine is sold in equal parts to WPS amd
Wlsumsm Power and Light.

integrys /éri’e@y/cﬁmup, I

Revenues from services p
o WRPC .

Purchases of egner’gy from WRPC

Net procea,é@s::{rnm/WRF"C sales of
eriergy to MISO

Dividends received from WRPC

Ofintegrys Energy Group's equity in netincome disclosed below,
$2.2 million: $1.8 mi{ﬁfzm, and $3.2 million is the pre-tax income related
1o WPS's investment in WRPC in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

ECO Coal Pelletization #12
At December 31, 2008, Integrys Eneray Services held a 70% ownership
interastin ECO Coal Pelletization #12, LLC, which:held an equity
method investment in an entity that produced synthetic fuel for tax
credits under Section 29/45K of the Internal Revenue Code. Integrys
Energy Services' investment in this facility was not significant at
December 31, 2008, 2007, of 2006, By law, Section 29/45K federal tax
credlits for synthetic fuel pzoducxad from coal expired on December 31,
2007; therefore, this facility ceased mwra’c,m effective January 1, 2008,
Consequently, the losses and royalty incomie iue«\fed from this
investment were not significant during 2008, The losses and royalty
incorme received from the equity method | wem‘m@nt Integiys Energy
Services held through its ownership interest in ECO Coal Pelletization
#12,LLC durmg 200? and 2006, were as follows: :

LQSS@S gener
m‘ ECO

Ravalty mcmme&,ecogn ized .

E ik

In 2007 and 2006, the Qpéﬁmt’iéﬁ of this facility generated positive
earnings when including the fax credits generated and the impact of
gains on oil aptions utilized to mitigate the risk that rising oil prices had
on the value of the tax credits. '

Guardian Pipeline

In April 2008, Integrys Energy Group mmpicrad the sale 05 its one-third
interest in Guardian. Pzpe%m@ At the time of sale, Guardian Pipeline, LLC
owned a natural gas pipeling, w% ich b gegm Qpera’cmg in 2002, that
stretched about 140 miles from near Jolist, |lingls, into southemn
Wisconsin, it could transport up o /"L:O rillion cubic faet of natural gas
da ilv. See Note 5, " Acquisitions and Dispositions,’ 1‘0( more informatfm

related ta the sale

tegrys Energy Services recorded related party rransac‘mﬁs for
purchases from Guardian Pipeline. These purchases amounted to
$0.9 million in 2006 through the date of sale.




Einancial Dasa

Combined financial data of Integrys Energy Group's significant equity
method investments ATC and WRPC, are included in the table balow.
The financial data of Guardian Pipeline is not included, as Integrys Energy

- Baiam:e 5he@i data
: Lurrent assels

NOTE 9—GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Integrys Eneray Group had the following changes to the canying amount of goodwill for the yearended

Decemberd

Group sold this investment in April 2006 and the financial information
from-danuary 1, 2006, through the date of sale was not significant.

1! mﬁ.‘ﬁi !OSS

~ Natural Gas
ﬁtxhty Sngwt

Gaodw;ﬂ recorded atD Qec@mbar a1, .‘Zﬁﬁ8

r&quv@’: by: GAAF
Griits at Integrys

il ipainientat m,'.(:f‘sz Tet ‘wg L

triountol $6.5 mnl'or‘ 5
O gt least amarmual

odwnh alance aud an

m w deam m’ amnwmn ‘«?mm ;
iihinithe fast few years, @w,rk & ’zth dc zlmv m w vaiua f,,an re:.ull ina

Integrys Energy Group,fng.

present
The goochwill uw'vammmmt
valie of NSG; euused prin wamy
foracast at the time of theibooy

the decling in fairvalie;
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Identifiahle intangible assets other than goodwill are included as a compornent of other

© (Millions)
Am&ﬁized imangikﬁmawmﬁ o
: ‘(liabi!ities)
:ﬁ(.,ustomel related U
Natural gas and ?‘le(*mt:
Gentract assets @0
Namra! gas and e eur
mntr‘act liabilities .

hmzss,en aglﬁwar\{:as -
Renewable energy credits @
Cther =

Total

Unamqrtizeé ¥8tangibie assets
Trade name 7
Total j{z}iaﬂgibie assets

ible-assets

intangible asset amortization expense, excluding amortization related
toinatural-gas andelectiic contracts, was recorded as a component of
depreciation and amortization expense. Amortization for the yedrs ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, was $7.9 million, $8.5 million, and
§2. 1 million, respectively.

Amottization expense forthe next five fiscal years is estimated 16 be:

December 31, 2008

(Millions)

For year éﬁding Dece

Amortization of the natural gas and electric contract intangible assets
was recorded as-a component of mcﬂrcgulated costof fuel; naturat gas,
and purchased power Amortization of these contracts for the'years

NOTE 10—LEASES

Integrys Energy Group leases various property, plant; and equiprent:
Terms of the operating leases vary, but-generally- require Integrys
Energy Group to pay property taxes, insurance premiums, and
maintenance costs associated with the leased property. Many of
integrys Energy Group"s leases contain one of the following options
upon the end of the lease term: (a) purchase the property at the:currént
falr market value or (b) exercise & renewal option, as set forth in the
lease agreemant. Rental expense attributable to operating leases was
§17:0 million; $13.6 million, and $7.0:million-in 2008, 2007, and 2006,
respectively. Futire minimum rental obligations under non-cancelable
operating leases are payable as follows:

Integrys Energy Group, lic.

- gssets within the Consolidated Balance Sheets as listed below.

o December 31, 2007

. Gress 0 Accumulated
arrying Amount Amortization Net
$326 $63  $233
40,1 344 260
(23 &) 131 (206.5)
24 02 22
04 04 “
34 08 5 26
5653 31 $336
5.2 e sy
%705 $G310 . %388

i the ¢
577 miflion s
amortiza hon period at D&mmb(:r 37 2006 lm th
sion allow
atinteqgrys
fér tracling pu

A i gl expiration
by with state Renawalsle Por

ended Dacember 31,2008, and 2007, resulted in an increase to
nonregulated fuel, natural gas, and purchased power i the amount

of $34 4 million and $21.0 million, respectively.

al-years s estimated

Arnortization of these centracts for the next five fisc

o be:

{Millions)
Far year endmg ﬁec@mher a’i 2009

} Year Endmg December 31 l
i iac:ns}
2009
2010

2011

012

i
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NQ?E,’} 1 SHORT.TERM DEE,% AND LINES OF CREDIT

Mt@qrys Eﬂergy Grotp's shork-term borrowings Consxst t of sales of commercial paper, bofmwmga under revelving credit facilities, and shortterm
notes. Amounts shown are as of December 31; :

The commercial paper at December 31, 20@8{ had va/&ihg maturity relates to Integryi Energy Group's short-term dei:xt i-nes @f credit, and
dzﬂ‘és rshgfﬁg from Jancary 2, 2009, through Jaﬁuazy 30,2009 remammg avadan e capacity as of December 3l -

m@grys Energy Group managm its liguic mf by mal intaining adequare
nx’tamai financing commitmerits. The ﬂformatfon in the table bel

05/1 3/@@
03/30/09 '

finance jts working capital Feguiements and

taiMay 2009

At Decernber 31, 2008, integrys Enargy Group and its subsicliarias were capital ization ratio not to exceed 65%, excludi ng naﬁ«recmmg debt

in compliance with all covenants relating to outstanding shortterm debt Failure to meet these covenants beyond ap pp Slicable grace periods could
andl expect to be in conipliance with all such debt covenants for the result In accelerated due dates and/or termination of the agreements.
foresesable future. Integrys Energy Group and certain subsidiaries! Termination of the agreements could perit lenders to require
revolving credit agreements contain financial and other covenants, immediate repavment of the autstanding barrowings thereunder

including, but not limited to a requirement to mairitain & debt to total

}n‘ceg%ys Energy Group, e, An Env?fc;nrﬁént of Energy



NOTE 12—LONG-TERM DEBT

(Millions)

— December 31

WPS First Mortgage Bonds @
Serjes Year Due
7425% 2023

WPS Senior Notes @
Series Year Due

6.125% 2011
4.875% 2012
4.80% 2013
3.95% 2013
6.375% 2015
5.65% 2017
6.08% 2028
5.55% 2036

UPPCO First Mortgage Bonds: @
Series Year Due
9.32% 2021

PEC Unsecured Senior Note ®
Series Year Due
A 6.90% 2011
Fair value hedge adjustrment
PGL Fixed First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds ©
Series YearDue

HH, 4.75% 2030 Adjustable after July 11,2014
KK 5.00% 2033
L 3.75% 2033 Adjustable after February 1, 2012
MM-2,-4.00% 2010
NN-2, 4:625% 2013
QQ, 4.875% 2038 Adjustable after November 1, 2018
RR,4.30% 2035 Adjustable after June 1, 2016
58,7.00% 2013
TT,8.00% 2018

PGL Adjustable First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds ©
Series Year Due
@@ 2037
PP 2037
NSG First Mortgage Bonds ¥
Series Year:Dus

M, 5.00% 2028
N-2, 4.625% 2013
O, 7.00% 2013
Integrys Energy Group Unsecured Senior Notes
Series Year Due
5.375% 2012
7.00% 2009

Integrys Energy Group Unsecured Junior Subbrdinated Notes ®
Series Year Due
6.11% 2066

Unsecured term loan due 2010 - Integrys Energy Group

Term loans ~ nonrecourse; collateralized by norreqgulated assets

Integrys Energy Services' loan

Other term loan ™

Senior secured note

Total
Unamortized discount and premium on bonds and debt

Total debt
Less current portion

Total long-term debt

integrys Energy Group, Inc.

| An Environment of Energy

2007

$ 01

150.0
1500
125.0

22.0

125.0
50.0
125.0

12:6

51.0
51.0

291
40.0

100.0
150.0

300.0
65.6
105

0.1

27.0

1.7
2,311.0
93
2,320.3
(55.2)
$2,265.1




=

S

iS

WPS' First Mortgage Bonds and Senior Notes are subject to the terms and conditions of
WPSSs First Mortgage indenture. Under the terms of the Indenture, substantially &lf
property owned by WPS is pleciged as collateral for these outstanding debt securities. All
of these debt securities require semi-annual payments of interest. WPS Senior Notes
become non-collateralized if WPS retires all of its outstanding First Mortgage Bonds and
no new mortgage indenture is put in place.

In December 2008, WPS issued $125.0 million of Series 6.375% Senior Notes due
December 1, 2015. The net proceeds from the issuance of the Senior Notes were used for
funding construction costs and other capital additions, retiring short-term debt refated to
construction, and general corporate utility purposes.

In November 2007, WPS issued $125.0 million of Series 5.65% Senior Notes due
November 1, 2017. The net proceeds from the issuance of the Senior Notes were used for
fundling construction costs and other capital additions and general corporate utility
purposes

Under the terms of UPPCO’ First Mortgage Indenture, substantially all property owned by
UPPCO is pledged as collateral for this outstanding debt series. interest payments are due
semi-annually with a sinking fund payment of $900,000 due each November 1. The final
sinking fund payment due November 1, 2021, will completely retire the series.

On March 6, 2007, Integrys Energy Group announced that it had entered into a First
Supplemental Indenture with PEC and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A The
terms of the supplemental indenture provide that Integrys Energy Group will fully and
unconditionally guarantee, on a senior unsecured basis, PEC% obligations under its

$325.0 million, 6.9% notes due January 15, 2011, See Note 16, “Guarantess,” for more
information related to this guaranty.

In November 2008, PGL issued $45 million of Series 55, 7.0%, 5-year First and Refunding
Mortgage Bonds due November 1, 2013 and $5 million of Series TT, 8.0%, 10-year First and
Refunding Mortgage Bonds dus November 1, 2018. The net proceeds from the issuance of
these bonds were used to reduce short-term debt and for other general corporate utility
purposes. The first and refunding mortgage bonds were sold in a private placement and
are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933,

On February 1, 2008, the interest rate on the $50.0 million 3.05% Series LL First Mortgage
Bonds at PGL, which support the fllinois Development Finance Authority Adjustable-Rate
Gas Supply Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 20038, was established at a term rate of
3.75% through January 31, 2012, adjustable after February 1, 2012, These bonds were
subject to a mandatory tender for purchase and were remarketed on February 1, 2008.
As a result, these bonds were presented in the current portion of long-term debt on
integrys Energy Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007. These
bonds were included as long-term debt in the Deceniber 31, 2008, Consclidated

Balance Sheet.

PGLSs First Mortgage Bonds are subject to the terms and conditions of PGLs First
Mortgage Indenture dated January 2, 1926, as supplemented. Under the terms of the
Indenture, substantially all property owned by PGL is pledged as collateral for these
outstanding debt securities.

PGL has outstanding $51.0 million of Adjustable Rate, Series OO Bonds, due October 1,
2037, which are currently in a 35-clay Auction Rate mode (the interest rate is reset every
35 days through an auction process). The weighted-average interest rate for 2008 was
5.391% for these bonds.

On April 17, 2008, PGL completed the purchase of $51.0 million of lllinois Development
Finance Authority Series 20030 Bonds, due October 1, 2037, and backed by PGL Series PP
Bonds. Upon repurchase, the auction rate mode was converted from a 35-day mode to a
weekly variable rate mode. This transaction was treated as a repurchase of the Series PP
Bonds by PGL. As a result, the liability related to the Series PP Bonds was extinguished.
PGL intends to hold the bonds while it continues to monitor the tax-exempt market and
assess potential remarketing or refinancing opportunities.

At December 31, 2008, Integrys Energy Group and each of its
subsidiaries were in compliance with all respective covenants relating to
outstanding long-term debt and expect to be in compliance with all
such debt covenants for the foreseeable future. Integrys Energy Group
and certain subsidiaries’ long-term debt obligations contain covenants
related to payment of principal and interest when due and various
financial reporting obligations. Failure to comply with these covenants

could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could

result in the acceleration of outstanding debt obligations.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

i8

PGL's First Mortgage Bonds are subject to the terms and conditions of PGLS First
Mortgage Indenture dated January 2, 1926, as supplemented. Under the terms of the
Indenture, substantially all property owned by PGL is pledged as collateral for these
outstanding debt securities.

PGL has utilized certain First Mortgage Bonds to secure tax exempt interest rates. The
HHinois Finance Authority and the City of Chicage have issued Tax Fxempt Bonds, and the
proceeds from the sale of these bonds were loaned to PGL. In return, PGL issued equal
principal amounts of certain collateralized First Mortgage Bonds.

In November 2008, NSG issued $6.5 million of Series O, 7.0%, 5-year First Mortgage Bonds
due November 1, 2013. The net proceeds from the issuance of the First Mortgage Bonds
was used for general corporate utility purposes. The First Mortgage Bonds were sold in a
private placement and are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933,

NSG First Mortgage Bonds are subject to the terms and conditions of NSG's First
Mortgage Indenture dated April 1, 1955, as supplemented. Under the terms of the
Indenture, substantially all property owned by NSG is pledged as collateral for these
cutstanding debt securities.

NSG has utifized First Mortgage Bonds to secure tax exempt interest rates. The lllinois
Finance Authority has issued Tax Exempt Bonds, and the proceeds from the sale of these
bonds were loaned to N5G. In return, NSG issued equal principal amounts of certain
collateralized First Mortgage Bonds

On December 1, 2006, Integrys Energy Group issued $300.0 miliion of Junior Subordinated
Notes. Due to certain features of these notes, rating agencies consider them to be hybrid
instruments with a combination of debt and equity characteristics. These notes have a 60-
year term and rank junior to all current and future indebtedness of Integrys Energy Group,
with the exception of trade accounts payable and other accrued liabilities arising in the
ordinary course of business. Interest is payable semi-annually at the stated rate of 6.11% for
the first ten years, but the rate has been fixed at 6.22% for this period through the use of
forward-starting interest rate swaps. The interest rate will float for the remainder of the
term. The notes can be prepaid without penalty after the first ten years. Integrys Energy
Group has agreed, however, in a replacement capital covenant with the holders of Integrys
Energy Group’s 5.375% Unsecured Senior Notes due December 1, 2012, that it will not
redleem or repurchase the Junior Subordinated Notes on or prior to December 1, 2036,
unless such repurchases or redemptions are made from the proceeds of the sale of specific
securities considered by rating agencies to have equity characteristics equal to or greater
than those of the Junior Subordinated Notes.

Borrowings by Integrys Energy Services under term Joans and collateralized by
nonregulated assets totaled $6.6 million at December 31, 2008. The assets of WPS New
England Generation, Inc. and WPS Canada Generation, Inc., subsidiaries of Integrys
Energy Services, collateralize $1.9 million and $4.7 million, respectively, of the total
outstanding amount. Both loans have semi-annual instaliment payments, interest rates of
8.75%, maturity dates in May 2010, and are guaranteed by Integrys Energy Group starting
January 2009,

Y9 In April 2001, the Schuylkill County Industrial Development Authority issued $27.0 million of

Refundling Tax Exempt Bonds. The proceeds from the bonds were loaned to WFS Westwood
Generation, LLC, a subsidiary of Integrys Energy Services. This loan is repaid by

WPS Westwood Generation to Schuykkill County Industrial Development Authority with
monthly interest only payments and has a floating interest rate that is reset weekly. At
December 31, 2008, the interest rate was 1.38%. The loan is to be repaid by April 2021,
integrys Energy Group agreed to guarantee WPS Westwood Generation’s obligation to
provide sufficient funds to pay the loan and the related obligations and indemnities

On June 26, 2008, Upper Peninsula Building Development Corporation, a subsidiary of
integrys Energy Group, repaid the outstanding principal balance on its 9.25% Senior
Secured Note. The note was secured by a First Mortgage lien on a building sold in July 2008
that was previously owned and leased to UPPCO for use as their corporate headquarters.

A schedule of all principal debt payment amounts, including bond
maturities and early retirements, for Integrys Energy Group is as follows:

[ Year Ending December 31 ]

(Millions)

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Later years

55

:
1188

8

50.9

Total payments
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to removal of natural gas distribution pipe (including asbestos and
PCBs); asbestos abatement at certain facilities, office buildings, and

service centers; disposal of PCB-contaminated transformers; and closure

of fly-ash landfills at certain generation facilities. In accordance with
SFAS No. 71, the utilities establish regulatory assets and liabilities to
record the differences between ongoing expense recognition under
SFAS No. 143 and FASB Interpretation No. 47, and the ratemaking

practices for retirement costs authorized by the applicable regulators.

NOTE 13—ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The utility segments have asset retirement obligations primarily related

Asset retirement obligations at Integrys Energy Services relate to
asbestos abatement at certain generation facilities.

As discussed in Note 3, “Discontinued Operations,” Integrys Energy
Services completed the sale of Sunbury in July 2006, which included
the transfer of asset retirement obligations related to Sunbury.

Changes to Asset Retirement Obligation Liabilities
The following table shows changes to Integrys Energy Group's asset
retirement obligations through December 31, 2008.

Integrys

{Millions} Utilities Energy Services Total
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2005 $ 86 $63 $ 149
Accretion 0.5 0.2 0.7
Asset retirement obligations from acquisition of natural

gas operations in Michigan and Minnesota 0.3 - 0.3
Asset retirement obligations transferred in'sales - (5.8 (5.8)
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2006 0.7 10.1

Accretion - 6.8
Asset retirement obligations from merger with PEC - 124.9
Asset retirement obligations transferred in sales - 0.2)
Settlements - 1.4)

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2007
Accretion

Additions and revisions to estimated cash flows
Asset retirement obligations transferred in sales

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2008

NOTE 14—INCOME TAXES

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
Certain temporary book to tax differences, for which the offsetting
amount is recorded as a regulatory asset or liability, are presented in

the table below as net amounts, consistent with regulatory treatment,

The principal components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 are
as follows:

(Millions)

Deferred tax assets:

Tax credit carryforwards

Employee benefits

State capital and operating loss carryforwards
Other

Total deferred tax assets

Valuation allowance

Net deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities:
Plant related
Regulatory deferrals
Price risk management

Total deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated balance sheet presentation:
Current deferred tax fiabilities
Long-term deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax liabilities

integrys Energy Group, Inc.
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In 2008, unrecognized tax benefits at Integrys Energy Group increased
$12.4 million, primarily related to positions we expect to be taken by
the United States Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and the state of lllinois
during on-going examinations and appeals.

At December 31, 2008, unrecognized tax benefits of $4.6 million could
affect Integrys Energy Group’s effective tax rate for continuing operations
if recognized in subsequent periods. Also at December 31, 2008,
unrecognized tax benefits of $9.5 million related to discontinued
operations could affect Integrys Energy Group’s effective tax rate if
recognized in subsequent periods.

Subsidiaries of Integrys Energy Group file income tax returns in the
United States federal jurisdiction, in various United States state and
local jurisdictions, and in Canada. Subject to the following major
exceptions listed below, Integrys Energy Group is no longer subject
to United States federal, state and local, or foreign income tax
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2003.

m Wisconsin Department of Revenue - WPS has agreed to statute
extensions for tax years covering 2001 and 2002.

®  New York State Department of Revenue — Integrys Energy Services
has the 2002 tax year open for amended returns that were filed.

® Oregon Department of Revenue - WPS Power Development has an
open examination for the 2002 tax year.

In 2008, Integrys Energy Group closed the following examination:

® Oregon Department of Revenue — WPS Power Development, Inc. for
the tax year 2001.

Integrys Energy Group has the following open examinations:

® RS - PEC and consolidated subsidiaries have an open examination
for the September 30, 2004, through December 31, 2006, tax years.

& RS - Integrys Energy Group and consolidated subsidiaries has an
open examination for the 2006 and 2007 tax years along with the
February 21, 2007, PEC short year.

m  |llinois Department of Revenue — PEC and combined subsidiaries
have an open examination for the September 30, 2003, through
December 31, 2006, tax years.

B Wisconsin Department of Revenue — WPS has an open examination
for the 2001-2006 tax years.

8 New York State Department of Revenue — WPS Energy Services and
WPS Power Development have open examinations for the 2004 and
2005 tax years. Also, Integrys Energy Services has the 2002 and
2003 tax years open for amended returns that were filed.

®  Oregon Department of Revenue — WPS Energy Services has an open
examination for the 2005 tax year; WPS Power Development has an
open examination for the 2002, 2003, and 2004 tax years.

In the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that Integrys Energy
Group and its subsidiaries will settle their open examinations in multiple
taxing jurisdictions related to tax years prior to 2006, resulting in a
decrease in unrecognized tax benefits of as much as $11.6 million.

NOTE 15—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commodity Purchase Obligations and

Purchase Order Commitments

Integrys Energy Group routinely enters into long-term purchase and sale
commitments that have various quantity requirements and durations. The
regulated natural gas utilities have obligations to distribute and sell
natural gas to their customers, and the regulated electric utilities have
obligations to distribute and sell electricity to their customers. The
utilities expect to recover costs related to these obligations in future
customer rates. Additionally, the majority of the energy supply contracts
entered into by our nonregulated segment, Integrys Energy Services, are
to meet its obligations to deliver energy to customers.

The obligations described below are as of December 31, 2008.

®  The electric utility segment has obligations related to coal
supply and transportation that extend through 2016 and total
$598.2 million, obligations of $1.3 billion for either capacity or
energy related to purchased power that extend through 2027,
and obligations for other commodities totaling $14.3 miltion,
which extend through 2013.

® The natural gas utility segment has obligations related to natural
gas supply and transportation contracts totaling $1.3 billion, some
of which extend through 2028.

8 Integrys Energy Services has obligations related to energy and
natural gas supply contracts that extend through 2018 and total
$4.0 billion. The majority of these obligations end by 2011, with
obligations totaling $269.4 million extending beyond 2012.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

®m  Integrys Energy Group also has commitments in the form
of purchase orders issued to various vendors, which totaled
$626.8 million and relate to normal business operations, as
well as large construction projects.

Environmental

United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Section 114 Request

In 2000, WPS received a request from the EPA under Section 114 of the
Clean Air Act, seeking information related to work performed on the
coal-fired boilers located at WPS’s Pulliam and Weston electric
generation stations. WPS filed a response with the EPA in early 2001.

In May 2002, WPS received a follow-up request from the EPA seeking
additional information regarding specific boiler-related work performed
on Pulliam Units 3, 5, and 7, as well as information on WPS’ life
extension program for Pulliam Units 3-8 and Weston Units 1 and 2. WPS
filed a final response to the EPA's follow-up request in June 2002.

tn 2000 and 2002, Wisconsin Power and Light Company (WP&L)
received a similar series of EPA information requests relating to work
performed on certain coal-fired boilers and related equipment at the
Columbia generation station (a facility focated in Portage, Wisconsin,
jointly owned by WP&L, Madison Gas and Electric Company, and WPS).
WP&L is the operator of the plant and is responsible for responding to
governmental inquiries relating to the operation of the facility. WP&L
filed its response for the Columbia facility in July 2002.
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Depending upon the results of the EPA's review of the information
provided by WPS and WP&L, the EPA may perform any of the
following:

® issue notices of violation (NOV) asserting that a violation of the
Clean Air Act occurred,

m seek additional information from WPS, WP&L, and/or third parties
who have information relating to the boilers, and/or

m close out the investigation.

In addition, under the Clean Air Act, citizen groups may pursue a claim.
WPS has no notice of such a claim based on the information submitted
to the EPA.

To date, the EPA has not responded to the 2001 and 2002 filings made
by WPS and WP&L. However, in March 2008, a data request was
received from the EPA seeking information related to operations and
projects for the Pulliam and Weston coal-fired boilers from January
2000 to the present. WPS has submitted its response. In December
2008, WP&L received a similar data request and is preparing its
response.

In response to the EPA's Clean Air Act enforcement initiative, several
utilities elected to settle with the EPA, while others are in litigation. The
fines and penalties (including the cost of supplemental environmental
projects) associated with settlements involving comparably-sized
facilities range between $7 million and $30 million. The regulatory
interpretations upon which the lawsuits or settlements are based may
change based on future court decisions of the pending litigations.

If the federal government brings a claim against WPS and if it were
determined by a court that historic projects at WPS's Pulliam and
Weston plants required either a state or federal Clean Air Act permit,
WPS may, under the applicable statutes, be required to:

® shut down any unit found to be operating in non-compliance,
® install additional pollution control equipment,
® pay a fine, and/or

® pay a fine and conduct a supplemental environmental project in
order to resolve any such claim.

Pulliam Air Notice of Violation

In September 2007, an NOV was issued to WPS by the Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) alleging various violations
of the Pulliam facility’s Title V permit, primarily pertaining to certain
recordkeeping and monitoring requirements. WPS met with the WDNR
in November 2007 to discuss and attempt to resolve the matters
identified in the NOV, and subsequently submitted additional
information pursuant to the WDNR's request. While not finally
confirmed by the WDNR, WPS understands that this issue is essentially
resolved.

Weston 4 Air Permit

In November 2004, the Sierra Club filed a petition with the WDNR under
Section 285.61 of the Wisconsin Statutes seeking a contested case
hearing on the construction permit issued for the Weston 4 generation
station, which is a necessary predicate to plant construction under the
pertinent air emission regulations (hereinafter referred to as the “Weston
4 air permit”). In February 2006, the administrative law judge affirmed
the Weston 4 air permit with changes to the emission limits for sulfur
dioxide and nitrogen oxide from the coal-fired boiler and particulate
from the cooling tower. The changes, which were implemented by the
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WDNR in a revised permit issued on March 28, 2007, set limits that are
more stringent than those originally set by the WDNR (hereinafter
referred to as the “March 28, 2007, permit language”).

On April 27, 2007, the Sierra Club filed a second petition requesting a
contested case hearing regarding the March 28, 2007, permit language,
which was granted by the WDNR. Both parties subsequently moved for
summary judgment. In a decision issued on November 8, 2007, the
administrative law judge granted WPS'’s motion for summary judgment
in that proceeding, upholding the March 28, 2007, permit language.
The Sierra Club filed petitions with the Dane County Circuit Court on
April 27, 2007, and November 14, 2007, for judicial review of the
Weston 4 air permit and the underlying proceedings before the
administrative law judge. These two judicial review proceedings were
consolidated by the Court. On February 12, 2009, the Court upheld the
administrative law judge’s final order, which affirmed the WDNR's
actions. The Sierra Club has 30 days to appeal this decision.

These activities did not stay the construction and startup of the Weston 4
facility or the administrative law judge’s decision on the Weston 4 air
permit. WPS believes that it has substantial defenses to the Sierra Club’s
challenges. Until the Sierra Club's challenge is finally resolved, Integrys
Energy Group will not be able to make a final determination of the
probable cost impact, if any, of compliance with any changes to the
Weston 4 air permit on its future costs.

In December 2008, an NOV was issued to WPS by the WDNR alleging
various violations of the air permits for Weston 4, as well as Weston 1
and 2. The alleged violations include an exceedance of the carbon
monoxide and volatile organic compound limits at Weston 4,
exceedances of the hourly sulfur dioxide limit in ten 3-hour periods
during startup/shutdown and during one separate event at Weston 4,
and two that address baghouse operation at Weston 1 and 2.
Corrective actions have been taken. An enforcement conference was
held on January 7, 2009. it is likely that the WDNR will refer the NOV to
the state Justice Department for enforcement. Management does not
believe that this will have a material adverse impact on the results of
operations of Integrys Energy Group.

Weston Qperating Permits
In early November 2006, it came to the attention of WPS that previous

ambient air quality computer modeling done by the WDNR for the
Weston facility (and other nearby air sources) did not take into account
the emissions from the existing Weston 3 facility for purposes of
evaluating air quality increment consumption under the required
Prevention of Significant Deterioration. WPS believes it has undertaken
and completed corrective measures to address any identified modeling
issues and anticipates issuance of a revised Title V permit in the near
future that will resolve this issue. Integrys Energy Group currently is not
able to make a final determination of the probable cost impact of this
issue, if any.

In December 2008, an NOV was issued to WPS by the WDNR that
includes alleged violations of the air permit at Weston 1 and 2 related
to the operation of the baghouses. This NOV is discussed above under
“Weston 4 Air Permit.”

Mercury and Interstate Air Quality Rules

Mercury

The state of Wisconsin has recently revised the state mercury rule,
Chapter NR 446. The revised rule requires a 40% reduction from the 2002
through 2004 baseline beginning January 1, 2010, through the end of
2014. Beginning in 2015, electric generating units above 150 megawatts
will be required to reduce emissions by 90%. Reductions can be phased
in and the 90% target can be delayed until 2021 if additional sulfur
dioxide and nitrogen oxide reductions are implemented. By 2015, electric
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generating units above 25 megawatts but less than 150 megawatts must
reduce their mercury emissions to a level defined as the Best Available
Control Technology rule. WPS estimates capital costs of approximately
$26 million for phase one, which includes estimates for both wholly
owned and jointly owned plants, to achieve the required reductions.
The capital costs are expected to be recovered in future rate cases.
Following the promulgation of a federal mercury control and monitoring
rule in 2005 by the EPA, the state of Wisconsin filed suit along with
other states in opposition of the rule. On February 8, 2008, the United
States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit ruled in
favor of the petitioners and vacated the federal rule. In May 2008, the
EPA's appeal of the ruling was denied. The EPA is reviewing options for
a new rulemaking.

Sulfur Dioxide and Nitrogen Oxide

The EPA issued the Clean Air Interstate Rule, formerly known as the
Interstate Air Quality Rule (CAIR), in 2005. The rule was originally
intended to reduce sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions from
utility boilers located in 29 states, including Wisconsin, Michigan,
Pennsylvania, and New York. The CAIR required reduction of sulfur
dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions in two phases. The first phase
required about a 50% reduction beginning in 2009 for nitrogen oxide
and beginning in 2010 for sulfur dioxide. The second phase was to
begin in 2015 for both pollutants and required about a 65% reduction
in emissions. The rule allowed the state of Wisconsin to either require
utilities located in the state to participate in the EPA's interstate cap and
trade program or meet the state’s emission budget for sulfur dioxide
and nitrogen oxide through measures to be determined by the state.
Wisconsin's rule, which incorporates the cap and trade approach, had
completed the state legislative review and had been forwarded to the
EPA for final review.

On July 11, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia issued a decision vacating the CAIR and the associated
Federal Implementation Plan. The EPA requested a rehearing of the
decision by the Court of Appeals. On December 23, 2008, the Court of
Appeals reversed the CAIR vacatur and thus CAIR has been reinstated.
The court also directed the EPA to address the deficiencies noted in its
July 11, 2008, ruling.

Prior to the court’s vacatur decision, WPS was evaluating a number of
options, including using the allowance cap and trade program and/or
installing controls. Following the vacatur, WPS put its allowance trading
activities on hold. Now with the reinstatement of CAIR, WPS has been
re-analyzing its options. WPS does not currently own any annual
nitrogen oxide emission allowances beyond those allocated by the
state, but has taken delivery of a small number of additional ozone
season nitrogen oxide allowances since the reinstatement of CAIR. WPS
does not expect any material impact as a result of the vacatur and
subsequent reinstatement of the CAIR with respect to nitrogen oxide
emission allowances. WPS has been authorized by the PSCW to defer in
2009 purchases of nitrogen oxide emission allowances, which are
estimated to be $20 million.

The reinstatement of CAIR has also affected the status of the Best
Available Retrofit Technology rule. The WDNR position, as well as the
status of WPS units, under that rule is currently being evaluated.

For planning purposes, it is still assumed that additional sulfur dioxide
and nitrogen oxide controls will be needed on existing units. The
installation of any controls will need to be scheduled as part of WPS's
long-term maintenance plan for its existing units. As such, controls may
need to be installed before 2015. On a preliminary basis, and assuming
controls are still required, WPS estimates capital costs of $523 miliion,
which includes estimates for both wholly owned and jointly owned
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plants, in order to meet an assumed 2015 compliance date. This
estimate is based on costs of current control technology and current
information regarding the final state and federal rules. The capital costs
are anticipated to be recovered in future rate cases.

Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation

Integrys Energy Group’s natural gas utilities, their predecessors, and
certain former affiliates operated facilities in the past at multiple sites for
the purpose of manufacturing and storing manufactured gas and, as
such, are responsible for the environmental impacts at 55 manufactured
gas plant sites located in Wisconsin, Michigan, and lllinois. All are
former regulated utility sites and are being remediated, with costs
charged to existing ratepayers at WPS, MGU, PGL, and NSG. Eight of
these sites have been transferred to the EPA Superfund Alternative Sites
Program, and 11 sites have been transferred to the EPA's Superfund
Removal Program. On November 4, 2008, the 11 sites were transferred
to the EPA Superfund Alternative Sites Program. Integrys Energy Group
estimated and accrued for $639.0 million of future undiscounted
investigation and cleanup costs as of December 31, 2008. Integrys
Energy Group recorded a regulatory asset of $679.9 million, which is
net of insurance recoveries received of $54.4 million, related to the
recovery of both unrecovered expenditures and estimated future
expenditures as of December 31, 2008.

The natural gas utilities are coordinating the investigation and the
cleanup of the manufactured gas plant sites under what is called a "multi-
site” program. This program involves prioritizing the work to be done at
the sites, preparation and approval of documents common to all of the
sites, and utilization of a consistent approach in selecting remedies.

The EPA has identified NSG as a potentially responsible party (PRP)
under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act of 1980, as amended (CERCLA), at the Waukegan Coke
Plant Site located in Waukegan, lllinois (Waukegan Site). The Waukegan
Site is part of the Outboard Marine Corporation (OMC) Superfund Site.
The EPA also identified OMC, General Motors Corporation, and certain
other parties as PRPs at the Waukegan Site. NSG and the other PRPs
are parties to a consent decree that requires NSG and General Motors,
jointly and severally, to perform the remedial action and establish and
maintain financial assurance of $27.0 million (in the form of certain
defined net worth levels that NSG has met). The soil component of the
remedial action was completed in August 2005. The final design for the
groundwater component of the remedial action has been completed,
and construction of the groundwater treatment plan was completed in
August 2008. Operation of the groundwater treatment unit began in
September 2008 and is expected to be up to full capacity during the
first quarter of 2009. The EPA reduced the financial assurance
requirement to $21.0 million to reflect completion of the soil
component of the remedial action.

With respect to portions of certain sites in the city of Chicago (Chicago),
PGL received demands from site owners and others asserting standing
regarding the investigation or remediation of their parcels. Some of
these demands seek to require PGL to perform extensive investigations
or remediations. These demands include notice letters sent to PGL by
River Village West. In April 2005, River Village West filed suit against PGL
in the United States District Court for the Northern District of lllinois
under Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). The suit, River
Village West LLC et al. v. The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company,
No. 05-C-2103 (N.D. lll. 2005) (RVW 1), seeks an order directing PGL to
remediate three former sites: the former South Station, the former
Throop Street Station, and the former Hough Place Station.

In August 2006, a member of River Village West individually filed suit
against PGL in the United States District Court for the Northern District
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of lllinois under the RCRA. The suit, Thomas A. Snitzer v. The Peoples
Gas Light and Coke Company, No. 06-C-4465 (N.D. ll. 2006) (Snitzer ),
seeks an order directing PGL to remediate the Willow Street Station
former manufactured gas plant site, which is located along the Chicago
River. In October 2006, the same individual filed another suit in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of lllinois under
RCRA and CERCLA. The suit, Thomas A. Snitzer v. The Peoples Gas
Light and Coke Company, No. 06-C-5901 (N.D. IIl. 2006) (Snitzer II),
seeks an order directing PGL to remediate four former manufactured
gas plant sites, which are located on or near the Chicago River: 22nd
Street Station, Division Street Station, Hawthorne Station, and North
Shore Avenue Station. This individual also notified PGL of his intent to
file suit under RCRA and CERCLA seeking an order directing PGL to
remediate two other such sites: Calumet Station and North Station.

In February 2007, Snitzer | and Snitzer Il were consolidated with the
RVW Il case. In June 2007, PGL filed a motion to dismiss, or in the
alternative, stay the consolidated litigation on the basis of the transfer
of the sites at issue in the litigation to the EPA Superfund Removal
Program. On September 28, 2007, the federal district court issued a
ruling staying the litigation “pending the conclusion of the United
States EPA actions” at these sites. The plaintiffs filed a motion for
reconsideration. The court reconsidered the stay and on September 25,
2008, granted PGL's motion for a judgment on the pleadings dismissing
the suit. On October 24, 2008, the plaintiffs appealed the district court’s
ruling. The parties have now agreed to terms of a settlement and upon
execution of the settlement documents and implementation of the
settlement terms, this matter will be dismissed. The amount of the
settlement was not material to Integrys Energy Group.

Management believes that any costs incurred for environmental
activities relating to former manufactured gas plant operations that are
not recoverable through contributions from other entities or from
insurance carriers have been prudently incurred and are, therefore,
recoverable through rates for WPS, MGU, PGL, and NSG. Accordingly,
management believes that the costs incurred in connection with former
manufactured gas plant operations will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial position or results of operations of Integrys
Energy Group.

Flood Damage
In May 2003, a fuse plug at the Silver Lake reservoir owned by UPPCO

was breached. This breach resulted in subsequent flooding downstream
on the Dead River, which is located in Michigan’s Upper Peninsula near
Marquette, Michigan. Several lawsuits were filed related to this incident,
all of which have been settled and for which insurance recovery was
received in excess of the applicable self-insured retention.

UPPCO has completed significant environmental restoration activities
and is working with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
to determine what additional activities and mitigation projects are
necessary to resolve the impacts associated with this event. Integrys
Energy Group maintains a comprehensive insurance program that
includes UPPCO that it believes is sufficient to cover its responsibilities
related to this event. The self-insured retention on this policy is not
material to Integrys Energy Group.

As part of UPPCO's 2009 Power Supply Cost Recovery Plan filing with
the Michigan Public Service Commission (MPSC) on September 30,
2008, UPPCO filed for recovery of the remaining deferred replacement
power costs related to the Silver Lake incident. Through December 31,
2008, UPPCO deferred replacement power costs of $3.2 million, non-
fuel operating and maintenance costs of $0.8 million, and estimated
related carrying costs of $0.6 million. UPPCO offset all of the non-fuel
operating and maintenance costs and related carrying costs, as well as a
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portion of the replacement power costs, with a settlement of $2.2 million
received from third parties involved in the Silver Lake incident. The
remaining replacement power cost requested for recovery from
Michigan retail customers is $2.4 million.

The reconstruction of the Silver Lake dam was completed in November
2008. This included a new concrete spillway and a new earthen dam
with monitoring instrumentation. The Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) and Board of Consultants were on site and certified
the completion. UPPCO has submitted a refill and operations plan for
FERC approval. Once the refill plan is approved by the FERC, the
reservoir can be refilled. It is expected to take approximately two years
to return the reservoir to normal operation. Cost recovery for rebuilding
the Silver Lake facility will be the subject of a future rate proceeding.

Greenhouse Gases

There is increasing concern over the issue of climate change and the
effect of emissions of greenhouse gases, in particular from the
combustion of fossil fuels. Integrys Energy Group is evaluating both the
technical and cost implications which may result from future state,
regional, or federal greenhouse gas regulatory programs. This
evaluation indicates that it is probable that any regulatory program that
caps emissions or imposes a carbon tax will increase costs for Integrys
Energy Group and its customers. The greatest impact is likely to be on
fossil fuel-fired generation, with a less significant impact on natural gas
storage and distribution operations. Efforts are underway within the
utility industry to find a feasible method for capturing carbon dioxide
from pulverized coal-fired units and to develop cleaner ways to burn
coal. The use of alternate fuels is also being explored by the industry,
but there are many cost and availability issues. Recently there have
been efforts initiated to develop state and regional greenhouse gas
programs. There are also renewed efforts to create federal legislation to
limit carbon dioxide emissions and to create national renewable
portfolio standards. A risk exists that such legislation will increase the
cost of energy. However, we believe the capital expenditures we are
making at our generation units are appropriate under any reasonable
mandatory greenhouse gas program and that future expenditures by
our regulated electric utilities will be recoverable in rates. Integrys
Energy Group will continue to monitor and manage potential risks and
opportunities associated with future greenhouse gas regulatory actions.

Escanaba Water Permit Issues

UPPCO operates the Escanaba Generating Station (EGS) under contract
with its owner, the city of Escanaba (City). While the City owns the water
permits for EGS, UPPCO’s personnel provide testing and certification of
waste water discharges. In September 2008, UPPCO became aware of
potential water discharge permit violations regarding reported pH and
oil and grease readings at EGS. Corrective actions have been
implemented at the plant, notification has been provided to the City,
and UPPCO has self reported the potential permit violations to the
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ). A final report
was filed by UPPCO with the MDEQ on November 25, 2008, and a
copy was sent to the City.

Depending upon the results of the MDEQ's review of the information
provided by UPPCO, the MDEQ, in consultation with the Michigan
Attorney General Office, may perform any of the following:

®  assess a fine and/or seek criminal charges against UPPCO,

B assess a fine and/or seek criminal charges against the former

manager who certified the reports, and/or

close out the investigation.
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Natural Gas Charge Reconciliation Proceedings and
Related Matters

Natural Gas Charge Settlement
For PGL and NSG, the ICC conducts annual proceedings regarding the

reconciliation of revenues from the natural gas charge and related
natural gas costs. The natural gas charge represents the cost of natural
gas and transportation and storage services purchased by PGL and
NSG, as well as gains, losses, and costs incurred under PGL's and NSG's
hedging program (Gas Charge). In these proceedings, interested parties
review the accuracy of the reconciliation of revenues and costs and the
prudence of natural gas costs recovered through the Gas Charge. f the
ICC were to find that the reconciliation was inaccurate or any natural
gas costs were imprudently incurred, the ICC would order the utility
companies to refund the affected amount to customers through
subsequent Gas Charge filings.

In March 28, 2006, orders, the ICC adopted a settlement agreement
related to fiscal years 2001 through 2004 natural gas costs. Under
certain provisions of the settlement agreement, PEC agreed to provide
the lllinois Attorney General (AG) and Chicago up to $30.0 million for
conservation and weatherization programs for which PGL and NSG may
not seek rate recovery. PGL and NSG also agreed to implement a
reconnection program for customers identified as hardship cases on the
date of the agreement. Finally, PGL and NSG agreed to internal audits
and an external audit of natural gas supply practices.

With respect to the conservation and weatherization funding, as of
December 31, 2008, $15.2 million remained unpaid, of which $5.2 million
was included in other current liabilities, and $10.0 million was included
in other long-term liabilities. Under the reconnection program, PGL and
NSG reconnected customers who participated in the program and took
other steps required by the agreement. The AG and Chicago have
indicated that they believe the terms of the reconnection program are
broader than what PGL and NSG implemented. Management continues
to believe that it has fully complied with the reconnection program
obligations of the settlement agreement.

Concerning the audit requirements, two of the five required annual
internal audits have been completed. An auditor hired by the ICC
conducted the external audit, and the report was filed on April 10,
2008. The report included 32 recommendations, none of which
quantified natural gas costs that the auditor believed should not be
recovered by PGL and NSG. By March 31, 2009, PGL and NSG expect
to complete their responses to the 25 recommendations they agreed to
implement in a June 30, 2008, response to the audit. The ICC staff has
not filed a reply to PGL's and NSG's response.

The fiscal 2005 Gas Charge reconciliation cases were initiated in
November 2005. The settlement of the prior fiscal years’ Gas Charge
reconciliation proceedings did not affect these cases, except for PGLs
agreement to credit fiscal 2005 hub revenues as an offset to utility
customers’ natural gas charges. For PGL and NSG, the ICC issued its
orders on January 16, 2008. The natural gas cost disallowance for PGL
was $20.5 million, and included 2005 hub revenues and an adjustment
for transportation customers’ bank (storage) natural gas. The natural gas
cost disallowance for NSG was $1.0 million, and also related to a bank
natural gas adjustment. The customer refunds from the 2005 Gas
Charge reconciliation cases were accounted for as a preacquisition
contingency. Pursuant to the ICC orders, PGL and NSG refunded
customers $22.6 million and $1.1 million, respectively, including interest,
during 2008.

The fiscal 2006 Gas Charge reconciliation cases were initiated on
November 21, 2006. The ICC staff and interveners (the AG, the Citizens
Utility Board, and Chicago, filing jointly) each filed testimony
recommending disallowances for PGL and NSG for a bank natural gas

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

adjustment similar to that addressed in the fiscal 2005 Gas Charge
reconciliation cases, which PGL and NSG did not contest. In addition,
the interveners recommended a disallowance for PGL of $13.9 million
(reduced to $11.0 million in their brief) associated with PGL's provision
of interstate hub services. The ICC staff does not support the
interveners’ proposal, and PGL does not believe the proposal has merit.
A hearing for the PGL and NSG cases was held on December 11, 2008.
For PGL, briefing is scheduled to conclude February 27, 2009, after
which the administrative law judge will prepare a proposed order. For
NSG, there were no contested issues, and the parties filed an agreed
form of order in January 2009.

Class Action

In February 2004, a purported class action was filed in Cook County
Circuit Court against PEC, PGL, and NSG by customers of PGL and
NSG, alleging, among other things, violation of the lllinois Consumer
Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act related to matters at issue
in the utilities’ fiscal year 2001 Gas Charge reconciliation proceedings.
In the suit, Alport et al. v. Peoples Energy Corporation, the plaintiffs
seek disgorgement and punitive damages. PGL and NSG have been
dismissed as defendants and the only remaining counts of the suit
allege violations of the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business
Practices Act by PEC and that PEC acted in concert with others to
commit a tortious act. PEC denies the allegations and is vigorously
defending the suit. On July 30, 2008, the plaintiffs filed a motion for
class certification and PEC responded in opposition of this motion. On
October 31, 2008, PEC filed a motion for summary judgment. At the
plaintiffs' request, their reply to PEC's class certification response was
postponed pending a decision on PEC’s summary judgment motion.

Corrosion Control Inspection Proceeding

Hlinois state, as well as federal laws, require natural gas utilities to
conduct periodic corrosion control inspections on natural gas pipelines.
On April 19, 2006, the ICC initiated a citation proceeding related to
such inspections that were required to be performed by PGL during
2003 and 2004, but which were not completed in the requisite
timeframe. On December 20, 2006, the |CC entered an order
approving a stipulation between the parties to this proceeding under
which PGL agreed that it had not been in compliance with applicable
regulations, and further agreed to pay a penalty of $1.0 million, pay for
a consultant to conduct a comprehensive investigation of its compliance
with ICC pipeline safety regulations, remain compliant with those
regulations, not seek recovery in future rate cases of certain costs
related to non-compliance, and hold meetings with Chicago to
exchange information. This order resolved only the ICC proceeding and
did not constitute a release of any other potential actions outside of the
ICC proceeding. With respect to the comprehensive investigation, the
ICC selected an auditor for this matter and the auditor, issued a final
report on August 14, 2008, containing 65 recommendations and an
additional placeholder for a possible recommendation. The ICC
conducted a public hearing on October 8, 2008, at which time the
auditor presented the report to the ICC for its acceptance. PGL
submitted a draft plan to the ICC staff in which PGL accepted most of
the recommendations and offered an alternative proposal for the
remainder. At a subsequent meeting and in concurrence with the ICC
staff and the consultant, PGL has revised its implementation plan for
some of the recommendations. The auditor’s agreement with the ICC
provides for a two-year monitoring phase to verify PGL's compliance
with the prospective implementation plan, which began in January
2009.

On May 16, 2006, the AG served a subpoena requesting documents
relating to PGLs corrosion inspections. PGL's counsel has met with
representatives of the AG's office and provided documents relating to
the subpoena. On July 10, 2006, the United States Attorney for the
Northern District of illinois served a grand jury subpoena on PGL
requesting documents relating to PGL's corrosion inspections. PGL's

An Environment of Energy




counsel has met with the United States Attorney’s office and provided
doctuments reiatmg to-corrosion inspections. PGL has had no-further
commitinication with the-United States Attorney's office since thattime.
Management cannot predict the outcome of this investigation and has
not recorded a Hability associated with this contingency.

Builders Class Action

In June 2005, a purported class action was filed against PEC and its
utility subsidiaries by Birchwood Builders, LLC in the:Circuit Court of
Cook County, linois alleging that PGL and NSG were fraudulently and

NOTE 16—GUARANTEES

As part-of normal business; Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries
enter into varlous guarantées providing financialor performance
assurance to third parties ory behalf of certain subsidiaries: These
guarantées are enterechinte primarily to-support or enhance the
creditworthiness otherwise attributed 1o a subsidiary on a stand-alone

basis; thereby facilitating the @xtemim of sufficient credit to-accomplish

the subsidiaries’ intended commercial purposes.

 (Millions) ’

Guar &ntees of subsi d iary deb‘( and revoiv*nq S
line czf credhit®

S*‘aadby etlers of cedit
Surety bonds @
_MC)ther gﬁar@te@s 9

Total g&ara niees

‘smem f)’ Q‘? K ationsof

i Consistof gar

orially guarantee (THPECS 540«’3 O mN fior
et {2) o 5, gepior posecirad basis; PECs obligations
o, zfv S0% niates du@ /anua/y 15 2071 (3) inrnq:w liany Servi

to !;itec“'vc
e

dtotal parental guarantees of
$2,584.3 million on behialf ot Integrys Energy Services. Integrys Energy

Integrys Energy Group has provide

Group’s exposure under these guarantees related to open transactions
at December 31, 2008, was approxima’ e,y $837 million. At December 31,
2008, management was duthorized to:issue corporate guarantess up

o an‘aggregate amount of $2.95 billion to support the business
operations of lntegrys Energy Services: The following outstanding
amounts-were subject to this lmit: .

Iritegrys Energy Group, Ing,

nproperly charging fees to customers with respect to utility
connections, disconnections, reconnections, relocations, exténsions of
natural gas service pipes; extensions of distribution natural gas mains,
and failing to return related custormer deposits; In November 2008,
Integrys Energy Group; PEC, PGL, and NSQ (the companies) entered
into a settlement agreement with the plaintiffs. The settlement amount
was not material to the companies. The plaintiffs filed a motion to
dismiss their appeal; which was granted by the appellate court'on
December 5, 2008. This matter Is now resolved.

Most-of the guaranteesissued by Integrys Energy Group include inter
company guaraniees betwsen parents-and their subsidiaries, which are
eliminated in consolidation, and guarantees of the subsidiaries” bwn
performance: Assuch; these guarartess are excluded from the recognition
and measurement requirements of FASB Interpretation No.45:

The following table shows outstanding guarantees atIntegrys Energy
Group at-Decermber 31,2008:

of $3984 millics
luding $2.5 million !z@t i
c:f szrsrzus, 54 3 i

Se'\ffce> cpe' 4

eludes (1) e liabilitv-relate

arising from the resolition of design &
nuclear power plant's schaduled ina i ieriad i 2009
WS had paid $7.4 million to e minionrelatsd: ta thi
b f it o paymients forthe ¢

nr:l {Q) 492 ‘»fmrlon ndc»

Guarantees supper‘f na commodity
traﬁsact@ﬁs i subsidiaries

Guarantees of subsidiary debt
Standby l&tters 'fca adit

Surety bonds o
| Total guara tees sub;ec’c to 52! ?5 5 billion fimit
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NOTE 17—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plans

On September 30, 2008, the PEC Service Annuity System was méerged
into-the PEC Retirerent Plan, which was then renamied the Integrys Energy
Group Retirement Plari: On'Decembier 31,-2008, the WPS Retirement
Plan: was merged into the Integrys Energy. Group Retirement Plan. The
two plan mergers had no effect on the level of plan benefits provided to
participants or the management of plan assets. Integrys Energy Group
and its subsidiaries now maintain one non-contributory, qualified pension
plan covering substantially all employees, as well as several unfunded
nongualified retirement plans, In addition, Integrys Energy Group and

its subsidiaries offer multiple other postretirement berefit plansto
employees. The benefits for a portion of these plans are funded through
irrevocable trusts, as allowed for income tax purposes.

integrys Energy Group also currently offers medical, dental, and life
insurance benefits to employees and their dependents. Integrys Energy
Group expenses the costs of these benefits for active employees asincurred,

During the third quarter of 2007, Integrys Energy Group made a series
of changes-to certain of its retirement benefit plans. Specifically, the
changes included:

B Closure of the defined benefit pension’ plans to non-union new hires;
effective January:1,:2008;

A freeze in defined henefit pension service accruals for non-Linion
emplovees; effective January. 1, 2013;

# A freere in compensation amounts used for determining defined benefit
pension amounts for nor-union employees, effective January 1, 2018

Reconciliation of benefit abligation (Millions)

Oi?i?g,aﬁbh at January
Seryice@{:é’é

Interestcost

Plar amendments

Plan curtailments

Plan acquisitions - PEC.
Actuarial (gain) loss, net.
Participant contributions
'Bahofnt payments L
&-ederalvubatdy on b@n&ﬂt‘s paic i
Other o
Obligation at December 31

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets (Millions)

Fair véiuefof/p?ar} assets at Janiary |
Actualreturn on plan assets
Employer contributions
Panticipant conributions
P‘aﬁ/éi;@ isitions ~ MGU and MERC
Plan acquisitions - PEC
Benefit payments

; \,thsr : :

ssets at December 3l
oo

integrys Energy Group, Ing

®  Revised eligibility requirements for retiree medical benefits for
amployees hired on or after January 1, 2008, and the introduction of
an annual premium reduction crecftt for employees eligible to retire
after December 31, 2012; and

m  Closure of the tetiree dental and life benefit programs to all new
hires, effective January 1, 2008, and elimination of these benefits for
any existing employees wha are not eligible to retire before
December 31,2012

Asa result-of the changes desdibed above; Integrys:Energy-Group
remeasured certain of its pension and other postretirement benefit
obligations as of August 1,2007: The:eurtailment gains and losses
recognized as a result of the plan design changes were not significant
and are included in the table below.

A se(*ond rémeasurement occdrred on October 1, 2007, because the
atification of & uniori contract resulted in chamgea ‘o a postretirement
:ed:cai plan. The changes did not result in @ curtailment.

Effective May 1, 2008, and July 1, 2008, the defined benefit pension
plans were closed 1o new union hires at PGL and NSG, respectively,
Effective April 19,2009, the defined benefit pension plans will be
closed to new union hires at UFPCO.

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the
plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets during 2008 and 2007
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Armounts recognized in Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balarce Sheets at Dacember 31 related 1o the funded statud of he. beref‘t {3 ans

consisted of:

The acéumurate;ri benelit obligation for all defined benefit pension
plans was $1.1 billion at both December 31, 2008, and December 31;
2007. informa’non for pmsxon olans with an-accumulated benefit
obﬂgatmn in excess of plan-assets is presented i the table atrght.

The following table shows the amcunts that had not yet been recogrized in Integrys Enérgy Group’s netperiodic benelit cost as of December 31
Amounts related to the norregulated entities are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), while amourits related 1o the utilities

are recordad as regulatory agsets br liabilities:

Integrys Energy Group recarded the PEC permson asscts acquirad and
liabilities assuried at fait valie at the February 2007 acquisition date.
However, PGL and NSG continue to have rates set based on their
historical basis of amoummg including amortizations of prior service
cost (credits), actuarial los id transition obligations; which wer

recognized in the Consoli da’wd Financial Statements as regulatory as«:e“cq ,

at the purchase date. The amount reflacted in net periodic benefit ccxsat
in‘the tabe below is based on the amount used in the rate-setting
process for PGL and NSGL The difference in the basis of accounting is
shown as a merger related tegulatory adjustment in the table abbve;

Integrys Energy Group, o

AR

for other postretirement benefit plans that will be amortized as .
- component of net periodic benefit cost during 2009 are $1.2
$3.8 million, and $0.3 million, r@ap@mwiy The estimated merger

F’ansson Beneﬂts

:‘51(05

The estimated net losses and prior service costs for éieﬁ{i?d benefit

Spension plana that will be amortized 45 a cofrponent of net pariodic

benefit cost during 2009 are. $0.4 illion and $5.0 million, respacfxvmiy
The estimated net lossés, prior service costs, and transition obl ag;éat on

n Hmﬁ, ;

related regulatory adjustment that will be amortized as a component tof
net per!odtr bensfit cost for definsd pension arid other postratirement
benefit plans during 2009 is $4.8 millionand $2.0 million, respectively.
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’Other Benef ts
2007 2006

‘ ( Miihcms}

et perlodlc benef:t o&t

: ,'5'1;\,39.? .

Service cost '[;;s:ss’«l’

Interes ot , 704 245

\' Exppct@dmtum on piém ass ,@t‘s,,, G (894) (1?,5) T
P’ancarga;imems (Gain) loss O
Amcrtizégtién of transition obligation B4 004
Arnortization éf prior service cost {eredit) pe 22
z’\m{)t’tizauorx of net'loss ¥R 5.3
Ariortization rz{ of merger related feguamry ad;ustmenx 08
Net periodic beriefit cost $227 - %144

Assumptions—Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
The weighted-average assumptions used at December 31 to determine benefit Qbhgaticmss for the plans were as follows:

o
5%
013
105%
55%
- B0

Uitxmau /t;gnd rate
UIﬁmé"é trend rate reached in -
Asst Ef;d medical cost rendrate (over age 65)
Ultimate trend rate -
Ummatemgad rate reached in

M,&sg;q%gdderiiggl cost trend rate

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the plans were as follows for the years ended December 31

Pension Benefits

Discount rate ,
Expected retum'on assets
Rate« of comper

R

Other Ben@f‘ ts

Discount faté

Expected retum on assels

Aasumed medical cost trend rate (under age 65}
Ultimate trend rate : .
Ultimate trend rate reached in o

 howoow . %

Assumed medical cost trend rate lover age 65}

Ultirriate treﬂd rate 50%65% - 65%
Ultimatte trend rate reached in o001 o
Assurmed dental cost trend rate 5.0% o 50%

integrys Energy Group: establishes its expected retumn on asset assumption based on constdera tion of historical and projected asset class returng, as
well as the target allocations of the benefit trust portfolios. :
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Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported by Integrys Energy Group for the
year ended December 31,2008, & one-percentage-point change in-assumed health care cost trend rates would have had 1

health care plans. Forthe
he following effects:

Effegt an th \
ac{gumu!ated o

&f obligatiéﬁ

One-Percentage-Point

%’ms;sg and Othey %ﬂ%:?z%éwa,gz”wmmt Eaﬂﬁf to Plan Assets

Asset category

Equfcy securities
Debt s&curm@
Rea estatc

—a.

The target aSb(‘t allocations |
securities, 33% debt securities, and 3% real estate. The target asset

allocations for other postretirement plans in place prior to the PEC
merger for the above listed asset classes are as follows: 65% equﬁy
securities and 35% debt securities: The farget asset allocations for other
postretirement plans acquired in the PEC merger are as follows: 60%
equity securities and 40% debt securities. The Board of Directors has
established the Employee Bepefits Administrator Commitiee to manage
the operations and adinini 5tmtxon of all benefit plans and trusts: The
Committes periodically reviews the asset allocation, and the portiolio is
rebalanced when necessary,

Cash Flows Related to Pension and é’}the;
Postretirement Benefit Plans

Integrys Energy Group's funding policy 1s to contribute at least the
minimum amounts that are required to be funded under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act, but not more than the maxirium
amotunts that are curfently deductible for incorne tax purposes. lritegrys
Energy Group expects to contribute $26.1 million to pension plans and
$28.3 million to other pmtr@t remenit benefit plans in 2009,

The following table @hbwe thc paym@nts reflecting expected future
sewvice, which Integrys Energy Group expects to make for pension and
other pcstretnemem bensfits. In addition, the table shows the expested
federal subsidies, provided under the' Medlicare Prescription Drug,
Improverent a nd Mmdw?\ zation Actof 20@5, wh ich WfU partiafly offset
other chtretwem@ it benefits.

:,’ZOM 2018

Integiys Energy Groue, lne.

The weighted-average asset allocations of thé p[ans atDecermber 31,2008, and 7007 were as follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets

or pemsmm plans are as follows: 64% wqum:y, .

o

Pension Benefits
S Y : e TR
Pew:@ntage of Pfan Ass:-etsx
at December 31,
sy

at Dacember 31,

¥
all full-time err»plc)yges It ﬂb‘(}l"}/m &nergy Grou b ma*cche': a permrmqu of
employee contributions through an Empi@yeee? Stock Qwrwerthm Plan
(ESOP) contribution Up:to certain imits. Certain union ernprovem
receive a contribution to their £50P ¢ mmt regardless of thelr
participation it the 40 k) Savings Plan, The ESOP heid 2.9 million
shares of Integrys Energy Group’s common stock {market value of
$124.7 million) st Decerber 31, 2008, Certain smplovees partivipate in
a discretionary profit-sharing contribution andfor cash match. Non-
unionemployees hired after January 1, 2008, are no longer elig
participate in the defined benefit pension plan. Instesd, these
employees participate in a defined contribution pension plan, in which
Integrys contributes cartain amounts 1o an employes’s account based
on‘the employee’s wages, age, and years of service. Total costs incurred
tnder all of these plans were $17 .4 million in 2008, $14.4 million in
2007, and $9.4 million in 2006 :

Integrys Energy Group maintains deferred mmpemmxon plam that
anable certain key employees am‘ nor-employee dirsctars to d&*ﬂm 9
portion of their compensation or fees on a pre-tax basis. Non-employee.
directors can defer up to 100% of thelr director fees, Cormipensation is
generally deferred in the form of cash, indexed to certain investment
options, orintegrys Energy Group common stock with deemed
dividands paid on-the common stock automatically reinvested. Effective
March 31, 2008, the investment option of indexing to Integrys Energy
Group's returty on equity was closed 1o new CDﬂtﬁbL}ﬁ:G/ﬂéx

The deferred compensation arrangements for which dJStrrbut»ms are

made solely in Integrys Energy Groug’s common stock are da&afed 858

equity instrument. Changes inthe falr valus ol the deferred i{smpem'}t n

obligation-are not recognized. The deferrad compensation obligation
associated with this arrangement was @?3 Z.million at December 31,

ZO(‘B and $24.6 million at December 31, 2007,

The portion of the deferred comperisation obligation associated with
deferrals that allow for distibution in cashii sified asa liability on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and adjusted, with a charge or
creditto expense, to reflect chianges in the fairvalue of the deferred
compensation obligation: The obligation classified within other long-term
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rabbitrust. The common stock held in the rabbi trust is classified as a
reduction of equity in & manner similar to accounting for treasury stock.
The total cost of Integrys Energy Group's common stock held inthe
rabbi trust was $16.3 million at December 31, 2008, and $14.7 million
at December 31, 2007,

liabilities was $28.2 million at December 31, 2008;-and $30.2 million at
December 31: 2007 The costs incurred under this arrangementwere
$1.9 million in 2008, $2.3 million in 2007, and $3.0 million.in 2006,

The deferred campensation programs are partially funded through
shares of Integrys Energy- Group's commorn stock that is held-in-a

NOTE 18—PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARY

integrys Energy Group's subsidiary, WPS, has 1,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock with no mandatory redemption and a $100 par value,

Outstanding shares were as follows at December 31:

(@’i&féfis! éxgiept share amounts)

Series
500%
504%
5.08%
b76%
6.88%

Cotal

All shares of preferred stock of all series are of equal rank except as

to dividend rates and redemption terms. Payment of dividends from
any-eamed. surplus or other available surplus s not restricted by the
terms of any indenture or other undertaking by WPS. Each series of
outstanding preferred stock is redeemable in whole orin part at WPS’s
optionat any time on 30 days! notice at the respective redemption
prices. WPS may not redeem less than all; nor purchase any, ot its
preferred stock during the ‘existence of any dividend default.

I the everit of WES's dissolution of liguidation; the holders of preferred
stock are entitlied 16 receive (a) the par value of their preferred stock out

NOTE 19—-COMMON EQUITY.

; 2007 |
Shares o Cakrying
Outstanding =~ Value
130,714 513
29,898 30
49,923 . 5p
150,000 .
150,000 - 150
. 510535 $511

of the corporate assets other than profits before any of such assets are
paid or distributed to the holdeérs of common stock and (b} the amount
of dividends accumulated and unpaid on their preferred stock out of
the surplus or net profits before-any of such surplus or riet profits are
paid to the holders of common stock. Thereafter, the remainder of the
corporate assets, surplus, and net profits shall be paid-to the holders of
commion stack:

The preferred stock has no pre-eniptive, subscription; or conversion
rights, and has no sinking fund provisions, :

Integrys Energy Group's reconciliation of shares outstanding at December 31, 2008, and 2007, was as follows:

et

Ccmmoﬁ@tock issued

76,434,095

Less: o
Treasury shares * 10,000  §o519
Deferred compensation rabbi trist 338522 . Adds
Restricted stock : - . By o

Total shares outstanding .  growrom =
* Ralates to It ory (oup s Non-Erployes Directors Stock OptionPlan. All options under this plan have s tenyearife but sy pot be exercised Lntilone yésr sfter the date of grant.

Diring 2008, Integrys Energy Group purchased shares of its comon
stock on the open markat to meet the requirements of its Stock
Investrment Plan and certain stock-based employee benefit and
campensation plans. Prior to 2008, Integrys Energy Group issued new

Integrys Erergy Group, Inc. |

shares of common stock urider these plans, These stock issuances
increased equity $45.7 million and $25.0million in 2007 and-2006,
respectively.
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Pursuant to the PEC merger, shareholders of PEC received 0.825 shares
of [ntegrys Energy Group (ther known as WS Resources) comion
stock, $1 par value, for aach share of FEC common stock, no par value,
that they held immediately prior to the merger. This resulted inan
increase in comimon steack outstanding of 31,938.491 shares and
increased equity $1.6 billion as of December 31, 2007,

40,089,898

406,878
134,392

toak o%r g 2;;,700;0(}0,’ .
shares 5h 2‘??
d3,387 d(’)O

retained earﬁings’ ol $49.1 ﬂiilicm ("t*nsequervtiy, at December 371,
2008, UPPCO had $18.6 million of retained earmings avai Iabfp for the
payment of common stock cash dividends. Z

NSG'Ss long-term debt obligations contain »pm\!\ sions and covenants

restricting the payment of cash dividends and the purchase or redemption
of capital stock. At December 31, 2008, these restrictions ammmmd o]
$6.9 million out of N5G's total mtatrmd mam‘ i
“Cons equ@nf[y, at Decembar 31, 201 ‘ §70.5 million c:af
retained edmmqs available for the paym@ it of di vxdwd&

For the year ended December 31,2008, PEC. PGL MGU MER(M and
Integrys Energy SE‘:W\C% did not tiake any dividend 1 paymem* :

At December 31, 2008 nf@qn}‘: Enargy Group had $585. 2 million of
retained earnings available for the payment of dchﬁieﬁds Except for the

subsidia lary restrictions described above, Intearys u‘refgy Gmu doss not
have-any dmdeﬂd restrictions.

* 31,,938,4@??}
52993
444,041

iﬁi\!iééﬁﬁfi

Integiys Energy Group is o holding company and our abrhm o pay
dividends is largely dependerit upon the ability of aur subsidiaries to
pay dividends to us i the 2009 rate order, the PSCW has restricted our
subsidiary, WPS, to paying normal dividends on its common stock of no
more than 103% of the previous years common stock dividend. The
PSCWoalso réquire5 WPS to maintain a financial capital structure (Ley
the percentages by which sach of comman stock equity, preferred stock
equity, and debt constitute the total capitalinvested in a utility), which
has & common equity range of 49%10 54%. The PSCW has also
estabiishad 4 targeted financial common equity ratio at 51% that results
in & requlatory common equity ratio of 53.41%. The primary difference

betweezn the financial and the regulatory common equity ratio relates to -

certain off-balance shest ohligations, pnmmxty purchased power
obli gatmm owadaved by the PSCW in e shing the fi am;al
common equity target. Eacl f i )
future order of the PSCW. Our right to receive dividends on the
common stock of WES is also sub}ect to the prior rights of WPS's
preferred shareholders ard to provisions in WPSs restated articles of
incorporation, which limit the amount of common stock dividends which
WES may payifits common stock antd common stock surplus accolints
constitute less thsm 25% of its total capitalization. These limitations are
mot axpected 1o limit any dividend payments in the foreseeable futare.
At December 31, ?OO% these fimitations amounted 1o $1.2 million out
(;f WPSs te:;jtai retained sarnings of $372.0 million. Comequee ntly, at
December 31, 2008, WS had $370.8 milion of retained sarnings
available for the payment of dividends,

UPPCOs indentures relating Lo jts first mortgage bonds contain certain
lirnitations on the payment of cash dividends on its common stock;
which is held solely by Integrys Energy Group. At December 31, 2008,
these restrictions amounted to $30.5 million out of UPPCO's total

Integrys Energy Group,:Ing:

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dj v&ism, mmmc available for
common shareholders by the welghted average number of common
stoclko shares outstanding during the period. Diluted /earrﬁngs per share
~are computed by dividing Income available for common. 5harehoidw< .
by the weighted average r
durmq the period, adjusted for ,
- potentially dilutive securities. ‘mrh dHuLve: tmms mﬂude in: Wa’ “nmsay ,
stock options, perfmmahce samck mqh’r afd restricted stock. The
caltulation of diluted sarnings pet share for 2008 excluded 2.2 millio

stock options that were outstanding at Decermber 31, 2008, which hed
an anti-dilutive effect. The calculation of diluted oamwgs per share fc;r
2007 and 2006 excludes some insignificant stock options that had &
anti-dilutive effect. The following table reconciles Lhe computation cﬁ
basic and: dduted eqmsmgx pershare: g

(Mfgﬂi}ﬁ except ;3@: aharea amc:)ums} 2004 1
Nut‘n@ fgtgr -
Income from cc :i numq ngmi 1816
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NOTE 20—STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In May 2007, Integrys Energy Group's shareholders approved the 2007
Omnibus Incentive Comperisation Plan (2007 Omnibus Plan). Under the
provisions of the 2007 Omnibus Plan; the numiber of shares of stock
that may be issued ir satisfaction of planawards may not exceed
3,500,000, and no more thah 1,500,000 shares of stock can be granted
as performance shares or restricted stock, No additional awards will be
issued under prior plans; although the plans will continue 1o exist for
purposes of the existing outstanding stock-based compensation. At
December 31, 2008, stock options; performance stock rights; restricted
sharas and restricted share units, ard stock appreciation rights were
outstanding under thevarious plans

Stock Options

Under the provisions of the 2007 Ominibus Plan, no single ermployes
who is the chief executive officer of Integrys Energy Group or any of the
other four highest compensated officers of Integrys Energy Group and
its subsidiaries can be granted options for more than 1,000,000 shares
during any calendar yearn No stock options will have a term longerthan
ten years. The exercise price of each stock option s equalto the fair
iarket value of the stock on the date the stock option is granted,
Generally, onie-fourth of the stock options granted vest and become
exgrcisable each yearon the anniversary of the grant date. :

The fair values of stock option awards granted were estimated using a
binomial lattice model. The @xpemed term of option awards is
caleulated based on historical exercise behavior and represents the
period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding.
The tisk-free interest rate is based on the United States Treasury yisld
cutve: The expected dividend vield incorporates the current dividend
rate-as well‘as histordcal dividend increase pattems. lntegrys Energy
Group's expected stock price volatility was estimated using its 10wyear

histerical volahhty The following table shiows the weighted-average fair
values per stock option along with the assumptions incorporated into
the valuation models;

2007

w80 skod

{?xp@cted term

7 years & years

Risk-free interest rate 465% @ 442%
Expccted dwldend yield 450% 490%
Expected volatll ity % A%

Total pre-tax mmpeﬂgatiom cost récognized for stock options during the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, was $2.6 million,
$1:8 miillion; and $1.8 million, respectively. The total compensation

cost capitalized in 2008, 2007, and 2006 was not significant. As of
Decermber 31, 2008, $1.7 milllon of total pra-tax compensation cost
related to unvested and outstanding stock Opt‘ ns was expectedto be
recognized over a weightedbaverage period ot 2.6 years.

Cash received from op‘nm exercises during the years ended

December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, was $3.3 million, $14.0 million,
and $1. 9 million, respectively. The tax ben@ﬂt realized from these option
exercises was not significant | n 2008, $2.3 million in 2007, and not
significant in 2006,

Acsummary of s;téck option activity for the year ended December 31
2008, and the number of outstanding and exercisable stock opmmh« at
Recember 31, 2008, is presented below: :

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited
i Qutstaﬁd{ihg a
" ,\ ﬁk’gm\isable,’ at Dece

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the intrinsic
va[uo of options exercised totaled $4.4 million and $O 9 million,
aspectively.:

The aggregate intrinsic velue for outstanding and exercisable sptions in
the above table represents the total prestax intrinsic value that would
have been received by the option-holders had they all exercised their
Op‘zio}ﬂs at Decernber 371, 2008 This is'caleulated as the difference
between Integrys Energy Group’s closing stock price on December 31,
2008, and the option exercise price, multiplied by the number of
insthe-money stock options,

Performarnice Stock Rights

Performance stock rights vest aver a three-yedr performance period and
are paid outin shares of Integrys Energy Group's common stock: No
single employee who s the chsof executive officer of Integrys Energy
Group or any of the otherfour highest <c>mpcnsate=d officers of Integrys
Energy Group and its subsidiaries can receive a payout in excess of
?‘)O 000 performance shams dwmg any calendar year The mumher m"

in‘cég;’rifs Energy Group dne. |

. Weightedwl\wéf? g§ . We’ig’;hted»Avemge Aggtegat@
~ Stock Exercise Price Remalning Contractural !ntrmsmVa%ua
= Options Per Share Life fin Years) (szksns}
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 2215999 $4781

shares paid out is calculated by multaply irig a performance percentage
by the number of outstanding stock rights at the completion of the
vesting period. The performance percentage is based on the total
sharehalder retum of Integrys Enerdy Group's common stock relative to
the total sharsholder return of a peer group of mmpames The payout
may rénge from 0% 10 200% of target,

The fair values of perf@t"mam:e stockrights granted were estimated
using & Monte Carlo valuation model, incorporating the assumptions in
the table below: The risk-fres interest tate is based on the United States
Treasury vield curve, The expected dividend yield m"orf:)crates the
dividend rate at the measurement date. The expected volatiiity was
estimated using three years ofhistorical data. :




Prestax compensation cost recorded for performance stock rights for
the years ended Decembier 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $5:2 million,
$3.5 million, and $2.8 million; respectively. The total compensation

cost capitalized during these same years was not significant: As of
December 31, 2008, $2.4 million of total prestax compensation cost
related to anvested and outsts performance stock rights was
%p@cted to be mcagmmd h’ced averoge pemod of 1.8 years.

A summary of the activity relamcl ¢ pmfc:rmance stock 1 rghts for the
vear ended December 31, 2@08 is prasented below:

' Performance
Stock R:ghts 5

Wz’lghmrLAvemge
Eira‘/  Date Fa;r Value

er 31,2007 207458

) ng at
Qei:ember 31 2@05&

No performarice shares were distributed during the year ended
December 31, 2008, as a result of the performance percentage being
below the target payout level for those rights that were vested and
eligible to be distiibuted in 2008, i

Restricted Shares and Restricted Share Units

(n: 2008, 2007, and 2006, & portion of the long-term incentive was
awarded in the form of restrictad shares and restricted share units, Most
of these awards have a fouryear vesting period, with 25% of each
award vesting on each anniversary of the grant date. During the vesting
petiod, restricted share recipients have voting rights and are entitled 1o
dmdends in the same manner as other common Sharem;iders whereas

NC}TE’?EWFA;R VALUE

Fair Value Measurements
The fczﬁowmg table sh@ws m‘ grys
D@cember 31,2008, mts«gor: d

ievc«’a within tne falr valtie hiera rc,hy

nergy. Group's financial assets and liabil

restricted share unit recipients recelve dividend credits and do not have

voting rights: Restricted shares and redtricted share units have a value
equal to the falr market value of the sharas onthe grant date. Total
prestax compensation cost recognized for these awards was $4.2 million
“md $1.4 million during the years ehded December 31, 2008, snd 2007,
espectively, and was not significant for the year ended December 31,
200& The total compensation cost capitalized in 2008, 2007, and 2006
was not significant. As of December 31, 2008, $6.2 million of total
pre-tax compensation cost related 1o these awards was expected o
be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.7 years.

A suramary of the activity related to restricted share and restricted share
unitawards for the year ended Decermber 31, 2008!/55 presented below:

Restricted Shares
and Restricted
Sh hare Units

e =

Wetghiedw}&mmg%

ng andmg o
Deaamber 31 2007

C:rdmed
Vested

Fa'fe;ted
Gutstandmg at ’

107 ME ’

Stock Apprec iation M@h% , o
On February 21, 2007, all of PEC'S then outstanding sicack appraciation
rights were converted into 14,021 Integrys Energy Group stock
appreciation rights. The fair value of the stock appreciation rights is
estimated with a Black-Scholes modeland was not significant at
December 31, 2008: No stock appreciation rights were issued during
the year ended December 31, 2008

lities that were account@d forat fair value ona rec umng basis as of

The determination of the fair values above i ncerporat@s various factors
required under SFAS No. 157, These factors include not only the eredit
standing of the counterparties involved, bt alse the impact oflntegrys
Energy Group's nonperformance risk on iis ]iébiiities, .

The ns,k maﬂagemen‘c assets and liabilities ixsled in the table include
options, swaps, futlires, physical wmmod:ry contracts, and othar
instruments used to manage m isks related to changes in commiodity
prices and interest rates, For i formation on Integrys Energy Gr@uﬁs
derivative instruments, sée No i?;sla: Mmagcm@nt Act \/:1465

When possible, Integrys Erierg p bases the valuations of its ?“!Sk
managenent assets and liabilities o quoted prices for identical assets ii

Integrys Energy:Groug, Ing

active markets. These valuations are classified in Level 1. The valuations
af certain contracts are based on NYMEX futures prices with an
adjustment related to location differences, and certain derivative
instruments are valued using broker quotes or prices for similar contracts
at'the apomng date. These valuations are classified in Levei 2

Certain denvamves are c:xte&gommd in Level 3 due to the mc;m’r cance of
uncbservable or internally developed inputs. The primary reasons fczr a
Level 3 classification ate ag follows: ;

L Whtifﬁ price cunves may have b@em bamd on obsmwbie m'?mrmamm,

significant assumptions may have been made regarding seasonal or
monthly shaping and locational basis differentials.
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B Certain transactions were valyed Using price curves that extended
beyond the quoted period. Assumptions were made to extrapolate
prices from the last:quated period through the end of the
transaction tern.

#  The valuations of certain transactions were based on internal
madels, although external inputs were utilized in the valuation,

The following table sets forth-a reconciliation of changes in the-fair
value of items categorized as Level 3 measurements:

(Millions)
Balance at the beginning
_of period

Net realized and unrealized
lass included in earnings
N@ti}hf@éﬁiﬁéﬂ{jc}ss recorded as
regulatory assets or liabilities
Net ur}féé[izﬁd loss included i other
comprehensive income (logs)
Net gﬁu%thasés and seftlements
 Net transfers infout of Le vw} 3

: Iance at Damm

' ’Net umreahzed loss included in =
earnings related to instruments
still held at December 31, 2008

Dearivatives are transferred in orout of Level 3 primarily due to changes
in the source of data used to-construct price curves as a resuft of
changes in market liquidity.

NOTE 22mMISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Integrys Energy Group's total miscellaneous income was as follows at Decem

Unrealized gains and losses included in earnings related to Integrys
Energy Services’ risk management assets and liabilities are recorded
throtgh nonregulated revenue on the Consolidated Statements of
Incame (Loss). Realized gains and losses on these same instruments are
recorded in nonregulated revenue or norregulated cost of fuel, natural
gas, and purchased power, depending.on the nature of the instrument.
Unrealized gains and losses on Level 3 derivatives-at the utilities are
deferred as regulatory assets or labilities; pursuant 1o SFAS No. 71
Therefore, these fair value measuréments have no impact on eamings,
Realized gains and losses on these instruments flow through utility cost
of fuel; natural gas; and purchased power.

Faiy Value of Finandal instruments ;

The following table shows the financial instruments included on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets of Integrys Energy Group that are not
recorded at fairvalue.

, S C:arrymg - Fair
(Millions). Amount - Value
Long-term debt 525203 S22
Preferred stock 511 496

The fair values of long-term debt and prefered stock are estimated
based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues or on
the current rates offered to Integrys Energy Group for debt of the same
rermaining maturity;

Due to the short maturity of cash and cash eguivalents, accounts
réceivable; accounts payable, notes payable, and autstanding
commercial paper, the carrving amaount approximates fair value,

3

ber3i1:

(Millions)

Equity earnings on investrments
 Interest anci dw deﬁnd m {

’ quuzty AFUDC

Gainfloss) on saie o
{Loss) ‘gﬁitj on invest et
Gain (Iasg) on foreign currency oxc;hange
Key e;get;utzve life insurdnce income
Other

Total mrs«:ei laneous income

NOTE 23—REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

Wisconsin

Rate Case

acember 30, 2008, the PSCWissued a final writtern order for WPS
authorizing no annual rate/increase forretail electric rates as compared
with the fuel surcharge adjusted rates authorized on July 4, 2008, or a
$48.0 million increase for rew:i electric rates as compared with the rates
atthortized on January 16, 2008, The PSCW. mquned a $3.0 mdlmn '
decrease in retall natural ¢ gas rates: ’

!nteg}ys/ Energy Group, Inc.

On September 2, 2008, WPS and the Citizens Utility Board filed an
agresment to implement a decoupling mechanism as a fouryear pilot
program; which would aliow WPS to adjust rates to recover or refund
the difference between the actualand authorized margin impacts of
variatioris in volumes, The PSCW spproved this decoupling mechanism,
with certain conditions, in the December 30,2008, final order discussed
above. The decoupling conditions ineluded an annual $12.0 million cap.
for electric service and an annual $4.0 million cap for natural gas
service. On January 16,2009, WES requested rehearing to remove or
increase the decoupling caps. On February 24, 2009, in a written order,,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the PSCW increased the caps to $14.0 million for electric service and
$8.0 million for natural gas service.

2008 Rate Case

On January 15, 2008, the PSCW issued a final written order for WPS
authorizing a retail electric rate increase of $23.0 million (2.5%), which
included recovery of deferred 2005 and 2006 MISO Day 2 costs over a
one-year period and increased electric transmission costs. The new rates
became effective January 16, 2008. On February 11, 2008, WPS filed an
application with the PSCW to adjust its 2008 rates for increased fuel and
purchased power costs. The application requested an increase in retail
electric rates due to a delay in the in-service date of the Weston 4 power
plant, increased coal and coal transportation costs, and increased natural
gas costs. The PSCW approved an interim annual fuel surcharge increase
of $29.7 million on March 20, 2008, and an additional final fuel surcharge
increase of $18.3 million, effective July 4, 2008.

On September 30, 2008, the PSCW reopened the 2008 fuel surcharge
to review forecasted fuel costs, as WPS's current and anticipated annual
fuel costs were below those projected in the fuel surcharge. As a result
of the lower fuel and purchased power costs, WPS's rates were subject
to refund, from September 30, 2008, through December 31, 2008.

On February 9, 2009, WPS filed a request with the PSCW to refund
approximately $5 million of 2008 fuel costs to Wisconsin electric retail
customers. This refund was accrued at December 31, 2008, and is
subject to review by the PSCW.

2007 Rate Case

On January 11, 2007, the PSCW issued a final written order for WPS
authorizing a retail electric rate increase of $56.7 million (6.6%) and

a retail natural gas rate increase of $18.9 million (3.8%), effective
January 12, 2007. The new rates reflect a 10.9% return on common
equity. The PSCW approved a common equity ratio of 57.4% in WPS's
regulatory capital structure. The 2007 retail electric rate increase was
required primarily because of increased costs associated with electric
transmission, costs related to the construction of Weston 4 and the
additional personnel to maintain and operate the plant, and costs to
maintain the Weston 3 generation unit and the De Pere Energy Center.
The 2007 retail natural gas rate increase was driven by infrastructure
improvements necessary to ensure the reliability of the natural gas
distribution system and costs associated with the remediation of former
manufactured gas plant sites.

2006 Rate Case

On December 22, 2005, the PSCW issued a final written order
authorizing a retail electric rate increase of $79.9 million (10.1%) and a
retail natural gas increase of $7.2 million (1.1%), effective January 1,
2006. The 2006 rates reflect an 11.0% return on common equity. The
PSCW also approved a common equity ratio of 59.7% in its regulatory
capital structure. The 2006 retail electric rate increase was required
primarily because of higher fuel and purchased power costs (including
costs associated with the Fox Energy Center power purchase
agreement), and also for costs related to the construction of Weston 4,
higher transmission expenses, and recovery of a portion of the costs
related to the 2005 Kewaunee outage. Partially offsetting the items
discussed above, retail electric rates were lowered to reflect a refund to
customers of the proceeds received from the liquidation of the
nonqualified decommissioning trust fund as a result of the sale of
Kewaunee (discussed below). The 2006 retail natural gas rate increase
was driven by infrastructure improvements necessary to ensure the
reliability of the natural gas distribution system.

Weston 3 Qutage
On October 6, 2007, Weston 3, a coal-fired generating facility located

near Wausau, Wisconsin, sustained damage from a major lightning
strike that forced the facility out of service until January 14, 2008. The
damage required the repair of the generator rotor, turbine rotors, and

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

boiler feed pumps. WPS incurred $8.9 million of incremental pre-tax
non-fuel operating and maintenance expenditures through January 14,
2008, to repair and return Weston 3 to service. WPS has insurance in
place that covered all non-fuel operating and maintenance
expenditures, less a $1.0 million deductible. WPS incurred a total of
$26.6 million of incremental pre-tax fuel and purchased power costs
during the 14-week outage. WPS was granted approval from the PSCW
to defer the replacement fuel and purchased power costs for the
Wisconsin retail portion of these costs retroactive to the date of the
lightning strike. On December 30, 2008, the PSCW granted WPS
recovery of $17.0 million of the requested $19.6 million of Weston 3
replacement fuel and power costs from the Wisconsin retail jurisdiction,
over a six-year period and without carrying costs.

It is anticipated that WPS will recover a similar portion of replacement
purchased power costs from the Michigan retail jurisdiction through the
annual power supply cost recovery mechanism.

PEC Merger
The PSCW approved the merger with PEC as of February 16, 2007. The

merger approval order contains the following conditions:

m  WPS will not have a base rate increase for natural gas or electric
service prior to January 1, 2009. WPS was allowed to adjust rates for
changes in purchased power costs as well as fuel costs related to
electric generation due to changes in the NYMEX natural gas futures
prices, coal prices, and transportation costs for coal.

m  WPS was required to seek approval for the formation of a service
company within 120 days of the closing of the merger. All required
regulatory approvals were received and Integrys Business Support,
LLC (IBS) became operational on January 1, 2008.

®m WPS will not recover merger related transaction costs. Recovery of
merger related transition costs in 2009 and later years will be limited
to the verified synergy savings in those years.

m WPS will hold ratepayers harmless from any increase in interest
and preferred stock costs attributable to nonutility activities,
provided that the authorized capital structure is consistent with
the authorized costs.

®m  WPS will not pay dividends to Integrys Energy Group in an amount
greater than 103% of the prior year's dividend.

Kewaunee
WPS received $127.1 million of proceeds from the liquidation of the

Kewaunee nonqualified decommissioning trust fund in 2005, which was
refunded to customers in the following manner:

® The PSCW ruled that WPS's Wisconsin customers were entitled to be
refunded approximately 85% of the proceeds over a two-year period
beginning on January 1, 2006.

® The MPSC ruled that WPS's Michigan customers were entitled to be
refunded approximately 2% of the proceeds over a 60-month period,
beginning in the third quarter of 2005. Subsequently, the MPSC
issued an order authorizing WPS to amortize the approximately
$2 million remaining balance of the refund simultaneously with the
amortization of approximately $2 million of the 2005 power supply
under collections from January 2007 through July 2010.

m  The FERC ruled that WPS’s wholesale customers were entitled to be
refunded the remaining 13% of the proceeds. A refund of
approximately $3 million was made to one customer in the second
quarter of 2006, which was offset by approximately $1 million related
to both the loss WPS recorded on the sale of Kewaunee and costs
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incurred related to the 2005 Kewaunee outage. Pursuant to the FERC
order settlement received on August 14, 2007, WPS completed lump
sum payments to the remaining FERC customers of approximately
$16 million (including interest), representing their contributions to the
nonqualified decommissioning trust fund during the period in which
they received service from WPS. The settlement would also require
these FERC customers to make two separate lump-sum payments to
WPS with respect to the loss from the sale of Kewaunee and the
2005 Kewaunee power outage. Payments made to WPS total
approximately $1 million and $8 million, respectively, and were
netted against the $16 million refund due to these customers.

The PSCW disallowed recovery of 50% of the 2005 loss on the sale of
Kewaunee. The entire loss had previously been approved for deferral,
resulting in WPS writing off $6.1 million in 2005 of the regulatory asset
previously recorded.

On February 20, 2005, Kewaunee was temporarily removed from
service after a potential design weakness was identified in its auxiliary
feedwater system. In WPS’s 2006 rate case, the PSCW determined that
it was reasonable for WPS to recover all deferred costs related to the
2005 Kewaunee forced outage over a five-year period, beginning on
January 1, 2006. At December 31, 2008, $19.1 million was left to be
collected from ratepayers and remained recorded as a regulatory asset
related to this outage.

Michigan

2009 MGU Rate Case

On January 13, 2009, the MPSC issued a final written order approving a
settlement agreement authorizing a retail natural gas rate increase of
$6.0 million, effective January 14, 2009. The rate increase was required
due primarily to general inflation, low margin revenue growth, increased
costs of customer service functions, and increased costs to
environmentally remediate former manufactured gas plants.

2008 WPS Rate Case

On December 4, 2007, the MPSC issued a final written order
authorizing WPS a retail electric rate increase of $0.6 million, effective
December 5, 2007. WPS's last retail electric rate increase in Michigan
was in July 2003. The new rates reflect a 10.6% return on common
equity. The MPSC approved a common equity ratio of 56.4% in WPS's
regulatory capital structure.

lllinois

2010 Rate Case

On February 25, 2009, PGL and NSG each filed a request with the ICC
to increase natural gas distribution rates for 2010. PGL's requested
increase is $161.9 million and NSG’s requested increase is $22.0 million.
The proposed rate increase is required to allow PGL and NSG to
recover their forecasted 2010 cost of service and to earn a reasonable
return on their investment. Each filing includes a proposed 12% rate of
return on common equity and a common equity ratio of 56% in its
regulatory capital structure. The filing includes a proposed overall return
of 9.34% and 9.18% for PGL and NSG, respectively. PGL also requested
approval of a mechanism for cost recovery, outside of the rate case, of
an accelerated cast iron main replacement program.

The lliinois rate case process requires receipt of a written order from the
ICC within 11 months from the filing date, which would be January 2010.

2008 Rate Case

On February 5, 2008, the ICC issued a final written order authorizing
PGL a retail natural gas distribution rate increase of $71.2 million and
requiring a retail natural gas rate decrease of $0.2 million for NSG. The
new rates for PGL reflected a 10.19% return on common equity and a

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

common equity ratio of 56% in its regulatory capital structure. The new
rates for NSG reflected a 9.99% return on common equity and a
common equity ratio of 56% in its regulatory capital structure. The order
included approval of a Volume Balancing Adjustment (VBA) decoupling
mechanism, effective March 1, 2008, as a four-year pilot program, which
will allow PGL and NSG to adjust rates going forward to recover or
refund the difference between the actual and authorized margin impact
of variations in volumes. Legislation was introduced at the lllinois state
legislature to roll back decoupling but never reached a vote. This
legislation may be introduced again. integrys Energy Group actively
supports the ICC’s decision to approve this rate setting mechanism. The
order also approved an Enhanced Efficiency Program, which will allow
PGL and NSG to recover $6.4 million and $1.1 million, respectively, of
energy efficiency costs. PGL and NSG filed tariffs in compliance with the
order on February 8, 2008, and the new rates became effective
February 14, 2008.

On March 26, 2008, the ICC denied PGLs and NSG's request for
rehearing of their rate orders, and all but one such request from
interveners. The ICC only granted rehearing on a request to change the
way PGL allocates interstate hub services revenues among customer
groups. On April 28, 2008, PGL and NSG filed a Notice of Appeal with
the lllinois appellate court regarding the ICC's order denying rehearing
on certain issues. On April 30, 2008, the ICC submitted a letter to the
lllinois appellate court stating that rehearing is pending before the ICC
and, while the ICC would not file to dismiss the PGL and NSG appeal as
premature, it requested that the court hold the due date for the ICC to
file the record with the court. On May 2, 2008, two interveners each
separately filed a Notice of Appeal. On June 6, 2008, several parties
filed a stipulation to resolve the way PGL allocates interstate hub
services revenues among customer groups. On July 30, 2008, the ICC
approved the stipulation, as well as a rehearing order. The approved
stipulation took effect on November 1, 2008. Subsequent to the
approval of the stipulation, PGL and NSG filed appeals in the second
district of the Hllinois appellate court and after that, four other parties
filed appeals in the first district of the llinois appellate court. On
September 29, 2008, the ICC asked the lllinois Supreme Court to
vacate the second district’s transfer of the appeal to the first district, and
the lllinois Supreme Court denied the ICC's motion. On appeal, parties
may only raise issues on which they sought rehearing at the ICC. These
issues include the VBA decoupling mechanism. No decision on the
appeal is expected until at least the second half of 2009.

PEC Merger
The PEC merger was effective February 21, 2007. PGL and NSG are

wholly owned by PEC. On February 7, 2007, the ICC approved the PEC
merger by accepting an agreed upon order among the active parties to
the merger case. The order included Conditions of Approval regarding
commitments by the applicants to:

B provide certain reports,

®  perform studies of the PGL natural gas system,

B promote and hire a limited number of union employees in specific
areas,

®  make no reorganization-related layoffs or position reductions within
the PGL union workforce,

B maintain both the PGL and NSG operation and maintenance and
capital budgets at recent levels,

m file a plan for formation and implementation of a service company,

® accept certain limits on the merger-related costs that can be
recovered from ratepayers, and

An Environment of Energy




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B not seek cost recovery for any increase in deferred tax assets that
may result from the tax treatment of the PGL and NSG natural gas
storage inventory in connection with closing the merger.

The Conditions of Approval also included the following commitments
with respect to the recently completed rate cases of PGL and NSG:

m inclusion of merger synergy savings of $11.4 million at PGL and
$1.6 million at NSG in the proposed test year,

m recovery of $6.2 million at PGL and $0.8 million at NSG of the merger-
related costs in the test year (reflecting recovery of $30.9 million of
costs at PGL and $4.2 million of costs at NSG over 5 years),

® proposing a combined $7.5 million Enhanced Efficiency Program at
PGL and NSG, which was contingent on receiving cost recovery in
the rate case orders, and

a filing certain changes to the small volume transportation
service programs.

The ICC approved a cost recovery mechanism for the Enhanced
Efficiency Program costs. The order provides authority for PGL and
NSG to recover from ratepayers up to an additional $9.9 million of
combined merger costs in a future rate case, for a maximum potential
recovery of $44.9 million. PGL and NSG must demonstrate in the future
that the merger synergy savings realized have exceeded merger costs.
As of December 31, 2008, the regulatory asset balance representing
merger costs to be recovered totaled $10.7 million at PGL and

$1.5 million at NSG.

Minnesota

On July 31, 2008, MERC filed a request with the Minnesota Public Utility
Commission (MPUC) to increase retail natural gas rates $22.0 million
(6.4%). The proposed natural gas rate increase is required because of
general inflation coupled with low sales growth and increased costs to
provide customer service functions. On September 11, 2008, the MPUC
issued an order approving an interim rate increase of $19.8 million,

NOTE 24—SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,” requires that companies disclose segment
information based on how management makes decisions about
allocating resources to segments and measuring their performance.

Integrys Energy Group manages its reportable segments separately due
to their different operating and regulatory environments. At December 31,
2008, Integrys Energy Group reported four segments, which are
described below.

m The electric utility segment includes the regulated electric utility
operations of WPS and UPPCO.

m The natural gas utility segment includes the regulated natural gas
utility operations of WPS, MGU, MERC, PGL, and NSG. The
regulated natural gas utility operations of PGL and NSG have been
included in results of operations since the PEC merger date.

B Integrys Energy Services is a diversified nonregulated energy supply

and services company serving residential, commercial, industrial, and

wholesale customers in developed competitive markets in the
United States and Canada.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

effective October 1, 2008. This interim rate increase is subject to refund
pending the final rate order, which is expected in the second quarter
of 2009.

Federal

Through a series of orders issued by the FERC, Regional Through and
Out Rates for transmission service between MISO and the PJM
Interconnection were eliminated effective December 1, 2004. To
compensate transmission owners for the revenue they will no longer
receive due to this rate elimination, the FERC ordered a transitional
pricing mechanism called the Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment
(SECA) be put into place. Load-serving entities paid these SECA
charges during a 16-month transition period from December 1, 2004,
through March 31, 2006.

For the 16-month transitional period, Integrys Energy Services received
billings of $19.2 million (pre-tax) for these charges. Integrys Energy
Services expensed $14.7 million of the $19.2 million, as it is probable
that Integrys Energy Services' total exposure will be reduced by at least
$4.5 million due to inconsistencies between the FERC's SECA order and
the transmission owners' compliance filings. Integrys Energy Services
has reached settlement agreements with three of its vendors for a
combined $1.6 million.

In August 2006, the administrative law judge hearing the case issued an
Initial Decision that was in agreement with all of Integrys Energy
Services’ positions. If the Final Order is consistent with the Initial
Decision of the administrative law judge, Integrys Energy Services' pre-
tax exposure of $19.2 million may be reduced by as much as $13 million.
The Final FERC Order is subject to rehearing and then court challenges.
Any refunds to Integrys Energy Services will include interest for the
period from payment to refund.

The SECA is also an issue for WPS and UPPCO. It is anticipated that
most of the SECA charges incurred or refunds received by WPS and
UPPCO will be passed on to customers through rates, and will not have
a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of
WPS or UPPCO.

® The Holding Company and Other segment, another nonregulated
segment, includes the operations of the Integrys Energy Group
holding company and the PEC holding company (which was
included in results of operations since the PEC merger date), along
with any nonutility activities at WPS, MGU, MERC, UPPCO, PGL,
NSG, and IBS. IBS is a wholly owned centralized service company
that provides administrative and general support services for
Integrys Energy Group's six regulated utilities and portions of
administrative and general support services for Integrys Energy
Services. Equity earnings from our investments in ATC and WRPC
are also included in the Holding Company and Other segment.

The nonregulated oil and natural gas production segment includes the
results of PEP, which were reported as discontinued operations in 2007.
PEP engaged in the acquisition, development, and production of oil
and natural gas reserves in selected onshore basins in the United States
through direct ownership in oil, natural gas, and mineral leases. Integrys
Energy Group completed the sale of PEP in September 2007.

An Environment of Energy



The tables below present information for the respective years pertaining to our operations segmented by lines of business.

2008 (Millions)

o Nenuﬁlity and
| Regulated Utilities | Nonregulated Qperations
Lo S : Integrys Ha!gﬁﬁg
Electric  Natural Gas Total Company
Utliy? Uty Uty © and Other @

“Ancome Statement

Extarnal reventes

Intersegment reveniies

Goodwill impairment loss

Depreciation and
amortization expense

Miscellaneous income
{expense)

Interest expense

vai;;%c}ﬁ/(beneﬂt) for
income taxes

Incamme (oss) from
continuing operations

. Discontinued operations

 Preferred stock dividends
of subsidiary :

Income (loss) available for
common shareholders’

Total assets

Cash /expéﬁdétures for
leng-lived assets

incliudes only Sty

¥ Nonutility opsratior

slucledd iy the Hol

many:and QOthércoldmn

E

i

Reconciling

liminations

integrys
Energy Group

 Consolidated |

{ Regulated Utilities i | Nonutility and Nonregulated Operations } s
. Itegrys Oﬁ’;ﬁd  Holding S Eﬁtégl;ys

L Electric  Natural Gas ~ Total Energy - Natural Gas — Company Reconciling  Energy Group
2007 (Millions) Utllity 0 Utility @ Unility @ Services  Production  and Other @ Eliminations - Consolidated
Income Staternent ’ : :
External revenues $1,2029 $21025  $33054  $6,975.7 $ = 5 us $§ o= $10,292.4
Intersegment reveriugs 432 1.2 44.4 4.0 : g : (49.6) =
Depreciation and i o

amortization expense 80:1 977 177.8 144 = 29 5 1951
Miscallansous income :

(expense) 8:3 55 13.8 0.3) 01 81.4 (30.9) b
Interest expense 324 534 85.8 13:5 2,4 93.7 (309 1645
Provision (@aé’fit} for i 3

income taxes 51.5 145 66.0 26:3 ) 5.3 = - B6O
Income (lcsé} from T : .

continuing operations 896 296 1192 832 @5 (18.8) e 181
Discontinued operations = 14.8 585 = = 733
Preferred stock dividends :

of subsidiary 2.2 09 3.1 o = = = 34
Income {lcs:%}/ava%labie for G e :

comman shareholders 87.4 287 1164 98.0 56,0 (18.8) L 2513
Total assets : 24708 4,777.8 7,2486 3,150.6 e 1A (1,076.2) 11,2344 '

Coshexpendituresfor = o e o o
lang-lived as s 2026 1588 3614 205 . 10.7. = 392.6

o Company and Other célumn

integrys Energy Group,Ine.

Ar Environment of Energy




Nonutility and
Nonregulated Operations

| Regulated Utilities |

Integrys Holding Integrys
Electric Natural Gas Total Energy Company Reconciling Energy Group
2006 (Millions) Utility @ Utility Utility @ Services and Other @ Eliminations Consolidated
Income Statement
External revenues $1.057.9 $676:1 $1,734.0 $5,151.8 $ 49 - $6,890.7
Intersegment revenues 41.5 0.8 423 7.3 1.2 (50.8) -
Depreciation and
amortization expense 785 327 111.2 9.4 0.7 - 1213
Miscellaneous income
(expense) 3.2 1.0 4.2 (11.4) 66.0 {16.0) 42.8
Interest expense 300 18.1 481 15.4 51.7 (16.0) 99.2
Provision (benefit) for
income taxes 48.6 15 50.1 (5.0) 0.1 - 450
Income (loss) from
continuing operations 87.6 (1.3) 86.3 65.0 0.3 - 151.6
Discontinued operations - - - 7.3 - - 7.3
Preferred stock dividends
of subsidiary 2.1 1.0 3.4 - - - 3.1
Income (loss) available for
common shareholders 855 (2:3) 83.2 723 0.3 - 155.8
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets 282.1 54.6 3367 55 0:2) - 342.0
W includes only utility operations
@ Nonutility operations are included in the Holding Company and Other column.
| 7067 |
Geographic Information Long-Lived
(Millions) Revenues Assets Revenues
United States $.8,343.8 $7,028.2 $4,908.6
Canada * 1,948.6 20.6 1,982.1
Total $10,292.4 $7,048.8 $6,890.7

* Revenues and assets of Canadian subsidiaries.

integrys Energy Group, Inc. | An Environment of Energy




{M:i{:ons, except share amouﬁm)

' Opat‘atmg revenues
,C)pa ating income (ms),
Income (loss) from cortin:
Discontinued operations, net of tax

Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary
Income {iaés) avai!ab!e for common sharghoider& o

Average nurﬁb of shares of common stock bastc)
A\,a,rage number of shares of common stock (di uted}

Eamiﬁgjs {1@’55}@@:’ common share {basic
Incorme (loss) from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
F:am-ngs (c;ss, per common share (basic)

Earnings (loss) per common shate (diluted) *

Income (loss) from ce)ratmumg\t)perat fons

Dmc)ntmued of ration

- comimon share. d&lut

* Eamings per share for the individual quarters do nottotal the year ended earnings per sharg smount because of changes 1o the avom ge number of Shares outmwndmg and chano-d iincrenental
issuabile shares tioughout the year

: i / 1 - “Three Months Ended 2007 i f
{Millions, except share amounts) - ¢ March June September ~ December T:)téﬁ o
Operating revenuss . | Sm7ase 523817 $2115 830616
Operating income (loss) L 1831 B 541 1641
income (loss) from continuing operations - w2 399 116 919
Dsg:anfqﬁz;ed operations; net of tax o 230 - 240 323 6o
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary g8 08 07 08 e
mcémé (bss} availabie forcommon sharchalders = $ 1394 S U4 $ 432 5 ooen $ 2513
Average number of shares of common stock {baszc}f o 575

578

smon stock (diluted)

: Averaqe* uumber cf shar@s ofi¢

0:31

Eamir%gs {ioss) per con : o

afnmgs {{c}ss) per common share (dz%umd} o // /, e
Income {loss) from continuing operations L i 201 053 014 199 248
Dnse:oﬂtmued operations - a0 03 042 pos 1o
Pfammgs {loss) per coprimon share (dil red) - S 2410 {OE{'.ZZ) .56 1 350

are for the individua!l quarters doniotie
Fout the year

ings per si‘ o] thi vear ended Barninds Ber share armaunt bacerse of changss tothe average number of shares sutstanding and changes inincremental
S o e

issuatle shares tf

Because of various factors, the quarterly results of operations are not nécessarily comparable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Deloitte.

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Integrys Energy Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the
related consolidated statements of income, common
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2008. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the resuits of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years

in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc. fiis

As discussed in Note 1(t) to the consolidated financial
statements, at January 1, 2008, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157,

“Fair Value Measurements.”

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 25, 2009,
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Dalsith_ £ Fpuche LLP

Milwaukee, WI
February 25, 2009

& An Environment of Energy




As of or for Year Ended December 31
(Millions, except per share amounts, stock price, return on average equity;
and number. of shareholders and employees)

Total revenues

income from continuing operations
income available for common shareholders
Total assets

Preferred stock of subsidiaries

Long-term debt (excluding current portion)

2005

Shares of common stock (léss treasury stock and shares in deferred compensation trust)
Qutstanding
Average

Earnings per common share (basic)
Income from continuing operations
Earnings per common share

Earnings per common share (diluted)
Income from continuing operations
Earnings per common share

Dividend per share of common stock

Stock price at year-end

Book value per share

Return on average equity

Number of common stock shareholders
Numiber of employees

2007 2006 9 2004
$10,292.4 $6,890.7 $6,8255 $4,876:1
1811 1516 150.6 156.6
251.3 155.8 157.4 139.7
11,2344 68617 54625 43768
511 51.1 51:1 511
2,265.1 1,287.2 867.1 865.7
76.0 43 39.8 373
716 423 383 374
$2.49 $3.51 $3.85 $4.10
351 3.68 411 374
2.48 3550 381 4.08
350 3.67 4.07 372
2.56 2.28 224 220
$51.69 $54.03 $55.31 $49.96
$42.58 $35.61 $32.76 $29.30
8:5% 10.6% 13:6% 13.5%
35212 19,837 20,701 21,358
5,231 3326 2,945 3,048

) includes the impact of the Peoples Energy Corporation merger on February 21, 2007.

@ includes the impact of the acquisition of natural gas distribution operations from Aquila by Michigan Gas Utilities Corporation on April 1, 2006, and

Minnesota Energy Resources Corporation on July 1, 2006.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.
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|| Keith E. Bailey
Age 66 8 Tulsa, Oklahoma o
Former Chairman and Chief Executrve Officer -
_ The Williams Companies, Inc. o
{Director since 2005)
Audit Committee
Financial Committee

. Pohn W. Higgins

Richard A, Bemis

Age 67 B Sheboygan Wssconsm

Co-chairman of the Board of Directors =
. Bemis Manufacturing Company
(Director since 1983)
- Compensation Committee

Governance Commiitiee

William J. Brodsky
Age 64 B Chicago, Wingls
Chairman and Chief Executive Oﬁ?cer—

_ The Chicago Board Options Exchange
(Director since 1997)
Compensation Committee
Financial Committee

| Albert J 'Budney,".fn ‘

Age 61 B Dover, Massachusetts

_Former President - Niagata Mohawk H(}ldmgs, Inc;'

 ang N:agara Mohawk Power Carporataon
{Director since 2002)
Governance Committee (Chair)

Pastora San Juan Cafferty

Age 68 & Chicago, llinois , .
Professor emerita -~ University of Ch&cago
{Director since 1988)

Environmental Co,mm!ttee

_Governance {ommittee

Ellen Carnahan

Age 53 = Chicago, Hlinois

Managing Director - William Blair Capital
Management, Le

(Director since 2003}

Audit Commities

‘Financial Committee

Robert C. Gallagher

Age 70 m Green Bay, Wisconsin

Former Chairman of the Board -
Associated Banc-Corp.

{(Dirsctor since 1992)

Lead Director

Kathryn M. Hasselblad-Pascale

Age 50m Green Bay, Wisconsin

Managing Partner « Hasselblad Machine
Company, LLP

(Director since 1987)

| | Environmental Committee (Chair)

Integrys Energy Group, Inc

n Environment of Energy

Age 62 # Chicago, lllinois

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer -
. Higgins Development Partners, LLC
(Director since 2003)

Audit Commiittee

Environmental Committee

James L. Kemetling

Age 69 B Wausau, Wisconsin

President and Chief Executive Officer ~
Riiser Oil Company, Inc.

(Director since 1988) '

Financial Cornmittee (Chair)

Michagl E. Lavin

Age 62 m Chicago, lllinois

Former Midwest Area Managing Partner -
KPMG LLP

Director since 2003)

Audit Committee (Chair)

John C. Meng **
Age 64 ® Green Bay, Wisconsin
. Former Chainman of the Board -
Schreiber Foods, Inc.
(Director since 2000)
Ccmpensataon Committee (Chair)

William E Protz, Jr.
Age 64 ® Lake Forest; Hllinois

Former President and Chief Executive Officer -
 Santa’s Rest, LLP

{Director since 2001)
Audit Committee

Environmental Committee

Charles A, Schrock ***

Age 55 8B Chicago, lllinois

Presidlent and Chief Executive Officer ~
 Integrys Energy Group, Inc.
(Director since 2009)

Larry L. Wavers

Age 63 ® Chicago, Hllinois

Executive Chairman - Integrys Energy
. Group, Inc.

{Director since 1996)

:!ectw take :m‘o cons;demtmn servcce




Lawrence T. Borgard

President and Chief Operating Officer ~
Integrys Gas Group

Age 47 m Years of service 24

Charles A. Cloninger
President — Minnesota Energy
Resources Corporation and
President - Michigan Gas
Utilities Corporation

Age 50 & Years of service 27

Willard S. Evans, Jr.

President ~ The Peoples Gas Light
and Coke Company and

President - North Shore Gas Company
Age 53 m Years of service 31

*

Diane L. Ford

Vice President and
Corporate Controller

Age 55 ® Years of service 33

Bradley A. Johnson
Vice President and Treasurer
Age 54 & Years of service 29

William D. Laakso
Vice President -~ Human Resources
Age 46 & Years of service 3

Thomas P. Meinz

Executive Vice President and
Chief External Affairs Officer
Age 62 ® Years of service 39

** Appointed to this position as of January 1, 2009.

Phillip M. Mikulsky
Executive Vice President -
Comporate Development and
Shared Services

Age 60 ® Years of service 37

Barbara A. Nick

Presidlent ~ Upper Peninsula
Power Company

Age 50 m Years of service 24

Joseph P. O'Leary

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Age 54 ® Years of service 7

Mark A. Radtke

Charles A. Schrock

President and Chief Executive Officer —
Integrys Energy Greup ** and
President and Chief Executive Officer —
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
Age 55 m Years of service 29

Larry L. Weyers
Executive Chairman **
Age 63 ® Years of service 23

Barth J. Wolf

Vice President — Chief Legal Officer
and Secretary

Age 31  Years of service 20

President and Chief Executive Officer ~

Integrys Energy Services, inc.
Age 47 m Years of service 25

_COMPARATIVE FIVE-YEAR INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Title, age, and years of service are as of December 31, 2008. Years of service take into consideration service with Integrys Energy Group or a system company.

The following graph presents a five-year

comiparison of:

# Integrys Energy Group’s common stock

cumulative total return;

& Standard & Poor's (S&P) 500 Index, and

# Edison Electric Institute (EE Gas and
Electric Index for the last five fiscal years.

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN @
300
250
200 PEN
§ o
o) -
57150
100
50
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
YEAR
“@-Integrys Energy Group' e S&P 500 Index - EE| Gas and Electric Index

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Integrys Energy Group 100 113 130 133 134
S&P 500 Index 100 m 116 135 142
EEl Gas and Electric Index 100 125 146 177 206

Assumes $100 invested on Diecember 31, 2003, in Integrys Energy Group Common Stock, S&P 500 Index, and EEl Gas and Electric Index.

) This performance graph is riot to'be deemed 1o be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, except to the extent specifically requested by Integrys
Energy Group orincorporated by reference in documents otherwise filed.

@ Total return assumes reinvestment-of dividends.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc. |
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SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

Our transfer agent, American Stock Transter & Trust Company,
can be reached via telephone between 7 a.m. and 6 p.m,,
Central time, Monday through Thursday, or 7 a.m. and 4 P,
Central time, Friday, kzy calling 800-236-1551. You also have
direct access to your account 24 hours a day through the
Internet at www.amstock.com. ,

Our Investor Relations staff is also available to assist you by
calling 800-228-6888 between 8 a.m: and 4:30 p.m., Central
tirne, Monday through Friday.

Malling addresses and internet addresses, along with additional
telephone numbers, are listed 'on the back cover of this report.

COMMON STOCK

The New York Stock Exvham}@ is the prinéipéf market for
Integrys Energy Group, Inc. common stock, which trades under
the ticker symbol of TE(..L

Investment Plan
described below or
through brokerage firms
and banks that offer
brokerage services.

Common stock certificates issued before September 1, 1994,
bear the name of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation and
remain valid certificates. Commian stock certificates issued from
September 1, 1994, through February 21,2007, bear the name
of WPS Resources Corporation and remain valid certificates,

On Decé/mber 31,2008, we bad 75,992,768 shares of common
stock outstanding, which were awned by 34,016 holders of record.

DIVIDENDS

We have paid quarterly cash dividends on our common stock
since 1953, and we expct to continue that trend subject to
Board approval. Future dividends are dependent on requlatory
limitations, earnings, capitalrequirements, cash flows, and other
financial cansiderat%on&

ﬂmt:upaf@d record and payment dates for common Stcck
vidends to be paid in 2009 are :

Racor&ﬂ}éﬁe

Year End:ed December 31 By Quarwr}

Price Ran

Divid m:is
B

Integrys Energy Group, Inc

If you are a record holder of our common stock, you may have
your dividends electronically deposited in a checking or savings
account at a financial institution. If you are a record holder and
your dividends are not electronically deposited, we will mail
your dividend check directly to you. /

If you are a record holder of our common stock and your

dividend check is not received on the payment date, wait

approximately ten days to allow for delays in mail delivery.

Thm contact American ‘Smck Tra :f»:fex & Trust Company to
st a replacement '

STOCK INVESTMENT

" We maintain a Stock Investmant Plan for the

purchase of common stock, which allows persons
who are not already shareholders to become
participarts by making a minimum initiel cash
investrment of $100: Qur P?&n ensbles youto /
maintain Yeglstrat.ﬁn with Us in your own name !

rather tharm with a broker in “street name | : /
. \‘,"mewwj

The Stock Investment Plan also provides vou W!th optsoss for
reinvesting your dividends and making aptional cash purchases
of common stock directly through the Plan without paying
brokerage commissions, {em, of service charges. Optional cash
payments of not less than $25 per payment may be made
subject to a maximum of $100,000 per calendar year. An
automatic investment option allows you to authorize the
deduction of payments from your checking ot savings account
automatically once each month, onthe third day of the month,
by electronic means for investmentin the P*an

Cash for investment must be received by the Brti or18th day of
the month, Investrmient generally commences oh or about the
5th or 20th day of the month, or as soon ﬂ'x@reafter as practicable

The shares you hold in our Stock Investment Plan may be sold
by the agent for the Plan as you direct us, or you may request
a certificate for sale through a broker vou s @@fgﬁ;We will
accumulate sale requests from participants and, approximately
every five business days, will submit a sale request to the
indeperident broker-dealer on behalf of those participants.

Participation in the Stock lrweas“cmem Plan is being offered only

by means of a prospectus, If you would like a copy of the
Stock Investrment Plan prospectus, you may use American

An-Environment of Energy




Stock Transfer & Trust Company’s Web site at
www.amstock.com, call American Stock Transfer & Trust
Company at 800-236-1551, contact us by sending an e-mail
to investor@integrysgroup.com, or order or download the
prospectus and enrollment forms from our Web site at
www.integrysgroup.com under “Investors.”

SAFEKEEPING SERVICES

As a participant in the Stock Investment Plan, you may transfer
shares of common stock registered in your name into a Plan
account for safekeeping. Contact American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company or our Investor Relations staff for details.

PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARY

The preferred stock of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
trades on over-the-counter markets. Payment and record dates
for preferred stock dividends to be paid in 2009 are:

Record Date Payment Date

January 15 February 1
April 15 May 1
July 15 August 1
October15

November 1

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT
AND REGISTRAR

Questions about transferring common or preferred stock, lost
certificates, or changing the name in which certificates are
registered should be directed to our transfer agent, American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company, at the addresses or telephone
numbers listed on the back cover.

ADDRESS CHANGES

if your address changes, write to American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company at the address on the back of this report or use
their Web site at www.amstock.com.

AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION

Company financial information is available on our Web site at
www.integrysgroup.com under Investors,

You may obtain, without charge, a copy of our 2008 Form 10-K,
without exhibits, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, by contacting the Corporate Secretary at the
corporate office mailing address listed on the back cover,

or by using our Web site.

INTERNET

Visit our Web site at www.integrysgroup.com to find a wealth
of information about our company and its subsidiaries.

Integrys Energy Group, Inc

1 The site will give you
instant access to Annual
Reports, SEC filings,
proxy statements,
financial news,
presentations, news
releases, corporate
governance, career
opportunities, and
much more. You may also download a copy of the prospectus
for the Stock Investment Plan and the associated forms for
participation in the Plan.

The site is updated regularly, so visit it often.

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Our Annual Shareholders’ Meeting will be held on Wednesday,
May 13, 2009, at 10 a.m. Central daylight time at the Weidner
Center, University of Wisconsin — Green Bay, 2420 Nicolet Drive,
Green Bay, Wisconsin.

Proxy statements for our May 13, 2009, Annual Shareholders’
Meeting were mailed to shareholders of record on April 3, 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT

if you or another member of your household receives

more than one Annual Report because of differences in the
registration of your accounts, please contact American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company so account mailing instructions can
be modified accordingly.

This Annual Report is prepared primarily for the information of
our shareholders and is not given in connection with the sale of
any security or offer to sell or buy any security.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
INFORMATION

Corporate governance information, including our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, our Code of Conduct, charters for
the committees of our Board of Directors, By-Laws, and
Avrticles of Incorporation, is available on our Web site at
www.integrysgroup.com under “Investors.” You may also
obtain the information by written request to the Corporate
Secretary at the mailing address for the corporate office
indicated on the back cover of this report.

CERTIFICATIONS

We have filed as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, the certifications

of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required
by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We also submitted

to the New York Stock Exchange during 2008 the Annual CEO
Certification required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York
Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual.

r Frvicanmaons of e



Investor Relations .
Integrys Energy Group, Inc. = ¢
700 North Adams Street
Green Bay, Wi 54301

Mailing Address: o
Integrys Energy Group, Inc.
P. O. Box 19001 '
Green Bay, Wl 54307-9001

Telephone: 800-228-6888
Fax: 920-433-1526
E-Mail: investor@integrysgroup.com

Financial Analyst Inquiries
Steven P. Eschbach, CFA

Vice President - Investor Relations
Integrys Energy Group, Inc.

130 East Randolph Drive

Chicago, IL 60601

Telephone: 312-228-5408

E-Mail: speschbach@integrysgroup.com

TEG Stock Exchange Listing
s New York Stock Exchange
e Ticker Symbol: TEG
NYSE Listing Abbreviation: IntegrysEngy

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For General Information:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Web Site: www.amstock.com

E-Mail: info@amstock.com

Telephone: 800-236-1551 (toll free), 718 921-8124 (mtematmnal)
Fax: 718-236-2641

For Dividend Remvestment and Dxrect Stock Purchase
American Stock Transter & Trust Company, LLC

Wall Street Station

PO Box 922

New York, NY. 10269-0560 ,

Telephone: 800-236-1551 (toll free)

WISCONSIN UTILITY INVESTORS, INC.

With over 16,000 members, Wisconsin Utility Investors, Inc. (WUI} is
an independent, non-profit organization representing the collective
voices of all shareholders in Wisconsin utilities: 1t monitors and
evaluates industry issues and trerids and is a resource for its
members, regulators, and the public. WUl can be reached by
calling 608:663-5813 or by e-mail at contact@wuiinc.org.

MINNESOTA UTILITY INVESTORS, INC.

Minnesota Utility investors, Inc. (MU is an independent, non-profit
organization representing the collective voices of nearly 27,000
shareholders in electric and gas utilities operating in Minnesota:
For more information, MUI can be reached by calling toll-free
888-850-5171 or by e-mail at mui@mnutilityinvestors.org.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

‘Integrys Energy Group, Inc. is committed to equal employment

opportunity for all qualified individuals without regard to race,
color, religion, sex; national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender
identity, disability, disabled veterans, recently separated véterans;
other protected veterans, and armed forces service medal veterans,
or any other protected class. To this end, we support and will
cooperate fully with all applicable laws, regulations, and executive
orders in all of our employment policies; practices, and decisions.
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